
]U(At1asEnergy Application Jbr Generation License 

APPLICATION FOR A GENERATION LICENSE FOR 
950.625 kWp SOLAR POWER GENERATION FACILITY 

At 

Atlas Engineering Limited 

Atlas Industrial Park, 15th Miles, National Highway, 
Landhi, Karachi 

Applicant:  

Atlas Energy Limited 
Registered Address: 64/XX, Khayaban-e-Iqba1, 
DI-IA Phase-Ill, Lahore, Pakistan. 
Tel: 042-37132636-37-38-39-44 



Forwarded please: 

ElFor nec. action For information 

-nbc (Lic.) 0 DO (Adrnnft-iR) 

o oc (M&E) 0 00 (CAD) 

o 00 (Tech.) 0 cc (ATO) 

ADG(Trf.) 0 ADO (Fin.) 

o SLA 0 Dir. (IT) 

o Consult (Tech.t 0 consult c,scM 

For & on behalf of 
Atlas Energy limited 

k\\ 7'N 
Maqsood Ahmad 
Chief Executive Officer 

rd) 
Ci! Atlas Energy 

September 13, 2024 

The Registrar 
National Electric Power Regulatory Authority 
2 Floor, OPF Building, Sector G-5/2 
Islamabad. 

t.. 

Subject: Application for Generation License/Concurrence Application for 950.625 kW Solar 
Power Generation Facility 

ç5 

Dear Sir, 

I, Maqsood Ahmad, being the duly authorized representative ofAtlas Energy Limited by virtue of Board 
Resolution dated Feb 04, 2019 hereby apply to National Electric Power Regulatory Authority for the 
Grant of Generation License/Concurrence to Atlas Energy Limited pursuant to section 15 of the 
Regulation of Generation, Transmission and Distribution of Electric Power Act, 1997. 

I certify that the documents-in-support attached with this application are prepared and submitted in 
conformity with the provisions of the National Electric Power Regulatory Authority Licensing 
(Application, Modification, Extension and Cancellation) Procedure Regulations, 2021 and undertake to 
abide by the terms and provisions of the above-said regulations. I further undertake and confirm that 
the infornrntion provided in the attached documents-in-support is true and correct to the best of my 
knowledge and belief 

A HBL Pay order No. 13384417 dated September 11,2024, amounting Rupees 127,589/- (Rupees One 
hundred twenty-seven thousand five hundred eighty-nine Only), being the non-refundable license 
application fee calculated in accordance with Schedule II to the National Electric Power Regulatory 
Authority Licensing (Application, Modification, Extension and Cancellation) Procedure Regulations, 
2021, is also attached herewith. 

We request NEPRA to proceed/ approve our case at the earliest. 

For kind Information, please 
c—' 1 Chairman .-4 M (Tech) 

—' 3.M(tc.) '-4.M(Trf & Fin) 
_— 5.MLw) 

Atlas Energy Limited 
Registered Office: 64-XX, Khayaban-e-Iqba1, Phase-ITT, DHA, Lahore. 

Ph: (92-42) 37132636-39, (92-42) 37132644 Fax: (92-42) 37132641 
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CHECK LIST FOR EXAMINATION OF LICENSE APPLICATION 

FOR RENEWABLE POWER PROJECT  
(Regulation 3 read with 3(4)(A) ofAMECPR-2021)  

Name of Company: Atlas Energy Limited Installed Capacity: 950.63 kWp 

Regulation # InformationIDocuments Required Information! Documents 
Submitted 

3(l)* Application fee (including Indexation) 

3(3) Application submitted in triplicate Alt44tttet 

3(4)(a) applicable documents-in-support and information set out in 

Schedule III of these regulations; 

3(4)(b) * a prospectus 4hettlt 

3(4)(c)(i)(a) * certified copies of certificate of incorporation 

3(4)(c)(i)(b) * certified copies of memorandum and articles of association I6seLtd- A 
3(4)(c)(i)(c) * certified copies of annual reports of the company 

3(4)(c)(ii) * 

the last annual return of the Company submitted in compliance of 

section 130 of the Companies Act or, in case of an applicant to 

whom section 130 of the Companies Act does not apply, a return 

comprising of all such information and particulars as required by 

the specified fonn under section 130 of the Companies Act, as the 

case may be 

3(4)(c)(iii) 
the authorized, issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the 

applicant 
4-114 eL.o,1- 

3(4)(c)(iv) 

the shareholding pattern of the applicant including list of 

shareholders holding 5% or more shares, number of shares held 

by each of them and percentage shares of the total paid-up capital 

3(4)(d)(i) 
evidence of cash balances held in reserve by the applicant, along 

with bank certificates; 

3(4)(d)(ii) 
details of charges or encumbrances attached to the applicant's 

assets, if any; 

— 

3(4)(d)(iii) latest audited financial statements of the applicant; 

3(4)(d)(iv) 
expressions of interest to provide credit or financing along with 

sources and details thereof; 4-i/A 

3(4)(d)(v) 

documents describing the net worth and the equity and debt ratios 

of the applicant, as on the date of the audited balance sheet 

accompanying the application; 

3(4)(d)(vi) * 
a reasonably detailed profile of the applicant and the applicant's 

senior management, technical and professional staff; 

3(4)(d)(vii) 
employment records of engineering and technical staff of the 

applicant proposed to be employed; 

— 
,41Z4dtttt 

3(4)(d)(vii) 
profile of sub-contractors, if any, along with expressions of 

interest of such sub-contractors; 

3(4)(d)(ix) 
verifiable references in respect of the experience of the applicant 

and its proposed sub-contractors; 
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Regulation # Information/Documents Required Information/Documents 
Submitted 

3(e) * 
technical and financial proposals in reasonable detail for the 

operation, maintenance, planning and development of the facility 

or system in respect of which the license is being sought; 

30) * Feasibility Study AOnL_.t 
3 * g 

an affidavit stating whether the applicant has been granted any 

other license under the Act; 

3(h) * 

a duly authorized statement stating whether the applicant has 

been refused grant of license under the Act and, if so, the 

particulars of the refused application, including date of making 

the application and decision on the application; 

44/rn 

3(6) * Authorization from Board Resolution! Power of Attorney .4Wa 

3(7) * An affidavit as to the correctness, authenticity and accuracy of the 

application, 

Schedule Ill (Regulation 3(4)(a)(A)(e) 

I. Interconnection Study 411 
2. Environment Impact Assessment Study 

3 Information relating to: 

3(i) * Location (location maps, site map, land) 

30i) 
* Technology, size of the plant, number of units 

30ii) 
* Water source at site for maintenance 

3(iv) * Infrastructure: roads, rail, staff colony, amenities 

3(v) * Project commencement and completion schedule with milestones 

3(vi) Safety plans, emergency plans /ii 

3(vii) * Plant characteristics (generation voltage, frequency etc.) 

3(viii) Control, metering, instrumentation and protection 

3(ix) * Estimated Capacity Factor at site 

3(x) Degradation Factors 
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3(4)(b) a prospectus 
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WAtlas Energy 

ATLAS ENERGY LiMITED 
Company Prospectus 
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Atlas Group: 

Mr. Yusuf H. Shirazi, laid the foundation of Atlas in 1962 with the establishment of Shirazi Investments 
(Pvt) Limited. Atlas is a diversified group dealing in engineering, power generation, financial services and 
trading, embodying the spirit of development as it endeavors to fuel the growth of Pakistan's economy. It 
comprises of 16 companies, four of which are quoted on the Stock Exchanges of Pakistan (Atlas Honda 
Limited, Atlas Battery Limited. Atlas Insurance Limited & Honda Atlas Cars (Pakistan) Limited. Atlas 
shareholders' equity now stands at 200 billion rupees; assets have increased to 250 billion rupees; personnel 
strength to 10,000 and annual sales have crossed 160 billion rupees. 

Atlas Energy Limited 

Atlas Energy Limited was incorporated as an unquoted - public limited company on 18 May 2016, under 
the Companies Ordinance, 1984. The registered office of the Company is situated at Building No. 64/XX, 
Khayaban-e-lqbal, Phase Ill, D.H.A, Lahore. We are providing cost effective Solar solutions for industrial 
and commercial consumer through sale of electricity. 

Atlas Energy has successfully installed Projects of II MW on energy sale and EPC model while 
approximately 7.0 MW projects are in pipeline. 

Currently Atlas Energy have Assets of PKR 335.45 Million and being a part of Atlas Group the company 
has strong relationship with Financial Institutions, as well as ability to execute bigger Projects. 

Vision: 

A leading Company in Solar industry in all respects — providing cost effective 
tailored solutions for industrial and commercial consumer through sale of power, 
Engineering, Procurement and construction (EPC), operation and Maintenance and 
giving attractive return to investors being responsible corporate citizen and employer 
of choice. 

Mission: 

Being Competitive to provide unique, advance and effective solar solutions to 
industrial and commercial customers in safe, reliable and environment friendly 
manner acting with integrity following sound practices with a sense of service in a 
culture that respects and values the satisfaction of our customers. 
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Atlas Energy Limited 

1.1. Introduction 

1.1.1. Atlas Energy Limited was incorporated as an unquoted - public limited company in 
Pakistan on 18 May 2016, under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. 

1.1.2. The registered office of the Company is situated at 641XX, Khayaban-e-lqbal, Phase-Ill, 
DHA, Lahore. 

1.1.3. The Company was incorporated to provide cost effective tailored solar solutions for 
industrial and commercial consumer through sale of power, Engineering, Procurement and 
construction (EPC), operation and Maintenance and giving attractive return to investors. 

1.1.4. The Applicant Company has the financial strength to meet with the requirements of the 
Projects through its parent Company Shirazi Investments Private Limited - parent company 
held 100% ordinary shares of the Company. 

1.1.5. The Applicant Company has three Directors, besides the Auditor and Legal Advisor named 
below: 

• Directors: 
Mr. Frahim Ali Khan 
Mr. Saquib H. Shirazi 
Mr. Maqsood Ahmad 

1.1.6. Membership of Industry & Associations: 

• Lahore Chamber of Commerce & Industry (LCCI) 
• Pakistan China Joint Chamber of Commerce & Industry (PCJCCI) 
• Pakistan Engineering Council (PEC) 
• Alternative Energy Development Board (AEDB) 
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List of Projects: 

Some of our successful completed projects are as follows: 

Sr. No. Category Project Name/ Location Nature of Size of 
Work Installation 

(kWp) 

1.  Industrial 
Honda Atlas Cars Pak Ltd. 
(43 km Multan Rd, Manga, Lahore) 

EPC 497.70 

2.  Domestic DHA Phase-V, Karachi EPC 6.00 

3.  Domestic DHA Phase-V, Karachi EPC 6.00 

4.  Industrial 
Engine Plant 

EPA 589.05 
(Atlas Honda Ltd. 26/27 Km Lahore-Skp. Road, Skp) 

5.  Industrial Pakistan Cables (Nooriabad, Sindh) EPA 7.20 

6.  Industrial 
Parking Sheds 

EPA 405.79 
(Atlas Honda Ltd. 26/27 Km Lahore-Skp Road, Skp) 

7.  Domestic Zaman Park Lahore EPA 12.00 

8.  Industrial 
Subassembly/ Frame Line 

EPA 769.08 
(Atlas Honda Ltd. 26/27 Km Lahore-Skp Road, Skp) 

9.  Industrial 
Component Parts 
(Atlas Honda Ltd. 26/27 Km Lahore-Skp Road, Skp) 

EPA 663.25 

10.  Industrial 
DCC-2 
(Atlas Honda Ltd. 26/27 Km Lahore-Skp Road, Skp) 

EPA 752.40 

Atlas Industrial Park Karachi 
11.  Industrial Plot No. 347A, Shed No 2, 15th Miles, National Highway, 

Landhi, Karachi. 
EPC 864.56 

12.  Industrial 
Atlas Honda Limited Karachi 
F-36 Estate Avenue, S.1.T.E. Area Karachi. 

EPC 96.3 
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13.  Industrial 
Atlas Battery Limited Karachi 
D-I8l Central Avenue, S.I.T.E Area Karachi. 

EPC 301.74 

14.  Commercial 
Atlas Vocational Training Institute 
Sheikhupura 

EPC 72.76 

15.  Industrial 
Stamping Building 
(Atlas Honda Ltd. 26/27 Km Lahore-Skp Road, Skp) 

EPA 215.82 

16.  Industrial 
Honda Atlas Cars Pak Ltd. 
(43 km Multan Rd, Manga, Lahore) 

EPC 970.1 

17.  Industrial 
CBU/SPL Building 
(Atlas Honda Ltd. 26/27 Km Lahore-Skp Road, Skp) 

EPA 2,250.85 

18.  Industrial 
Test Track 

EPA 2,621.45 
(Atlas Honda Ltd. 26/27 Km Lahore-Skp Road, Skp) 

Total Projects Installed: 11,102.05 kWp 
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2. Profile of Management 

2.1. Mr. Frahim Au Khan 

Director 
Mr. Frahim Au Khan has over 50 years of experience in Genera! Management, Finance, 
Investment and Taxation. He graduated in Commerce from the Karachi University in 1965 
and also obtained a degree in law from the same University. He has also attended the Senior 
Managers' Program from Harvard University, USA, Financial Management from Stanford 
University, USA, and General Management Program from Insead University, France. He 
joined the Atlas Group in 1967 and has served in different senior positions. 



Atlas Energy 

2.2. Mr. Saquib H. Shirazi 

Director 

Saquib Shirazi is a member of the Atlas Group. He is currently the President & Chief 
Executive Officer of Atlas Honda as well as the Chairman of Pakistan Auto Manufacturers' 
Association (PAMA). 
He has previously served as Chairman, Harvard Business School's Global Alumni Board 
as well as Chairman, Pakistan Business Council. 
He is currently on the Boards of Pakistan Mobile Communication (Jazz Pakistan), Tn-Pack 
Ltd and National School of Public Policy. He also serves as an advisor to British 
International Investment (B!!) for Pakistan. In the past, he has served on the Boards of 
leading national and multinational companies. 
He graduated from the Wharton School of Finance and has an MBA from the Harvard 
Business School. 

2.3. Mr. Maqsood Ahmad 

Director & CEO 

Mr. Maqsood A. Basraa has been the Chief Executive Officer of Atlas Energy Limited and 
Atlas Solar Limited since 2019 and Group Director Business Development (GDBD) & 
Member Group Executive Committee (GEC) since April 2017. He is with the Atlas Group 
since 1989. He has vast general management experience of working with different 
Companies of Atlas Group. Prior to this, he served State Bank of Pakistan for ten years. 
He has been leading the Accounts, Finance, Management Audit, Logistics, Commercial, 
Human Resource, Administration, Strategy and Government Business Relationship for 
business development for the Group as Group Director before the appointment at present 
position. 

He is the Fellow Member of Institute of Cost & Management Accountants of Pakistan. He 
also did his Masters in Islamic Studies from Punjab University, Lahore and Banking 
Diplomas from Institute of Bankers in Pakistan. He attended Advanced Management 
Program from INSEAD-France. Before that he attended various advanced courses from 
LUMS, MAP, Administrative Staff College and British Council etc. on general 
management and leadership. 
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3(4)(c)(i)(a) * certified copies of certificate of incorporation 

S 
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3(4)(c)(i)(b) * certified copies of memorandum and articles of 
association 

S 



Thi? (oMPlNIt:soRDIN INCE. u')M 

((tl5tPAN t.lMl 11,1) tt SHAKES) 

AR'FICLES OF ASSOCIATION 

01: 

ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED 

PREl .l%ltN.%ttV  

Table '4' nut to 
.1-v. 

Dejinitionr. 

I ) Ow Kegittations conta ned in t able A itt the tic st Sc liedole to I 
C 'ornpauiies Ordinance 1984 shah lint apply to Itte ('nih p.10) ccepi 
in so tar as the>' are repeated or eottta ted in I liese Alleles is 
modi lied arid altered). 

2; hr these Articles, the I.lIowtng words and expressions shall ho' 
meanings as tinder, unless excluded by the stubjeet or the eonteu, 
namely: 

Articles means these Articles OF Assoc at IO or guns II y  trained or as 
altered lioni time to I tune in accordance W utti hue pros' isbn5 01 tIle 
Ordinance and the Articles. 

Board of Directors means colleenvely the Directors ut the ('ornpu1 
holding a 01cc oil )ircctors lir the t june being auud From tine to tunic 

Chairman means the Chairniun ui the Hoard ol' I )irectors uppotuited 
Front time to time purstuant to these Articles, 

Chief Executive means the ('luei Fxecutive Fur the tune being 01 the 
('ompatty appointed thou tine to time lsursluau a in the A Ft ic cs. 

Corn minion 'newts 1 ue Secturil ics tuid I' xchange ('outni ussioli oh 
l'akislan constituted under he Secturitucs acid h:chonec ( ouiutuussi,Iu 
ot t'ak istaut Act. 1997 

(ouiupany uueruuts .4'll..ts l:NI:ttCi l.tl%tl 11:1) 

t)irectors mean Ihe t)tucctors ot the tIiuiulhIui% br Itte iuuuic heiicg. 
inctudung al terutate I )u reel ors Faii>' appoi iced In I h,eu,u 

Div identl joel odes a houit,s. 

General Meeting means ju, Anntt&ul ( icncral Meeting auid.,u .ui 
Lxtraordinary (icrierul Mcetiitg 

Member luicans a Hem her iii the ( 'ouupau I) itlntt the UCitu itn 
clause 21 ol' 'ketioti 2t Ii. 

%leinorandoun ulteauhs the Menijintuidourt oF Ass.ici;itutiui ol 'he 
('oittpaui) as oruginott limed 'it ,is tcouui ttiuuc Ii tine ulteuco 

etirdance with the pros us torts ol t tie ( )rdinunce'auid the Art uc let. 

Month newts a calendar tutotith accnu'diuig to the (iregoriati t'alenhau 

Office means the Registered 001cc üir the time being oF hue 
Coun puny. 

Orthlna net Healths the ('tan panics ( )rdinancc, 11)8.1 bite lttd itig all 
slatutory mod i Heal ions tl tercol' lir the t rn C he hug in three atid sue1 i 

Other law as in ay l'roun I butte to ti tHe 1w passed in s ubstut tic iou' or 
auncuidunent Ihereol 



Public Company 

Prny means .1" instromeni in writ j pig whereby a Metn hem ,tothori, e, 
another to vote lk,r hint a' a tnecling or ulectings anti unless he 
context otherwise itqti I res, Inc I tides an anon tey tin ly consi fluted untici 
it power of attorney. 

itcgislcr nicatis I he It eg ster ol Mciii hers In he kepl jitti soul It to 

Seetiott 147, 

Secuion means a section ut ihe ()rdin,utce. 

Special Resolution has the meaning assigned thereto by clause (Ahl 
of Section 2(I). 

Seal means the cotninmut seal of the (otnpuny. 

Secretary means the Secretary to, the time being ofthe ('ontpany. 

lit writing and written ittelode printing, typewriting, I ititograph 
Elcetrottie transmission, inc I tiding hut I lot inn' ted to Itesitit tie, Ic L'S 
and Electronic mail nr tiny other unechan cal or I leetron i c process. 'is 
prescribed by section 3 of the Electronic iransaeilotts tkdinatice. 
2000 or panly one and partly the other and other modes ot 
represetiting or reproduci ig words in a visible torni. 

ttnless the context otherwise requires, words signitying the sitigulir 
number shall include the plural miniher and vice versa 

I bless I lie eoutlext otherss ise requires, words s igttl lying tltc mascot 'tic 
gender shalt include tile leunhitnsc gender 

Words intportiitg persons slittli uteltide individuals, firms, coinpalties. 
corporations, government slate or agency or any association, Irusi or 
pitrtnership (whet Iter ,lr I iou has' ag a separale I legal personal its 

I he heading and marginal notes arc uttsertcd or coil' cntcuec 'p''. 
aitd shall ttot atlect the lnIL'rpletalulili ii, coitstrlItlloo ol 
Articles. 

l'I lii ,l( ' Ut )%i PA N\  

3) I 'lie (mn putty is a ptthl ic Ii in iled coin pany and I 'IC tIourd ol I )trec 
shall have regard to the restrict iot is on the coin inc neenient of bus' nC's 
nnposed under seci ioti 146 ol' the ( ) rd i mi ice, so tar as ti 
restrict tills are binding upon time ('0111 pat) 

Ill ,SINESS 

fin sines's of hit 4) Any branch or kiitd of business which the Company is ctther expresst 

Company. or by implication anihorised to undertake may be utidcrtaken by lie 
l)trector' at such little ill tones is tiit' shall thing lit, nid ititilici its 

he s tihiered by i hem to he in ibcy alice w hclitcr suelt branch ir Lii id it 
husi tess ny have becit actually coot p tel tccd or not so long us I 
I )i rectoi's may dcciii it expedicut not In eotlt niellee 01 proceed o ii 
sticit branch or kind ol' business. 

StlNl%lt 'NI SI IIS('RIi'h ION  

&Ilninsuns % ) I or the ptirposcs of Sect ion (s8( hi), tie in in HI till p smi hscriptioii to 

subscription which the I oard unity proceed to atom tuent shah I he Its. I ,tll)ti. it 'it 
(Rupees mit million tilily). 

2 



SI lAKES 

No partly paid 
shares to be issueâ 

I sue of shares at 
discount. 

Issue of shares. 

6) Subject to Sect tm 90 and alt) rules iii U at regard vi ode iiitder lie 
Ordinance, -any share in the ('untpaity may he issued with much rigi its 
tuid restrict icits as iitay I null tin, e to nut he delerin 'neil In the 
Company at General Meeting. 

7) Subject to Section 95(4 flit) and any rules in hat regard made under the 
Ordinance, the Company may issor shares which are to he redeemed 
or any other redeemable security, on such Ic ruts aid in such ntatuier Is 

may be provided in the said Section and rules. 

S) Die Cottipany shall nut issue partly paid shares. lit the ease ol .iti 
issue of shares tbr cash, the ,,ntuaitt payable on applic.ttiiut sh.mll he 
tite Eu II no, n inal amount oF the share, except where shares ire I muted 
itt a discount. 

9) With the previous authority ttFt he (utlipiuty iii (teiterol M tt Dig aid 
the sinet ion uI the Coin iii smitH t aid upoit otherwise cut nplyi ng s I Ii 
Ihe provisions oF Section 84. ii shall be lawllil Ilir the Board to Issue 
shares in the capital oF I he tonipaity at a dmscoouit 

10) Ihe shares in the capital ol ilte tontpatiy hir the tune being 
remaaung unissLied, i 'IC hid hg aity new shares rest' ItI itg Irunt nit 
increase in the autltori#ed share capital, shall be under the control 'it 
the Board which nay al hit or otherwise dispose oh' i he sal ite to stic Ii 

omi such terms timid condit it 'us, s ii h such rights taid pr it I leges 
annexed thereto as the reso I ut ion creating the satile slid I direct, a, itt it 
no such di red ion be given, as the lit tard shall dete mt itt eil her at Sit 
or at pretn i on' or sutjec t itt Artek 8 above at a d iset,uitl, lilt jxtn em 
to the Board 10 give auty person thte right to cal I l,r aid h-ic all oiled 
shares oh aity class ii ti he ('onipany at par or at t prei ii ittnt or stihuect 
as aforesaid at a d iseutiit i such opt ion be iit exercisable at soc Ii ii vies 
tuid ut stieh manner and Itir such c,ti isiderat ion, in the Directors tl ii iI 

Power to issue 
shares of different 
eloise,. 

Redeemable shares 
and securities. 

flnnniissiati for 
placing shares. 

Brokerage 

As regai-ds any allot inent oF shares, I he I oa d shall itt' ly eoi uit t 
ttte prov I sit itis tiE Scct iii is OK to 7 I .is mu as he applicable 

12) Ilie Board titit) allot and issLte shares itt the ettpi al ot the ('oIiItsIti 
as paynteni or part pttyinenl Eur any property / assets sold ii 

transferred to Ihe Contpany. or br services rendered to the ('otitpatI 
in the ordinary course ol Its business, and shares so allotted st ii I he 
issued as Fully paid up slttiies aid il so issued, shtl I he deenietl to he 
hilly paid tip shares. 

13) Die Coiiipa,iy lila) ii any little lids it cttniiitissmilit Lu tut' prison 
stibser ibi ng or agreeing itt so hsi. r ttue (wl ct tier ,thsol Li Ic I 
usnditionally) tt,r iuuty shares or dehetitLues oF lie ( tutuipatty or 

lirocuri ng I tr agree ill g  it, proco Ic i hsc r I pt to, Is t n Ite tIer ,uhs, 'I 
co,tdititinal) or Liii) shires or tletxuutL,rcs itt the ( iilitp.itt) . liLtt sti 
the aniottitt or rate of cotniniss,ttut shall fbi exceed sticli ai,ituiiuit ii 
rate as is aathorieed by the I Iti.urd F I) rectors (or such i 01w r 'alt a 
may he prescribed by the ('olatilissiolt under the Ordinance) tO the 
price at which the shares tire issued or oft he noin inal valor ii F the 
tkixiiitire itt each ease subscribed ttr to be subscribed. In case .t' is 
coininissittit is to be paid. flit ('onipany shall comply stitlt tie 
lisi its ol'Seetioit 82 iii the C )rdi,taiice. 

14) I lie Comnpauty nb) pay stielt brokerage as may tie lawtul in respc'tl.i 
any issue of shares ur deheltlttres. 

Allotment of 
thares. 

Shares may be 
issued for 
consideration other 

— than cash. 



Regitratwn a, IS) Not more than ik,ur persons sliatt lit registered is joint shareholders 
shareholders. except in ilie ease of exeeLitors or trustees of a deceased nieinbe-r 

Shares nay he registered in the fiat IC ot' tally 'liii ted coni pill> or 
oilier corporate hady 

Joint shareholders. In) It' any shares stand in the name of two or inure trsms. the persilit 
lirst minted iii the Register ii till, as regards receipt OF I liv death or 
service of not ices and 1t1 I or an) tither 'flatters connected wills the 
Company, except sot lug at the meeting and Ihte traits Icr of shares, be 
dcenie1 the sole hokle 

Death of juins 17) lii ihic ease of the death of .iiiyone or more oh Itte persohls nautical tat 
shareholders. the Register as the unit ltohders oF any share, the ion ivor alt 

survivors shall be the only person or persons recognized by lie 
('onipany as having any title to or interest in such share 

('Ehtrll:l( AlEs 

Members right to IX) Every person whose Haute is entered as a Member in the Register 
certificate. shall be ciii itled to receive alter a I loti neil or reg i stnti itni of trai IS FL-F 

out cert i t'leate tor at I his shares or several eert i Ileates each for one 
mitre oh' his shares upon payment of sLicta eltaige, it' ally, as the Iloat 
hay determine Ibr every certil'teate alter the lush. 

Issue of t 9) In aieeordatnce with itie applicable I ,tw s, the cert i licates oh' title to 
certificates. shares and duplicates tIsereot when necessary, shall be isstied uniter 

tt;e Seath of the ('oni pail) and signed by one I) rector .Ii Id 

eotiiitersigtied by the ( oiiipaut) Secretary or such otlicers ot lie 
t'oiiipany as shall 'ron, time hi time he authorized by the hitiard tar 
the ptirpose. Every uitrsoi whose na no is entered its a Iii em 'Kr ill 
Register shah I, withotit payment, be cut ii led to receive wi tti n iii dr 

(90) days after ti Ilontieni • or tii bin flirt> - his e (45) days uI it 
application for registiatitut at tratisher, tine (I) cerlilicate tor till the 
shares oh each class regusleied it ttts mule, ot ii lie 13ttaad 
approves to several cethilicattes each tot tale (I) ill inoteol 
shares. I however, itt respeel oh' etch add iii' utah Ce it I itc,ite. I he liii. at 
shath he entitled ho chtirge 'itch ice •ts 0 flay detenutite, titatn the I,, 
ti ate. I very eert t lieate ol shares shall spec 'I y lie 'thin her ii il 
denot tug nttinbers of the hares In respect of whic Ii it is i stated and the 
wnoutlt paid op thereon. the ItoarLt may, by lesolutnitt, determine 
cii icr general I y or in ally pttri Ic ta hair ease. thai ttie s i gnattire of u' 
sLteh Di hector or o ulcer uI the ('oinpany flay he a ttl ed oil sit,,' 
eerlihieates by some oteehitnical or eleelronic neal's, or he ptinted 
thereott, ni the mode aid manlier speeitied in such testilotioti. 

('ertifhates in the 21)) I lie ('*1111 puny slial I not he boni itt hit is sac "to' e i ban tine cc rt i hicatir at 
case of joint respect It f a share Or shares held itt 'it I> by iv ii at r mote tiersolis all 
holders. delivery aifti eernlieuic 11w a share ho Inytille at die ,ti,tt tiohalers shall 

lx' sattlicieni delis cry tat 

Time for issue of 21) t tnless the conditions of issue ot ally shuisues, debentures or debent ate 
cerWficates. stock oh' I lie ('oni IXtit) titheri i se io'  tie. I lie I oili paUiy sital t i thu 

ninety days aller the 'at lotinent and wit bin forty the days ahle r retell 
by hit ('otnpany ol' tite appl ieai ion br trails Icr of any stteh shai c s. 

debenitires or debetiture stock, complete and have ready hiw deliver 

the eert i hieate of all shares. I lie debent tires ti id the cc rt i tic tile ol all 
debenture stock allotted or trituls Icr red, and unless sent by post tr 
do Ii vered to the perst in ettttt led ii tere to vs ii in ti the pond a foresaid lie 
('onipany shall ian nied, ately hereatle r give tot ice to that pe rsoit F It 

the ntanner prescribed in these Articles tiw the giving oh' tiotices tat 
Me,iibcr, that the ecrtit'tente is reads for delivery. 

4 



tow o, nruiilated 22) Ii a ceriil'tcate of shares, dchcnitires or tlehenture stock is proted to 
enilficutex.	 the satisfaction of the ('utupany In have been lost or destroyed or, 

being defaced or, imitilated or torn, Is sttrrendered to he Collipan) 
and the ('ounpan> is retjttesled to issue a new eertitite in 
replacement Ihereol, the Company shall, after making such enquir> .ts 
it may deem lit, advise I he appt icanU wiLl) in thirty days (mm the tlaic 
of application the terms and conditions (as to tmidemn nil) ,o Id 
othenvise and as to payment ol' the actual expenses incurred on such 
enquiry and of a tee not exceeding one rupee) on which he t'omnpain 
is prepared to issue a new cerlilicate and a time hbr compliance 
therewith or ut the reasons why the Company is imable to issue a iic. 
cerliticate, as the case may be, md in the liwcner case if the applitauit 
shall within the time allowed comply with the terms autd conditunts 
specihicd, the eompan> shall issue a new certiticate to die applk.nit 
within Forty-live days front the date oh application. 

ll(ANSllK OF SihAhilts 

Execulion of 23) No transl'er shall be registered tuihess a proper instrument of tratislcr 
ftansfr,. together with the certilicate(s) of shares has been delivered 10 Pic 

t'ontpany. The instrument of transfer of act> share shall be sigm cd 
th by the transl'eror and the transferee and the transt'cror shall he 

deemed to rentaiti holder of the share omit i I die nanny of the trans le 'cc 
is entered in the Register in respect thereof. 

Eons, of transfer. 24) (I) The instrument of transfer of any share shall be substantiall in 
the Ibi lowing Ibrin or as near t hereto as C ircuni stances II 
admit: 

411 AS Liitk(, I IMItLIl 

ol u,n.tiidaai'w. 'I ho •uo.ot K,apco, lit, 
- u.ifl aiJ mu I,,, ul tho l,.usi.icct J lcly 

to I m.tslc,oc ml.. .coIaonthocd 
ia.li.o,os 'a Al lAs ENI,K\ t Ml tEl) lul,ohi 'aim. iho lmantc, i,.u.co.Iu., uj.u, ,a'oi.,. ad 
4ioirIl,.ojctml,Jitoc ,c,o,.i .,,.l,m,an.,, al,l. 
.,Ji tic l,a,,iui to. Jul., do ue,r I,,' llpuupJ 

A. th,lotfl nut tuna. iii. 

S. it 'a 
Nun,. 
(Nit No 
hilt AJdmcn 

wit hiss 

(ii) livery instrttmenl of transfer shall be hell at the ollice It 

ngistralion, accompanied by he certilicate of the shares ti he 
transferred, and such other evidence as the Board may reqal ITC 

to prove the title of the transferor or his right to transfer tie 
shares, and ttpon payment of the proper lee, the transferee skull 
he registered as a tuember itt respect of stielt shares. The Ii. aid 
may waive tile prodttetion of any cerlilicate ujxim' evidence 
satisfactory to them uI its loss or desiruct ion. 
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Refusa! to register 25) the Directors shall 001 rcltisc to legister ml) triuistcr ot hilly ptod up 

tronsfe,. shares ui less I he tst rome it ut transfer is tic led i e i ir liv aId or is iii 

dec08' flU0 led by the cert ii tte of shares to which It relates or title to 
non-payment oF a fee, I am,v. as prescribed by the Board o I t ) 'icc lois 

tie Directors hut) also decline ti recogllit.e anY istruttieuit of tr.iits let 
titiless it is accolnptinted. iii itddhliOhi to the certilicate of shares to 
which it relates, by such other evtdcitccs as the 1)1 rectors iii> 
reasonably requite it, show the rigtii oh tt;utsleior (ii ntake the II zmmstei 

the i)treeturs iltity, Ott siteti terttis and subject to such ctttsdttiotts, 
itteltiditig without liltilt,mtitui tile suhmission ol tndentnttici, as the 
Directors ni ay in itiei r abso I Lite sit scret lisa, detertn Inc. w a I' e tic 

requirement l'or I tie product I on o I' any cc rt I (kate tipt II cv isle tee 
satisfactory to theta of its loss or dest r ttdtitihi - 

If the Hoard re tiises ho register a traats Icr nï s tate s, it shall w 'liii' t III 
(ttt nj days or such tit tier period as tidy be req o red by ttte appt Ic ,tile 

laws, a tier the date on I tick the i list rLiitten t ut transfer was tiitt ged 
wit It the Company, send to the transferee and the transferor ni it ice Ii 

writing oh the iv Ilisal id eating the tie ted or inval kttty to I 

transferee, who sttatt after rehnlivat til such detect or invalidity. he 

entitled to re-lodge the Inst runsent of' t ratister with ttic Coot p  Ut 
I:ttrihennore, ttte Di rectors hail not incur any I iahi Ii ty br. itt 
bonabde manner, registering or act tg upon it transler of shaie,. 
alt bough the static ntuy, by reason of any I raud or oilier cause mill 
known to the Directors, he legally lltnperattvc or insufficient to 
the property in the shitres proposed tir professed to he tritlislerred, intl 
althougtt the transfer in dy, as between tl te trails feror aitd t rmsteree he 
liable to be set aside, and itotwiltistanding that tue Directors lila> lttt 
notice that suet, inst ni acm it of trans (Cr 'v,s signed or flee utetl ii 
delivered by the trans lertir in blat tk as to t lie i attic o t' ttie I rails Ic ret' t II 

the particulars of the shares transt'erresl, or oltierwise itt theist II' C 

inanttcr. 

Register 010W 26) (itt giving seveti days ttiitlr noiiee. lie trattster hooks atttl lie tli-gttcr 

be rio ted. tttit he clused during suet, tlttte as lie tottd ut I)iieeiutrs ttnttk it. 
exceeding the whole Itirty-lise diii s iii each 'ear liii mitt cscccthiu 

i ny di ys -,ti a Li tie 

FltANS%ItSStON OF ltl'AaSlEItLU SIIAKFLS 

Nonsinees, 27) ike executor or adtttinisirtttor of ii deceased titelit her or 1t pen iii 
executor, notn mated tinder Sect tilt KU or the tto tder of a si iccess liii dci t I ti e,ite 
administrators and shatt be t tie otily PC rsoits recLig In zed by it te (.'oiit patty as hittv Hg it,> 

heirs. tille to the shares, except iii c1hes ofjoini'ttoldcrs, in whmett case lie 

stir" lYing holder or holders, or the e ecu tor or atl lii ill st rittor ut tic 
lust surviving holder shall be the out!> per°i diluted ii, he sit 
rcco$ii ized. I lie Company dial I not he ho tuid to recogi u ze Nut ii 
executor or adtn in istr,ttnr tutless the e seciti or or aditi iii strattli sit 

tate ohtaoted probate or hcimcrsoi tdl,,ttllsmratioll ot tilttct 
tcprcscntation, is the case ni.t) he. titan a emit tot coinpetelit 

jurisdiction provided nevertheless hat in special cases as deterni tied 

by the Hoard, it sl tall be law itt br t lie I kard to dispense vi tlt tie 
production of probate or tette rs of ad lii ill' strati oil or stick tither leg ii 
represent at ott. nc I tid I fig a sLtecessuon ccitt hicate, upon stick term 
to i ndetn in fy or otherw se as ttte t bard ni ty deem lit. 

Right of person 281 (a) Atty person becoming etitil ted in shares in consequence ot lie 

emit/al by ileatlt or death itr insolvency ot' the Itohsler of stuelt shares. stiat I tune t 

insolvency, right, subject to v-c ri heat sill by the Board and on givtng ii 
indemnities as may he required, to ieee iv e and give at dtsctimrgc tir 
any Dividend or oilier Honeys payable or oilier adv antagcs art a hg 
in respect of Ike stia res to iv hi cit lie wottld be cliii tIed (tie "crc 
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Power to increase, 
consolidate, sub-
divide and can ccl 
capital. 

Ranking of new 
shares. 

the registered holder ut the shares, hut he shall ha c no rig lit to 
receive notice siC ,tticiid or vole at iii) coca al Mceiiitgs or ('a' 
as aforesaid) to any one ol die a igld UI privileges of Mcitthcrs iii 
respect tat' the shares, titdess and ito til he is i timed iiii t Ic Keg tel 
as ,s holder ihcrcoll 

(h) Ike 1)1 rectors sht II have I he saute ri gin to dcclii Ic or stispci ad 
regisi rat in as the> Wit old have I tad in the ease of a trails icr u tic 
share by that Member beFore his death or insolveitcy as the 
may be. 

,%l,lLRAt'IdJN (.11" ('Ai'il'At. 

29) the Company na> h> ordinary resolution and stthjcct to comnpi iaie 
with the reqinrenlents oF Section 92: 

(a) increase the autitor ted share eatpiia I by such stint, to be diV I. Ic J 
into shares of sLick alttt,unt, as the resolution shalt prescribe: 

(hi consolidate and di' dc its haav cap i tisl vito still res ii Ia' e I 
amoulit than its exist hg shares; 

(ci by suh'div i don OF t ts exist ittg shares or aii of them, div-ide lie 
whole or any pall of its share capiiai Into shares of sinai Icr 
ainotiiit than Ii xed by the Mcitiorandti tti ; and 

(di ('ance I itmty shares vvh ich, at I he date oh the passing of I he 
resolution have not been taketa or agreed to he takeit Ii> .iia 
person and dint a iii sit the aittounm oF its share e api tah by the an to it ii 
of i lie shares so cancel led. 

I tic Board via> ti-oitt t nate to t I Inc increase the issued share capital 
such stint as they th uk ti t I tirther issue ma F shares shia It he carried 
In accordance wiih the prmvisiutls ot Ike I )rdmn,tncc Pros tied hit 
Iractional shires shall tot be olicred and all frictions less tlutn a 'hue 
shah I be conso I idated attd disposed oF by I lie & out p'>  and it ac 
proceeds lrotn such dtsposinon shall he paid to a charitable institution 
or as decided by ihe Board oft )treciors. 

3 I) I xcept so tar as tithe rw ise P"  i tied Is> the condit ions of Issuc, 01 by 
tltese Articles, any c.tpital raised by the creatiomt oi' new shames shall 
be consider-ed pan oF he origitial capital, ranking pan passu with the 
existing shares, and shall he suhieci to the prov iskiiis tie te in 
contained wilh retèn,nce to translr and lransniission, and otherwise. 

Offers of shares to 30) 
e.v'i sting ,tlen,ben. 

Reduction of 32) Subject to Section 96, the (unipan> may, hy Siwcial Rcsohttaiuii. 
capital. reduce is share capital in •imty ittaittiei consi stemfl wilt t lie l.tw. 

Pniver to n:ol4Jj' 
rightv 

Share premium 
IW(OSSISI. 

33) Vartat ions of I he shard IO Ide rs riu his may he e ltrcicd hy lie ti nor nv 
in aceortlaitce vv ttlt lie provisions ii Section 1(18 

34) I lte share prem I inn accotint tutu ti tat ned pot stnint to Scel toil 8 ii 
may, Ft applied by the ('onipany 

(a) in writ log ii If the prel ni mary expenses of the ( otfl pail>: 

(h) in writing oIl the cxpnses oC or t he contim t is,ittii paid or it sc,,', 
allowed oat, iiii) issue of shitres or dclx itturcs of the & 't liii pin fl 

Ic) in providing For I he preni 111111 pay-able on the rede in Pt ton ot vi'. 
redeemable prelirence shares or debentures of the t 'uinipany or 

Id) in paying tip onissued shares of the Company to he issumcd as I ill ly 
paid bonus shares. 

7 



GLNI:I4AI. NlF:tcrlN(;s 

Statutory Meeting 35) [he statutory general nceting of the cotupitny shall he held withtn lie 
period required by section I 57 

Annual General 36) A General Meeting. dcsignaled as the Annual General Meeting. slull 
Meeting.	 he held in accordance ii ith the prov sloth tit Section 158, wututi 

eighteen Months flout the date of its iitcorporation of the Cot n pan> 
and Ihereafler once at kast in every calendar year, within a period it 
Ibur M intl hs fbi low tug the close ol each lii tatte al year o I the 
Company, hut in such maimer that nit Annual General Meeting is held 
ut every calendar year and not itt ore tim n Ii Itceut Moi iii is e lapses 
hetween any two consecutive Anitual (icocral Mecitmugs, and snhci, 
to the above, each sue It A ititmiat (idle ral Meet tug shall he lie Id at tic Ii 
time as iii ity he dctertn ii ed by the I hoard, ft niess ot hers. sc al ls,s ed 
by the ('ontntission. A al (ieuteral Meeiings shall he lieU ni he 
town in which ihe (1111cc is simuaied. and each stmch Annual General 
Meeting sltull he held ti such location in that town as the Board t,ta 
deierittine. 

Other meetings. 37) Alt (ieiteral Mectittgs other than Annual ( eiteral Meetings shall he 
called lxlraordiimry General Meetings. 

£ctruonllnary 38) '[he Roani nay, whenever they think hit, "all au I ,siraurdm,u 

General Meeting.	 General Meeting and Fxtraordinary General Mcctittgs sttall ntso he 
called oit such req Lii sit toil, 'r it de litu It, inn> he cal led by soc Ii 
reqttisitioitists, as provided lbr h> Section 159, 

NOtICE (IF (;ENEIL¼I. %IF:ElIN(;s 

Notice of 39) (a) Notice of a (icnerttl Meeting shall he scill lit the maimer 
meetings.	 herein a 11cr uncut jotted al teast twenty one days be Ibu c the date nit 

which I he intel i ng is to he coil ci cd to a11 sue It persotis as tic 
under these Articles or ilic ( lrdntuicc entitled to eceise slit It 
notices li'omtt the Ctiiiipauty and sltimll sllecuty ttte phuce. cli> .tmmd 
hour of the maccling and tlte itattume cii the htisntess to he trtttsa ted 
thereat. 

(h) In the case of a' t enterge ncy a fleeting the hits ii iess of lie 
Coin pany an Es traord i nary ( kite rat Mccli ng in a> he convened In 
suelt shorter itot ice I hait that spec i lied in An tc Ic 39 Ia) above nit d 
as the Kegistntr of ('c tin panics may aut ltori,e. 

tel Where any spec at husi itess, if tat us to say httsu utess tiltier t liii 
consideration ol' I lie itccoou ti s, hal alice sheet and the repori s of tIe 
I )ireetors ,utd A tid itors, the declat at tin cit Ii idei,d, ttte 
appointilteill aitd tiatio,m of the ieitttmncrancni ol Attdttors,otd time 
eleetioi t 01' I )trectots loll such in alters hei uig ftc rent retrred lo is 

ortlunar> business) ts to he ti.ti,saetcd it a C iei,ei,tl \lecntmur. hem 
shall he attiteseil to time ittilice cii scielt ittceimiig 1 staiet,tei,l setlmm, 
ttttt all stielt tilcis as inn> he nmatermil Ilir the e.tuistcteratttin of st,cii 

business including I he nattire and es temtt of the i nierest I si ltct tic r 
direct or indirect) of any Director, and where die ilettt of business 
involves approval of any document, tIle time and place appoitited 
lbr inspect ion tltereo C and to the cx me itt applicable sue Ii a 
statentent shaft he anitesed In I he not ice also in the case it' 
ordinary business It, he Iraitsacted at the nteet i ttg. 

(d) Where a resol ul mu is i mended to he proposed I ttr cc tits tderat icit I at 
a (jeiteral Meeting ut soitic special or partictttar l,riti, a copy 
iltereot' slta II be ttnitexed to the mc t tiec eonveti ittg soch umtectt,tg 
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()misri an to 
give notice. 

Quorum. 

(ci It a Special Resoltittun is intended to he passed a a ( icitetal 
Mccl n. the not ice coilven lug that fleet log sisal I sped I y I lie 
inlent lou to propose the resoln' ion as a Special Re sol 'it ion 

fl A not ice l'or a ( iei teral Meeting coity ened br the e tecta., i iii 
I )ireelors shut I state I lie iitti'i her of 1)1 reelurs In he elected at H 1,11 

mccii Hg and Ike DailIes ot ihe retiring I )irecli Irs 

(g) Ilie 11011cc ot C Cr) ( lettered Meeting stied I prom ii lent I) 515cc II) 

Illeit a proxy thy he appoinied its shill I rye the i gilt 10 at tci iii. 
detllantt atid join in tkinauidiisg a poll and vote oil a poll and speak 
at the ntecting in place of the Mctiiher appontling him amid sinaI1 
he accompanied Iss a lbrns of proxy acccptehk to the ('oinpany 

40) flit accidental (sill i ssioi I to give not ice of a mcdi tig to. or the 'oil - 
receipt of not lee of a mccl ing by. any person entitled to rece k-c no' it c 
dial I t invalidate the proceed iitgs at thai nteet log. 

l'ltori*:UINGS Al cF:Nl:RAl. %IIiI:llN(;S  

41) No busnitss shall he tretnsaeted at any (lettered Meeling omliess a 
quorum is pre at at the 'line when the Intel ng proeeetts to ht,si es' 
save as herein othertt sc provided (unless specified otherwise in time 
)rd Iniulee) at least I WI) MCIII hei s present ni person or by pu 

representing i\enty-liv e per ccItt 2 'u) ut the total voting pii er 
shall be a quortant. 

A (5)111 ptiit be ig it nieittl'ier of the ('oliilhusy amid present ii' 
rcprescultativc dttly .mpponlled ta pursu-attee of Section I b2. shall he 
deemed to he a Mcnlhcr present personally lbr the of his 
Article. 

I_ark 42 ) II will till hull an hour t'ronl the Ii inc appointed tbr the tneet in g a 
of rpsvrutn. quorum n°I preseni. the meet Dig, ii cal led upon the req tiis iii In 1 

MCIII hers, shall be dissolved; ill any other cast, ii shall si 
adjotirned to the same day ill the oeM 'seek it lilt-  .ttIte nine intl 
place, and, 1 at the ,md1ouritcd tllcenilg 0 (pIth (liii is lilt 1srt'sdtt nil! iii 
half au hotir front the lame appoulled br tile tneelilg ilte Mestitici 
Pe5mI. hci ig not tcs mhi.mmi shalt he" qolirtilml 

Chairman of 43) lIe ( hatrtnan, r Hlly (IF tile It, sord ol 1)1 rectors shlal I presick' as 
meeting. ('hairmall at every (leiteral Meeting IIF the ('otilli.ttiy or it Iltere is liii 

such ('huirnian or if lie shall miot he present within tilkeen (15) 
ni lilIes atler the nine appoitited Ibi tlte itolding of the meeting itt is 

011W ilhimlg to act, any o tie oF 'lie I )ireelors pr cxc itt in ay he elected is he 
(hairtuati ol tile tmteetiitg, or if lu ditecutir is preset. ot it all the 
Directors presettt dechtne to make the cltair, the Meiilbcrs prcseitt situ 
choose one ot their mitemnhers to he (hairtna,l uI iltc IimeetIilg 

While chair 44) No business skill he discussed am any (ieneral Meetntg except lie 
remains vacant, election of a chatrtnan so long as tile chair ts ati,tlt. 

Derision an 451 (I) At a General Meet t 11g. a resoi ill toil put to ilte tIle ill the 111cc ii g 
resalusionr.	 shall he decided on a sitow of hands unless a poll Is (hetbre or 

the declaratioit of tile show of kinds) delnandetI 

(a) by i he chai rotait of tile meet 11g. or 

(h) by at least one M eiti bet prescilt iii person or hy pot'' il 
not iliore thait se veil sOds ulleilllsers are t5crsoilab h prese Ii, 
and by Iwo soch itleinhers preseilt in or by istox 
maitre ii taut seveil sod t ille nthers Lire personal I y pteseni s' 

(ci by any Member or Meutthers lwesent in persott or by proxy IullLIi, ig 
101 less than ulile-te ttth of it ic issued etipi tat w Inch carries visit' ig 
rights. 
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(ii) I bless a p.s11 tic demanded, at any (icrtcral Mccttiig a declarataio 
by the ('hairunan ol the niecting that a iesoiulioii has on a slto's il 
hands heci carried, or carried unattli nously, or by a pat cu tar 
niajority, or lost and an entry to that effect in the hook conlainiug 
the at i nile s of the miceed ings oh the ('thu flatly slial I until lie 
contrary is proved, hc evidence ot he lac I wit lit iii prooliii lie 
number or proportion of the soles recorded us l'avtinr olin agsiIiit 
such resolution. 

Ma utter o_/'taking 46) Ii a pull is dciii aided. ii Thai I hc taken in accordancc nih 
of polL prov tsl tilts ut Sect nit I IsK anti the resu It ol I tic poi I dual I he ike is cd 

to be the resolution oF he itieetiilg at wInch tile poll was demanded 

cmthig vote. 47) Every q tuestiisti stihin i tted to a meeting shall he decided n the li 
tustanee by a show ol hand and in ease i F equali t> oh s-sites. I 

Chill Em sin sitithi, both Oil 51 slit in (IF hands said at the po11, has a 

castig vote n add it iou to I lie tote or votes to wItch I IC 1114) tic 

en! itkd as a Member and/or proxy or corporate representative- 

Timing of pulls. 48) A poll detn anded i in he elect ion o I a ('It airman or on a qtlest tIll oI 

adjourtitttenl sll-a II he take it orthiw it h. A poll dciii aiided ott ally oil Cl 

quest ions shall be tstken at such tilts e, no I he ing tttore than lourtcei 
days li-out the day on ss It ic Ii tl te poii is demanded. as the Clan rinan oF 
the fleeting directs, 

Rosiness assay 49) the demand ot a poll shall sit prevent he continuance of the iitcc iii ig 
proceed lir the transact kin of sitty hosoiess other thus the quest ton ott Iitc it 
noswithxta siding poll tta,s been deniattdcd. 
,lentand ofpull 

Right to vote, 

Procedure where a 
can,palsy is IS 

1 leather iaf' the 
('ossipany. 

VOTES (IF %IEMttERS  

SO) Subject to any special rights or resl ri etions as to itt in g opt iii Ii cli 
ally share in sty be lssued sir utsi> or I lie It rite be i rig he held, on i shto'' 
of ltaiid ever> Member pieicui in persort intl being a holder it 
rd nary shares shall hia e tItle I I ) tote and e 5Cr> per tlil prce ni t 

general proxy who is 11(11 a Mciii her of I lie ( 'oiti pta) or who i 
Member not qualilied to suite on behalf of a holder or holilets iii 
ord nary share shall has e sine I I I vote (tflLI upon a pu1 es cry Me tither 
present in person or by P rot y shall I i,tv e stile I t I vote lü r Cs er> tsar 
held by hun in respect of which lie is entitled (Li sote. 
In ease of all elect iou or reinov al oh a Ut rector, the provisions 
Sect till I 78 and An ide (t K said 69 respect i sd shall apply. 

SI) Where a corn pan y or oilier corporal ion is a Mci n her of the Corn pail 
a person duty appointed to represent ucl i con' pans at a ii ucet ii ig ii I 
the ('onipany in accordance wit Is the pros is on 5 of tIle C I rdi tort 
slsa It not he decai ed to he a pa ix so id sIsal I be ci itt tIc to exercise lie 
sstlii C powers slit helm I of I lie ('11111 party or corporal ithil s Ii Ic Ii 
rcprcseitis is hat ciiirqsatt> or cttulsoiahiori could exercise ii Ii 
individual Mettihcr of the ( 'stinparly. present in persstir ic 

product ott be lore or at the mccii ng of st copy ol sttch rest, kit lois d it!> 

signed by sstie director or secretary of such coitupany or corporal ''n 
and ecrt i lied by him as tici uig si true ci ipy of I he rcso I ttti oii shah I lie 
accepted by the ('ontpaiiy as sit Ihicient cv idcoec of the valid it> o I } is 
appou ni utient. A company or corporal ion Ii eli is a Klein her of I Ite 
('oni patty hut wIt icli is not resident it I istai i illay app.i nil 
representative as a litresatd by liicsi sri Ic t ran sin i ss ion w Ii ich ii 
purporiing to be scull hiy soch company or corporal oil, seed tot tic 
ceittlied as a true copy is sitincsstisl 
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Voting shores in 52) (in a pa1 I • a Lvi ember eni ii ted to more I han one nit teed not, i he 
,lifferent ways. votes, use all his stiles, ir east alt 11w votes he uses iii the saute wan 

fumE holders. 53) to the case of joi it holders. the vote ol the senior titilder vese  lit, 
whether in person or Ii> proxy, shalt be accepted to tie exclusion it 
he voles ut Ike other joint holders; and for tlti por;isc selilcir it> 
shalt be deterni I ned by 'itt order iii which their names stand In the 
Register. 

Member of 54) A Member ut t'nsottnd in tnd. or n respect of whom all ordej ttas been 
unsound sniurt made by any court hay ing .1 urusdiel kiii in lunacy nay vote, w lieu lieu tin 

a show of' hands or on pa1t, by his coin unit tee or oIlier legat gLut rdr a' 
and any such coin iii itlee or guardian nay, on a poll, 'ole Iiy prx> 

Objections iv 55) No objection shall be raised to I he qu.tl i lication of any cuter e xcelt at 
Votes, the uileel ilig or ad jour ted nieetnuig at a Itich the stite ibjeeted 'ii is 

given or tendered, iund every vole 'tot tI isallowed it sue Ii I 'teen, 
shall he valid for all ptirptiscs. Any stick ohjecuuoii in ade in due time 
shall he referred to the (hairunan sif the meeting. vlaisc dee stoin ,htl I 
he tinal and conclusive. 

Votes 56) On a poll, voles may he given either personally including aitlitnin 
by proxy. lim itat ion a represcntati ye uI a coin paliy or corporation aid ho ri/ed 

wider Article SI oIthese Artueles) or by proxy 

P>oxy to be in 57) llie itistrunient appoiun i isg a proxy slut II be in ssriting tuide r I tie liii id 
writing, of the appointer or of Ins attorney duly authori eed iti writing, or, ml the 

appouiler is a corporation, cit her tinder seat or nuder t lie hand tnt ri 
ollieer or attorney dtly atttliori,ed. A proxy need not be a Member nil 
the Conipatty. 

instrument 58) the iuistrunieflt appoinl hg a pus> and the power of atttou icy or nnttter 
appointing proxy to authority (ii' any) tuuivter which tt is signed. or a iiotari.tlty cerlitleil 
be deposited, copy of that power or authority, shall he deposited at tIne ( )ltice tot 

less than ftirly eight tours helore tile tunic tor holdung tIne liueetininz .11 
which the person nanned in he imislrttiuciit iro1xises lii ote, antI ii 
tic fault I lie I uistrunscnnt ti I pro ss shall fbi he treated as sat I md 

bonn ui/proxy. 59) Au i nstrtnttent appon riling a proxy shatl t, as ite aily as ci lttltrist,lm 
will adnttil, he in the tillowing 1rni or in any other brat wInch lie 
Board may approve: 

AlIAS I:NKItCY l.lNltlEl) 

"I/We  being a nnen*cr of A It AS LNLIt(iY 
l.IMHFl) and entitled to voles, dii hereby apponnil 

- - - ot' - làihng lunn. 
01' - - - as lIly/our pioxy to smite for Ine'tns ,tuid out uiy tour 
belrntl at the Anotmi or txtuaortlinary (as the case ninny tie) ( ieoenal 
Meeting ui t lie ('onipany to be held tin the - da 

21) oid 'ii ally .ntlt,Itnmliiiett ttuercot 

Signedhy Inc this _day of -- - -- - 2t) -- 

(Sign at tiit ol Memim Iser) 
Witness to tite Signal tire: 

ittlt Nntune & Address: 

Proxy stray denusnib hI)) 1 lie instrulil clii ntppn uniting a prosy dial I he deettied to con er 
psit1, authority to de mind ta join in dentatud i hg a pal I - 
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Rei'ncation of 
authority 

61) A vote given in accordance with the 'cnn ol at, Inst ruin cot ii p1 • 

shall he valid notvithstanding he previous dealh or insanity of he 
prnicipal Or rev neat liii, OF the proxy Or ol the ,tti I hon ty ui ide r i Itch 
Ihe proxy was executed or the traitskr iii ihe shares in respect ii 
which the proxy is gicn. pro' ided hat ito inlinualutu ii writing iii 
such death, in sanity, re' ocation or trill, icr as a loresaid slial I It ase 
been received by the (onipany at the 0111cc he litre I lie 
commeticcinenl of the titeeting or adji mmcd Ineetitig di sli ich 
proxy is tused. 

Ill ltl'A '10145 

Number of 
Directors. 

First Directors. 

Carnal vacancies. 

Eligibility for 
election as 
Director. 

62) I lie in tn rn urn number of I )ircctors 1)1 the Company shall be tin cc 
The Board shall lix the no at ber nFl )ireetors oF the Con, patty not later 
uhan thirty live days bcii,re convening of I he General Meeting at 
which Directors are to be elected, and Ihc number Sn Ii sed sliatll at 

be changed except with prior approval of the (ieticral Meeting ol 
('urn pany. 

63) llte last I )i rvctors o I t lie ('tiuti pan) shall be as liii lows. 

I, Mr. .Sitqoih iltusstiirt Shirat,i 
2. Mr. Fmahini All Kiwi, 
3. Mr. Maqsood Ahntcd 

64) Subjeel to the prov skirts of these Articles ,ut.l the Ordinance, tie 
l)ireeturs shall he elected by the Members in General Meeting. 

65 A l)trector elected by the Members in General Meeting shall hold 
oluice fur a period ot I hree cars lo I low n ig the date iron' wIt cli lit 
election is eiThctive unless he resigns earlier, becomes disqualilied 
frotit being Director or olherwist ceases to hold 0111cc. 

66) A fly ens vial v,e ancy nec orring alit. ig the I )i rectors nt ty be Ii ted op 
In the Directors, and it iWNOti Mi mppoi rued sItu1' tnl kohl ofliec lou 
die remainder of the Icrin of the I )IrccIor iii whose p1tcc lie is 
appoi tied, Ike ('ounpatly shall, prior to every stmch uppo i nine iii. 
secure in the than prescribed liir itt is put pose lie sit set Ii It it 
cert tticate of I he person conceni ted coitscittttig to act as a Director at 
cen it'y ung that he is not tile I igihlc to become a 1)1 rector atnd slit Ii 
within fourteen days ol' his'appoinutnetit lilt such consetit with the 
Registrar ol'Contpanies as rcqtmured by Section 184. 

67) 1 he Members in ( ici cml Mcciii tg sital I e teem the I i rectors In. nit 
amongst persons who. not beiu ig tie I igible in 'accordance with Sect toil 
187, tiller then, selves br elect ion Its I i rectors in accordance . tilt tins 
Arnele. Any person cl .uiiti ag to be eligible w ho des lies to ti ci 
himself fur election sliiill, wheihcr he is a curing I )irecior or not. lile 
wit h I lie ('ontpany not I liter I bait iburucen days be ibre I he date 01 tiC 
ku it rd Mccii ng ii wit ic Ii I )t nec t ors are to he Icc ccl, a tot ice urn'',. 

being eligible. intend> pu 'ller httttselt kin cicctint as a Dttcctoi ii 
that tneet ing and that lie coutsen Is to act lb a I I rector il elected ii 
stich person is elected a I )i rector, then the ('out patty sl tall Ilk its 
eonsettl to act as a I )ireelor with I he Registrar of ('oiti lxtn es w Itt in 
lintrteen days of his election as reqtured by Seclioti 184. A rrsIr 
offering himself kw election as a Director nay withdraw his 
eauididatttre aI any time belbre the holding of the election and 'uta' do 
so by w iihdraw lug Ike nu it tee ul wit ich he oliered Ii iutse Ii liii elect 'lip 
Not later than seven days hciore the date of the uneetiiig. tic 
tom patty will ittin t y tl it Members oi tite persons o tiet ii ig titci misc es 
fur eketton as I )trcciors at sotli nreenog. 

Election of 
Directors. 

Period of office of 
elected Directari. 
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Proc ccli, rein, 
election of 
Directors. 

.4!teriiate 
Directors. 

68) I he provisions ol 'his Article shail I apply lot I he election Ill I ) 'ccl.' is 
by the Mciii hers in ici eral Meeting froni among si the can,! id0ie 
eligible kir election, namely: 

(a) every Member present iii persomt or by proxy shall have such 
number ol votes iii is equal to the product o I I he 'lull ihcr of sliiij Cs 

carrying the right to vole he Id by I "iii .i,id I he ntitnbe r uI 1)1 red. rs 
to be elected; 

(h) the number of votes calculated in accordance with ihe pneed1ng 
clause (a) may be given to t single c and i date or lila) be div tied 
between any Iwo or 'litre catid i dates ill such Itialiner as I he per so'' 
voting may choose-, and 

(c) the candidate Ito gets lIe highest 1111111 her o I otes shall 
declared elected as Director and then the candidate who gels lie 

next highest ntinther of votes shall be so dcc hired al td so on ii 
the total number oF Directors to be elected has been so elecied. 

69) Die Company in General Meeting nay remove a Director lmiit oil 
by a resolution passed w uI, the requisite iiornher of sotes deternii, 'i 
in accordance w jIlt the l)rov  isions of Sect i,in 18 I 

70) the quali fleal Ion 0 I' a I) rector, except I or a noun inee tinder Sectini 
183 or a Director covered by the proviso to Section I K7t Ii) shall 
holding of a share tn Ilte Company ol the nominal tlue of Ks. Ill 
A hirst Director may act belbrc tcqmiiring Ins qtialilieation, tuft shall in 
any ease acquire the same within two mom Its Ironi Ins appoint Inc itt 
and he shalt he deemed to have agreed to I,tke the said share mu,, ftc 
Company, and t lie same shall be allotted to hi in accord ntgly 

7 I) the rem unerut iott of the Directors shall, ftom Ii me to tote. he 
determined by the Board. 

72) Ai ty I )i rector who is an en' ploy cc ol the ( out pa ny or sil to serve5  titi 
ally committee or ttlni tic'oies spcctal uillcuutioit lii lie btisttiess ill lit 

Company, or who ,,tlierw se pe rthnns services wInch to 'lie opii lull 
of the I ) i rectors are oul side the scope of I lie ord uuar) tInt cs ot 
I )irector. may be paid such rein timicrat ott as the Board lita) 
deterni inc. 

AI.lFKNA it: DIKF:( 'lORS  

73) A I )lrcctor who is alxitmt iii leave or us ahnt kir ii pem aid ol tlticc 
Months or more ironi 'ak mstan iii a)' with lie app roy alit I the 1)1 rcc ''is 
apponit any person sht, is eligible under ,Seciuon IX? br appoititutteuti 
as a Director to be an Alternate I) i rector doting his abscu ice lint, 
Pakistan and such appomiiliiient shall hase died and such aptstunuec 
whnlst lie holds tiltice as an alternate I )nccior, shall he enluticd ui 

exercise in place 01 hi, apptiinter all he limnclmons of' his .tppoiutct as 
a l),rector ol the ( oinIun huuu he shijihl ipso ltcto sacate t,llice ' iLl 

when his aplxilitler reitmuis to l'akmstan or sicaics t,tlice as a I )irctt,,u 
or removes the appointee hum n ol lice Aity appotntlnen t or remn'' 
under this Arlicle shall he clkcied by liolice in "riling tinder lie 
hand of the I) rector muak itig I he sani e. Soc h aI terna te I) icc tor lit a he 
olie of the Dtrectors of the toitipatty, in which case he shall he 
em it led to act itt Nnh catc hues ..A n alternate I) i reel. need nol Is' U 
tan shttrc tpual I treat loll. 

Ration! of 
Directors. 

Qonlijyisig share 

Remuneration of 
Directors. 

.S'pecicsl 
retilulleration. 
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t'()WKRS ANt) ifi lIES OF WtU( 11845 

Borrow inc Powers  

Borrowing powen. 74) (a) the Directors nay e'erclsc all [lie flowers iii the L'otiipatiy lii 
raise money otherwise titan by the sloe of shares and to titortgagc 
or charge its u I iderttik ing or property or any part the leo I aid ii 
issue debentures and t,il,er securities whether outright LII as 
security tbr any oH gut hat or I jab i lit y or debt ot the I tint ran) to 

any third party. 

(h) In exercising the aloresaid powers of the (onipany, tile I lireettis 
may, Iroun little to time and on such terms and eoitdtttout, as lhte 
hunk lit, raise money ruin hunks and tinunetal lutslttiltittos jIlt1 
from other persons under any perot tt ted system of littaitet 11g. 

whet her prov Id i'ig lr pityitieni oh interest or some other loritt Of 

return, and iii part it ttlar the t )ireetors ot ny ntl se 010 iCy ott lw 
has is ut mark - tip out price, it uslusri ka, ii udaraba or any oIl er 

pertn it ted ntode of (waite i it cuRl wt t hoot ptvi udtee to lie 
generality of tite loregoitig, tile Directors ittay exercise oil or tit' 
of thue powers oF the ( 'onipany aris i utg it' ider Sect 'ott 196(2 L 

(c) S tthjeet to thte pros isions ol Article 75(a) in regard to the Issue 

seeurtttes, itte Directors tttay exercise till or ally of tite [klwers tI 
the Coot pany arising tntder Sect ions t 9(2), 87, 120 and 96 t 
and in particular he Directors may Issue any secttrihy as defined 
itt Sect ion 2(1)134) or nay issite any i fist rutnent or cert ilk -tie 
represcitting redeettiahie capital as defined in Section ( I )(3iiA 
or participatory redeemable capital as deli tied in Scent .n 2 t it? ii 

Other Powers and i)uties 

(?enernlpowerc 75) (a) [he business of the Company shall he managed by the Dircetor, 

of C'osnpnny who may exercise dl such powers of the (onipauly as are mu 
veered in the ( )rdiitance or an) statutory titodiliecttcoti thereof tjtr the lit',: 
Direciun. twtng it lorce or ts these Articles are reqiured to he e set ciset 

the C otn patty to ( ic lent I Me clung, suhiect ic' erthie Ic ss 0' tn 
regulation of these Articles. to tite prot isittlis oF lie OrtillialiLt. 
arid to sitch reguiattouts being not Inconsistent with Itte ahitiesutil 

regulatktits or pros i sums, its nay he prcsc rt bed by I lie & liii pit n 
itt Ci etteral Meet ittg; but to regulation ut ade by the Couuptiut iii 
Cietterul Mcetiutg shall ittv,lidate au> prior act of lie Directors 
which would has e beeti valid if tltat rego lal ion md not lit-cit 
ittitde. 

h) A resolution at a fleeting oft he I) rectors duly cot ts cited aid lie LI 
shall 1w neeessat' or exercistttg the p.tisers ill the ( otititits 
specified in Section 196(2). 

Power oft go r,,er. 76) I lie Directors ni;n itotti lotte ii title util tI Itt' 'tile ti 
attorney appoiitt alt) ettitiflaui) flint or person iii bitt> sit rctn. 
wttether tttitit inateit directly or it directly ( md udi uig any t )trccto I or 
officer of the Coin puny) by the Directors, to he tlte attornc or 
attorneys of the Cotapany lor such purposes a' td wit it stielt pii er 
authorities autd diseretiouts (hot exeeedtog those vested ill or 
exercisable by the Directors under these Articles) and tor soelt pet ad 
mmd subject to suds cotidi joitsas (tic) ha> itonS tit, nid at.) 'itt ii 
ixisvers of atttmrutey (tidy eontui it sucit pros is tilts tor the protect iou .111 U 
conveltienee of persi its deal ittg w I lit alt y such attortucy its tie 
Directors may think lit and ttiay itso authortee any such attorutc to 
delegate all or any ot' the powers, attthtori ties and discretions vested it 
(tint; and withoot prejudice to the generality ohthte Ibregoung atty stielt 
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Official ieulfu, 77j 
use abroad. 

power ol attorney maly ,tntliori,e the attorney to i as Ii lute. eo tin ci. 
defend, contpound or thauttion an ty legal1 proceedings by or against 'lie 
('Olilpahly, wheiher getieratily or any patruactilar case 

Flit (ounpatly nay exercise the flitters cooIrred by Section 21 
tvi th regard to hay log an tillic al seat lot use athri aid, all ad s uchi 1iaitt ci 

shall be vested in the I )ircctors. 

Disclosure of 
interests. 

Where Director'i 
interest lies in 
appointnreiit of 
Chief' Executive 
etc. 

A Director of the ('0111 puny or a lirni of white Ii such I) ire' cr is .1 

partner or at private coin patty iii' which inch I) rector Is at di rec Icr IH a) 

wilh i he conseni of the Coin sally in General Mccl tog hold aut\ ollice 
of prolit under the ('thu pall) pro ided that iio stic Ii cOl set it 
required where tlieollice held is that of Chiel t:xecuttve orat lull Utile 
eat ployec or legii I or techn cal aid" i sc r or banker. 

Subject to atitliorizatuot I he ilig gi vet t hy I he I )i rectors in accordance 
wit Ii Section 216a I) i rector sha It tot be di squasl i lied bull 
contracting with he ('ompalty either as tendor, purchaser or 
otherwise, nor slut! I allt) such cilltiracl or airraligel liellt entered lilt' it 

or ott behalf ol' I lie ('out puny wui Ii any eolnpall I) or patrtnersl I a,! 

in wi iclt any i i rector of the Cout puny sIlo I be a Inc tithe, t 
otherwise interested he avotded nor shall any such I )irector 
contracting or being such rein her or so interested be liable to 
account to the Corn puny Iir any proli t rca'1 ted by any such ci ''itt 
or arrangement by reason of such I )irector holding thai ollice Or itt 
the liduciary relation thereby established. 

80) A Director who, or w hose spouse or tumor clii Id, is IU lily 0 a) 

wheti er directly or i ttdi red ly, col Ice rued or title rested in at ty colit I at I 

or arrangement or proposed contract or atrraiigei neil I will I lie 
('out patty shall disc lose the i ature of s uclt uitt cern or interest 
Intel ing oft he I) i rectors in accordance tt U h Sect ion 214. 

K I) Where by alit) contraict or resolution of the I )irecturs, alit mlilxltiitttteul 
or a variation iii thtc thUs oh' ill cisnhIg ipptuintntcitt is II,.talc' 

iwltcUcr cIicciltc tunttictltaiel> ipr in tIre Ittittiel ola thief I ccattatc. 
whole I jute I )irectur or Scere airy o I' the Coin puny. ti lit cli 
apmlintltietlt ait Director ot the t 'nntpaits t,. or jilter the catnitact or 
itsu ut 'on becomes, Ill JO) way, whcthcr directly or mdl 'ccl 
concerned or interested, the ( 'olulpatty shall inlorin ihc Meutheis oh 
such itppoint lneitt or atriat ion in the initu icr reqti ired by Sect iou' 21 8 
and shall corn ply w Idi the requi reiti ents of that Sect ion in regard ta 
ttte iltarimttaiuuang of such contratcis and resoliitiotis open liur ii.speclioit 
by Members at I lie t I 111cc, the provision of cc it i lied cup es t hcrei I 
and extracts there froiti anal otluerwise. 

01)1cc ofprofit 7$) 

('anna cling wéth 79) 
Company. 

J'rol,ibi I/oar of n2 
voting 6, urterested 
fl/ret tars. 

Except as prov tIed in Sec Lion 216. a I) irec ii Ir iliad I tot Vat te tI rcsltcc 
ol ally contract or airratlgeniclil in wInch ltc is either directly alt 
indirectly concerned or itt tercsted nol slia II Itis FC5C lice coltit I lot tile 
pttrlxlse of hootting a quornun ii lire little ,tt .iuty inch title aitat 
dates so vote, ti', vote shill tilt Is.' ca,tiiitcd. 

Register of 
coittreicls, 
arrangements and 
appointnie HIS. 

$3) the toni puny shatl I cotnpl y with tile i'''  is It Ilis ut' 5cc Lion 219o1 
()rdnmnce with regard to the keeping of a Icgister and the cliii 
therein of the part icu lairs ol all contracts iii td airrangeiti ci its IT 

appo hit ittenls of the kind re fixrcd to in Sect oIls 2 14, 2 15, 2 lb or 21 
atF lie Ordinance separately hrr cacti Sec it'll, aind with rcg.ud 
niaint al iiiitg such register opett lür inspect ion by Metn bets tt ti 
Ut lice, the proc is it' Is of ecrt i lied copies thereof and extracts Fete 
lroln and otherwise. 
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Interested 84) A I) 'rector of the ('mu puny 'nay 1w or becoiiie a directo, ci LIII) ott er 

dire elan hips. company promoted by die (0111 1)liutY Or in winch the toitipaity ni.,' 
he interested as a vendor, shareholder or otherwise and no such 
Dhrecior stint I he accoon able k,r any hene I'uts received us a direc hr 
or mciii her ui scKh oIlier corn fiuly. 

Signing powess. 85) Alt cheques, proinissor Riles, dralis, hills ol' excllLiilge and oilier 
ilegotiable I nstrii n,ents. and LI I receipt Ilir moneys pitid to lie 
t'oinpany shall 1w signed, drawn, accepted, endorsed, or ollleric se 

execuled, as the ease nay be, in such iliannel .is the Directors shall 
'ruin nine to lime by resol 01 ion dde Fill I lie. 

Minuses of 86) lie I )i rectors shall cause ni notes of tl I I bard niecE 111g. cclvi 01 i lice 

meetings. Directors meeting and General Meeting ot the ('iilllpahly 10 he ni,,,Ie 

in hooks provided for the ptirpose and kept al the ollice 

(a) of all appointments olo licers made by the I) rectors; 

(b) ut I he ilalnes of the Di rectors present at each Dccl nlg cii tic 

Dhre1ors mid oFany coillniulice ol Directors; 

(c) of alt resolutions and proceed i igs au ,il I ii icet I ngs uI (he ( '0111 P' 
mid of the I )ireelou and of coIn 111111cc ii F I) rectors; 

and the I) i rectors prese in at any meeting of I )ireetors or coin 111111cr ''I 

Directors and all Members aild proxies of Meinbets 11re5e111 II 'II 

(ieneral Meeting shall sign tIle tr 110111e5 Ill ticiok S 10 he kept ho r t at 
purpose; and such in "touts ol such a in eet i ng if purporting to he 
signed by the cilairinail iltereol, or hy chairman ot lie ic U 

succeed ng Ilidet ilig of I lie same hi 'dy, shatl he stil tic iciti c' ide,, 
withotil any 1111111cr proof LII the Ilicts herein stated. 

Foment of' 87) lIte I )ircctors on behalf of the ('out pan) Ill il> iii) a grin nit) or 

pensions. [lens tIlt or allowance on ret ireilleol to an) I ) rector cho Iris lied iii> 
iqher sahined ol'lice or place .1 Pollit with tile l'IOhipaiI) or 0 Ins 

widow or dependeills and may mike ctliltrlhut,luis to an>  livid utah 

1)0) prelll '0015 br tile plirellase or pri iv is RI] ii I Oil soc It giatu ii I Ir 

pension or allowance 

l)ISOI'Al ,ll"l( 'AlION OF l)llW(l'olts 

Disq:nsiiJkution of 88) A Director shalt ipso ttaeto  cease to hold cutlet it'- 
Directors. 

(a) he Ileconles ineligible io 1w appoi lied as a I) rector oil 00) one 
inure of the grounds spectlied in Section 187, or 

(hi he ahseutts hitilsell tom tllrec cotisceutlic nlccllutgs iii the 

Directors or 110111 all nlectingsot the I )treclors hr a co,liilumitim,s 
period ol' three M 010115. whichever is Itt tom Iger, w I thi ,ut It a' e it 
absence nun the I )ireemtirs, or 

Ic) he or any tirin oh which tic is a parlu icr i 'r iii) lilly ate ci ullipati\ Oh 
which he is a director iv 1110111 the sanc I Ion of ttte & 'climl pans In 
(ieneral Meeting accepts or holds any office cut' prolit under the 
Company other Ihan that ol ,i chief executive or a legal or 
technical adviser or i hanker; or 

Id) he liii Is 10 obtain wit Ii in I ivo Mc,,i ths trout the eh focti Vt (lute It 
his appoiiil ItiCilt or at any ii ne the rcahier ceases to ui Id, I lie stare 
qualiticatiun necessary or Ills appomtineol. 
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rlto( EHHN(;.s 01: t)llt}A FOIlS  

Meeting.c of 89) tue Directors nay 'meet together for the despttcli of business, 

Directors. adjourn and othe rwisc regulate their mccii rigs as I key I hink lit 
I xcepl or atlhenv 'Sc prov tied herein questloils itr slug iii any iticelt 
sinai I he decided by a in ajorit y of voles. In ease 01 all eqtwii iy 

votes, I he Chai nil an sIsal I Ii&ae a second or casing vote. A I) reet it 
'nay. and I lie Secretary on I he requis ii ion of a 1)1 rector skit at tn> 
time, su,nttl out a meet' Ig o I 1)1 rectors. II ie Boa rd oft) trectors itt 4) 

determine to hold a meeting ihrough audio or video cenkrenenig or 
any oilier teehuiolog syl erehy all I he I )i rectors cdii, sill til 1tne0us I) 
coiltun unicate to and v I Ih cacti oIlier. A copy ot tile In, aires ol 

I )ireetors meet i Igs shall he turn sited to cacti I )trector att liii t Iourtt'e i 

days ut stick meeting. Notice shall be given in wriltiig It) ever' 
l)irector or his alternate I) trector list any i fleet tug of Ike I) rectors .it 

such not ice sUn! I be g iv en in writing to his address in Pakistan and by 
thcsitn 1k or ens ai I trjsaistll ission to Ii Is address outside Pakistan. ii 
any, notified by hi in to t lie I. 'oiii patty for Iii is purpose. 

Quorum of 90) Unless otherwise deterni med unatitniously by Ihe I )lrcctors. lie 

Directors. quorum necessary for the transaction of the hostuess ol the I )irect,, 

shall be In ajority of directors ho kl i ng ° I lice br the In tie lie,, ig. A is 
at termite Director whose .ippo nt me it is ci led iv e slia I! be counted iii 

a qtiortitil. 

Iffect of 91 Flie conti, tiling I )irecl ors nlay set tot w ithstautd rig atty vacancy it 

vacancy. their body so tong as their number is uioL reduced below the nu,ntsc'r 
fixed by or pursuant to these Anicles as the necessary quorum • .1 
I )ireetors. 

('hrürmnn. 92) I he I) i rectors nay elect a ('intl rntan oF the ir meet rigs and deter,, toe 
tlte period l'ur w Ii cli lie is lo ho Id o IEee. If to such ('ha kin an is 
elected, or it' at any nleettng the ('liairunan is not present wtthttt tltitty 
inittutes a tier the title ,ippointed for holdntg tile sanie, the Iii red Li'' 
prevent hay choose (lilt' il heir ntnnhers to he lie t't,ann,,ti, ol stall 

nieettitg only. 

Powers oJmeaing. 93) A tiieeit ng of tire I )tt cell, is at ii cit a qutir a iii is prc ye 'it vItal I 'c 
competent to esercise alt it lay ot the ,,Lliilorities, loiters ,ititl 
disc ret ions by or tinder 'lie I )rti inance and these Articles to r the tin i c 
being vested in or esereisahle by lie I )irector, generally 

Power to appoint 94) the Directors nay delegate an% ol their x,wers to cumin ittecs 

committees' and to cons st iitg of such tue ii her or tncun hers iii I lieu body as they th I tik lit 

tklegate. and in ay From ii rue to tin ie 'evoke och de legal tin. Any cot tini it tee 
so lb r,ned shall, in tic c serc se' ii he puv ers sii delegated, cot bun 
to aiiy megulations that tm) Ironi tiflic to tue he nitposed Liptin thiciti 

by the Directors, 

I j,iii gifacti. 1)5) :\ll ,tcts dti,ie it atm tueetint ui tilt' I )tucctt,us. tui It a cotititlilteci 

I )lrecuors, (it by any person •ictlttg us a I )neetor shah must oltsta,ishitg 
tital it shall al'Ierwards he discovered that there will sonic detect it the 
appointment or eottt in uaitee in niltee of ally such I) rectors or 
acting ias uForesa i d, or that they or •itty of the ni were di sqLlal i lied or 
had vacated office, or were tot entitled to vole, be as valid asif every 
such person had beemt duly appointed or had dimly contimitted niolhice 
and was qualilied and had contilltued to he a I )irector and had been 
entitled to be a Director attd had been entitled ho vote. 

Resolution in 96) Subject to the provisions of Anicle 75(h) oF these Anicies. a 
writing,	 resolution in writitig, signed by all the Directors tot In their absence 

their a lternaie Directors) for I lie ii Inc being av i 'I able (usot lie, ng less 
than the requisite quo rum ,, I' I )irectors) or by all i he members of a 
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coin vi net 11w the i hue being a all able sl IaI I he as .tl id and dIed unl 
as if it tiad been passed HI a 'fleeting iii he I)i rectors, or as the CISC 

nay be of uch coin in ii tee, dlii)' cal led nod cons lii tiled in accorda, it c 
with I lie '" isloos ol these A it ides. Such lest) lvi loll be contained iii 
one doc utnent or ii se tc ral dt,cu mcii Is iii like lou ii cacti s I gi cd h> 
one or Bore ui the I )ireclors or 'vein hers oF the tout flu it tee col icerned 
A ltcsi nile or email i ran sin i ssion sent by a 1)1 rector or a tile ill her 
the coin Millet shitl I he deemed 10 he a documc II signed by liii ii liii 
the I3lIrposcs of tIns An ide. 

Meeting by way of 97) Subjeci In ally rules framed tinder or any regulations or durcclii ci 
ci ink issued pursuant to lilt ( )rdinance, I lii eclors or Members iii 
communication. cotnini lee may take part ill it tllceliuig of the Direciors or ii coinmitlec 

by Using any colli utluil cal ion eqtulpnlenl t.Ii cli allows ci cry h,tI 
pariielpatillg iti ilie med ig 10 speak to aid hear each other. $ Ikulig 
part iii I ills way will couult as heli Ig pe sent ill I lie heel wig Mcdiii ! 
will he treated as iakiiug place where 11w largest group of bc 
partici p111115 are or, if I here is no such group, where tile thai rinam i ii 
I lie mcdi uig presel I. 

('Ill EF Exl:( '(11%'  E 

.4ppo1n1men1 of 
Chief Executive. 

Remnueralion of 
('liiefExecnti.'e. 

98) I he ('ouii puny slia II 111%-c all ollice ii I Chic I I '.edllt ic wh cli dial I he 
tilled From time lo lime by the Directors who nay ap[kiinl a Duet i 
or I subjeci to Sect ion 201) ally oilier pe us to he the CII ill: xeetii 
11w a period ritil exceeding three years and on such lewIs ii 
condilions as lilt Directors nay 111111k lit, aild such apponinient shill 
he made wit 11111 Iliurteen days from ihe dale in ivluci i the titti cc' 
Chief Ixecuttve Falls vacant. Lipuil the ciry of Ills cflli iii 

appointment, the CII cf I xcctn ive shall he eligible 11w re -appal UI Ii ciii 
lI'tlw ('luetlixeculive at any lime is not already a Direcior he shall lie 
deemed to be a Diree or of I lie toni pally. I lie Chief I xeeti lie um,t 
tie rerno ved troni ohlice In uccordam dC wi lIt ike iros stop is of Sec ut 
21)2 

99) lie ('Intl kecutie shall reccise such cltltlneratitiul ,Is the I )uretl,'ts 
may deleiruine amid ii iint' lie nude 'I lenul ul Ins qipoilltlucill thai re 
be p&od a pension aiid,tiu giliolly .iuW'or tither henelits ito Icurcuileul 
1mm his office. 

Pawen of Chief 1(10) I lie I) ireclors vs my cvi ru ii lo intl cOui IC r tipt In the ('Isle F I' 'Cent,' e 
Er ecuti Vt. any of the powers exercisable by iliem as they may tlniuk lii, and viny 

conter such powers I or such tiune, amId UI he exercised I hr shell Iii me, 
and to be exercised I. ir stich objects and pui and ii p1111 suet, 
lerins and condilions, and will, such restriclions us tlie may ulnutk iii 
and nay From ii tile to lime re oke, alter or ary all or any of lick 
Ixuivers, 

Oil I F K A PIM )I NTh EN'l'S 

Appointment of II I I I lie ('till paily Sec mcmi u111) he',I1i1)O II fled hs- tl e I) ire tots Ibm iii ii C 

Company ill time br such mcml, am ,aich rem one rat out and upon such condil ''u', 
Secretary, as they may think II. the directors may Ibm time to tulle reniol C. 

di snuss him thins o Ilice and app' iii I a vol her in Ills place. 

'till: SI:Al. 

Couinwn Seal. ID?) I lie I) ireclors shall pn uk Ili r I lie saiC c misit dy of 'lie Seal wlm it 
shall only be used by the atilhorily' oF he l)ircciors or of a coinmllmurce 
of die I )ireeiors authorized hi Ike I) i reciors on I hat behalF; and e' cr5 
illslrtiluletti to which tile Seal shall he ,tlthed shall eilht'r he signed li 
one Direcior and countersigned by the Secrelary or by a setti il 
I )lrecksr or by 5011w til her person uppoi nied by the 1)1 rectors lii ii ic 

is 



Declination of 
iii viglenit 

Interim ill viSta,!,. 

Dividends payable 
as.: ofprofits. 

Rnervt 

purpose or he si gitcd h) tite ('Ii el t :xectit t c alone, hut vi il Rd tic 

Direclors nay by reMit tit km detenu toe cii her general h or iii ally 

particular ease, that the sigilottire of the ('I tic I I xecut I ye, a' ty I) icc liii 

and/or Secretary nay- he allixed by saute titeehanical titeans it, he 

specilied in such resolutton including without lunituttoti b) prittling, 

lithography or Siam pt 11g. 

t)lVll)INl)S AND ltl:sEutvFs  

103) the toni paity in ( ie I tent Meetittg nay declare I )tv blends, hut ii 
Dividends shut I exceed the antottot recommended by the I )t rec it irs 

104) I lie I) ireetors may I'ro in time to time pity to the Mciii hers sot Ii 
interim 1)1 idends as •Ippear to the t), rectors it' be just lied hy the 

pro (its a I.  the Coni pin) - 

105) No Dividends shall be paid otherwise than out of profil s iii' the sear 

or any other ttndist rihoted pro fits and in the delerti ii nat ion of lie 

protits available for dividends the Directors shall give due regard iii 
Ike provisions of the )rdinance. in particular Sections 83, 235 uiid 

248. 

lob) (a) The Directors nay, hetitre recomntcnding aity div tcknd set aside 
not of the pro its of the toni puny such stints as they think prt pe 
as a reserve or reserves which shall, iii the dtseretioii of tie 
)ireetors, he app I teable fir meeting eo liii ngetscle 5. Or or 

equalizing Dividends, or ttir ally other purpose 10 yv Ii cli lie 

profit S of the ('intl ply may pp'1y applied, and pe nil 
such app I ieat ion, at the like di scretiol t, cit her be eniploy ed iii the 
hitsiness of the Company or he invested, siih1ec1 to the prov isioits 
ol tile Ordinance, in ueti investments (at her than shares ol the 
Company) as the I )i rectors niay Itont Ii tile to time think lit 

(h) the I itreetors tnay also carr' hiirt .ini any profits tvlt cli I lie> in 
thitik prudetti tot to ,lislritlnte. w mtlttittI setlitig them aside is 

reserve. 

1pportiuiinient of 
dii'ide,uls. 

107) All l)tv idends shrill he ilecluted atttl paiL1 ,tcctirdiiig to lie itii,ititlts 

paid on I he shares. , t I di idends sItu II he appot toned and paid 
proporl ional ly- to the aniottilts paid or cred ted as paid nit the sl at 

dtiring any portion or t' ut the period in respect oh winch the 
Dividend is paid. II' any share is I ssttcd ott ternis provtdttig tlt;ti it 
shall rank for dividend as frtiiit a particular date, such share shall rank 
l'or dividettd accordingly. 

1(18) A tr.tnsler of shares s- hall not pibs ttte rtgtit to atty I 1k ide id dccl irS 

Iltereon be fore I he re gist r,tt nit ol the trat sier 

109) FIst dividend in respect of atny share shall he paid to ttte registered 

holder iii' sttehi sttaire iii Iii Ills lauiker or to a litiattetal tiimtttlitiott t is 

delimted iii Section 2(1)11 5: II ittitnmnated h> nut for lie 

tJ isless tithe rwi se i tisi rucied it writ ii ig by t lie registered liolde r of 

silare, ally l)tvidend payable in cash itl respect tit sttcll shatre nla) 1w 
paid by cheque or warrant se ttt lllrough use post by registered titati to 
ihe registered address of the holder or, in the case of iomnt holders, to 
the registered address of that one of ttle joint holders vtto is tirsi 
nautled on the Keg is er or iii nctt ham ken I IF tinam ictail Inst I tttm liii as 

may have heeti stun imiated by the registered holder. kvery sncli 
cheque or warrant shall he ttlade pay-able to I lie order oft Ite pent in to 
whom it is settt. Anyone of iwo or more joiitt holders uti ty iv e 

etfeetual receipts for atty Dividends payable to respect ol tile shires 

held by them as joint ltolders 

Effect of transfer. 

Payment by pint 
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Payment of 
dividends in specie. 

Keeping of 
ttc'.onnts. 

ItO) Alt t)ivideiids shall be paid within ilie periods speeitied iii Sectitirl 
25 It, F the C )rditsanee. 

I I ) No Dividend payable in ICSpXL oF a share sisal I hear i 'lie lest agin list 

the Company. 

I 2) All dividends unclaimed For oiie year, idle r hay tug been dee si ted, 
nay he invested or otherwise nade use ut by the I )irectiirs br lie 
benelit oF the Corn pat t mu I elai sued, and the Co in paIfl shall tk,i 

tkenled to be a trustee in respect thereof 

I 3) With the sanction oF as (iener'al Meeting, amy I ) lv dcii d nay be paid 
wholly or in part by the d istri but ion of spec' tic assets and in 
particular oF paid lip shares or debentures of ally oilier company or in 
anyone or inure of such ways. Where ally ditlicully arises in regard 0 

such distribution, tile Directors may settle the same as they think 
expedient, and in particular nay issue I met iona I cert i ticates and lh 
the value 'or di strihul ion oF suet' sped ftc assels or any part thiereo I 
and may deterin inc t hat cash paytnenl s shut I be made to at iy Mciii bet 
upon tile Footing of the 'a I tie so lixed, in order to adjust the rights ot 
alt Menthers, and tu a) test any s nell spec i tie assets in trustees upol I 

trust For the Members entitled to the dividend as nay scull expedient 
to the I )ireetors. 

.U('OUN'IS  

I 4) the I )irectors shati cause io be kept proper hooks ol aeeotiitt 5' ill 

respect to> 

(a) all sums oF in, me reec k ed si d cx pci ded by 'he (0111 5ill> 

the ni sItters in respect of w Ii cii the receipts aid e pei td ii tires t,ikc 

place; 

(h) all sales and purchases ol goods by (onipany: 

Tinge for payflreat 
of iii vidend. 

Dividend iso! to 
bees, interest. 

Uswltiinieei 
Divirinsds. 

(Ci Lilt ,isseis of the ('inn pails 

(Ii) all liabilities ol tie toitipany, nid 

te where t lie prov is imins ot' Section 2 JOt I )( e ol I lie C Rd tnail aie 
applicable, such par i colars relating io itt iii at ion oF nialeri sit or 
labour or to oilier iputs or ii ems of cost as may be preser i bed. 

hIS) The hooks uI account shall be kept at tite ()l lice or at such outer place 
in Pakistan as the I )ireetors may decide said shalt he open to 
inspection by the Directors during business hours, If the Directors 
decide to keep the books oF aecotint at a plaice oilier than the C )tlicc 
they shall comply with the direeltotts contained ItI the proviso to 

Section 230(1). 

It 6) the (olilpany shalt preserve in good order tile hooks ol aecoilili ol 
the (.'oinpany in respect ol alt> linaisejat ear or such period is Is 

tequiied by law lullow Hig the close ol mliii esir. 

I 7) lite I )i rectors shall from lime to ni ic detcrni tie w bet her and to v Ii mt 

extent and at what I itties and places and under what cond itiolls or 
reg ulat ions the aceounis and bunks oF lie C 'tint psiny i ir any ol mite ni 
shall be open to the inspection oF Members not being t )irceli,rs ,o,d 
no Member (nol being a t i rector) shall have ai ty r gIlt ot I nspcc Iii ig 

any account or books oi papers of I lie C 'oimi pail except us coil cm cd 

by the Ordi lance or authori ted by I lie t )ireci 'its or hi the ('oils pa my 

in (ieneral Meeting. 

Location. 

Pci-lcd. 

Inspection by 
Men,beas. 

20 



• 5 

.4 anual accounts I I Ii) (a) I lie I) ireetors that I arrange to place betorc I he A rim rl t enc I 
and reports.	 Mccli rig of I lie (inn patsy al soul date itO late r luau e iglulee Ii 

Months slier the incorporation ol the ( otnpany and subsequently 
once in every calendar year, a duly audited balance sheet arid 
pruht and loss accotmnt, conlortn 'rig to the ret ui renlents iii 
Sections 234, 237, 238 and 240 tutU prepared by date trill niore 
than thur Months be lire the date ot such meeting and hating the 
auditors repori ntt.tclied thereto, and a repon ti! tire Directors, 
nut firm i fig to the t eqti irenicuts ol' Section 236 

(h) As required by Sechmoit 241, the halatice sheet and prolit and loss 
account shall liNt he approved by the I )ircctors and wheti 
approved shall he signed by the ( 'hief I' xccntive and at least nic 
I )ireetor, but if on aecoti it iii' ins absence Fri nfl Pak i stan or ii liter 
reason I lie signature iii the & 'h cf I xecut i se cain tot he otstai I ted, 
the hal anec sheet tutU pro it and loss acetnunt shall lie signed h at 
least two I )nrectors thu I tie line kiuig In Pakistan, tr td itt C' ci) 
sttcls ease a staten ci it signed by thirst two I ii rent is shall he 
joined to rite kilnutce slice! and pi out and loss acco tint si tiling the 
reason why tite sig nat tire ii F the (1; ic II xcctti sc was tot ohtaii ted 

(c) Ibe I )ircctors 01 ay at tI tori/-c t lie ( hair in an or the ('he I I xect'l iv 
Its sign the repori o I the I )i rec icr,, sh cli nay tire ii be sign cit 
accordingly, htit itt the .ihsc nec of any such ant ho ri ty the report UI 
the I )irectors shithl be signed as required by Seetton 236(3) In lire 
satne nanner as I lie h,tl at ice slice i arid pro lit atttd loss aceotin I - 

Copies of annual 119) (a) A copy of the balance sheet, prtilit anti loss account and lie 
.wwnnts anti reports o tire I )ireci irs and ,ituditors lial I he se tn not less lb at, 
reports. twctlty one days bethrre the d,tre of the Annual General Mecinrig to 

the Mciii hers arid sillier persons entitled It) receive not ices tn 
General Meetings in the mariner in which notices are to be gts en 
hereunder and a copy thereof shall be kcpi tar a period of at least 
twenty -one days he hire I he meet tog at t Itt UI lice br tnspec I it in 
by the Menthers 

(hI After the halattee sheet, piotiu and loss aecouril arid tire tcptirts in 

Ike l)ireciors and atiditot s hae beet, laid hclore the Ann,n,,,l 
ieneral Meet tng ol t lie t urn patty, sod i n tnit her o I copies I het ctil 

alotig wit Ii picsei ihed docutiren Is, stguieth by the gnat' H cs 

thereto shall he Ii led wit Ii the Keg istrar of C 'Liti I €ttl es - uk iii 
tInny days l'roni the date ol the fleeting md the ('ontlian) shall 
al so comply with I Ite pro' ision s uI Sect ion 242 2) oldIe 
applicable. 

Compliance with 120) I be I) rectors shall in all respects con, ply with the pro'- is ions ii 
the Onii,nrnce.	 Sect otis 2 3(1 to 247 oF t lie S )rd tnt lee, i in atry slim I ott in in odi licm liii 

thereof flu the tintic' being in flirec 

( 'Al'llA 1.1 /tII( )N (H' rlu )FllS 

Power to capitalize. 121) hue (uutpwiy in C ietieu.ul Meenng Ira) tqxmn the reuiinnnetitbtntnoin on lie 
I )irectoni resolve ilsat it is mlestrithle 0 capita lee any pail OF Ike tutlOtll mu it ii 
the tune betng sltsndirig to the credit of uiy ol the (onipailv's resci 'c 
,t'eour;ls or to the credit ol the protit and kiss account or otherwise a.ailnhle 
tbr distribution, and accttrdinglv thai such stuti he set tree Ii mn distnibtnr Itin 
.unongst the Mctitt'trs who wotiltl he ci ttit led therelo it di s&htuted by tLiy 
tif l)ividend hiltt in tile siMile p101xn1ui5 trim eondinon thai the siune b not 
paid itt cash hut be appited eilher In or tow aids pay log tip any ailiouttl s It 
the tune king unpaid till iuiy shares held by such Members respcctivcl ti 
lxm mg tip in hill ut;tsstied shares or debts ittires of the (ininpauly ti I be 
allotted and distributed as hilly paid tip to and amongst stick Members in 
the proportion alhiresaid, or partly in ike one way and pail iy in rise tither. ,u itt 
ihe I )ireetors shrd I give cllèct tti stain resolution 
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Lifer? of resoluthin 122) Whenever stick a reolui ion as, aloresaud shall have been passed the 
to capitalize. Directors shall in ake .ill ,tpproprntt liii) s nod appl I Lilt RI's ol the 

undiv tied pri his resolved iii be capil eu i ted there by arid all 
alloiinenis and issues of hilly paid cliares or deheiunrcs, ii ally, antI 

ne rat ly shall clii all ate Is and di logs required to give eli eel ii icr eto. 
with liii I power to the I) rectors to niake such prnv is ion by the i cue 
of frau lanaI ecu i ieatcs or by pay Dciii in cash I ir oilier wise as rite> 

ink lit iUr the case ol' sl ares or debentures heconi log di st ribo I able ui 
fractions and also to atitliorize tHiy persia) ci eider iii) behialfol all rue 
Members entitled thereto tub ,IIi agrecinenl with the ('olopaily 
providing for the allotment to theni respectively, credited as Lilly 

paid tip. 01.  any ttirthc r sl mi-cs or dcbcn hires to tvli icb they rn a he 
entitled upon such capitaliention, or (as ike case lieu) requiter br lie 
paying tip by tile ('lonpany on their behalC by the applie.ttion tlicreici 
of t heir respective prtiport ions cii' the piLl Ills resolved to he 
capialized, of the aniotinis or iii>- pan of he ainoLilits renraiilnig 
unpaid on t lie i r cx ism ing shares and any agreement made under sue Ii 
authority shall he ellëctive and binding on all such Meitihcrs 

1)11 

Andliars. t23) Auditors shall be appointed and their duties regulated in accordance 
with Sections 252 to 255 of tie Ordinance, or any shalolony 
nicidi flcai ions I herco ii Un I lie time being in fri ree - 

NO'il('ES  

Notice to Ateniber. 124) (a) A nolice nitty be given by the Coinpirny to toy Member curlier 
personally or by sending it by post to him to his registered atidrcss 
or by eotmrier or (ml lie has no registered address in Pak stan) to he 
address, if any, within Pakistan supplied by hirni Co the ('ommipariv 
lbr tile givnig oF notices to Iliciri 

(hI Where ,m notice is scull ts posi, 'cit icc ot lie licilice sIt_ill Nc 

deemed to he e ti Lcied by properls addm'e ss 11g. p1 epa>mrig a rid 
;xisting a letter coniainiiig tile 1011cc aitcl, unless lie cotiirai y is 
proved, to have been eilecicd at lie tiruc' it cvlricli the heoci ir.iill 
be delivered mi the ordniary course ol posu. 

Notices by 125) Ii a Member has no registered address in l',ukmstan arid has rrol 
,idveniserne,,g.	 supplied to the ('on pan> an address w II sill I' aik ista ii Un miie gi Vu ig ill 

noIiccs to hint, at rail ice addressed to limni 4 ii to lvi dill lcrs gene i ally 
aid advertised lit a lte' spaper cii cii I at I ng ri rIte prov iitce ii 'cli id I I he 
0111cc is situated shall lie deeiried to be dill) given 0 111111 on he itay 
on which the adcrliscniemtt appears In ill sLicli daises, the ( rrrnpatn 
shall also comply wHIr the reqtnrenicnhs nI tire ro so icr Section 
511(3) of I lie ( )rd ii an ice c' here applicable. 

Notice in joint 1261 A nolice tnay be gicen by the Company lii he joint hollers ,iI'a sliate 
holders,	 by gic rig the itulice il lie lout holder mimimie,t thu in ike Register iii 

respect of ilic share. 

Nail cc so legal 127) A notice may be given by the Compaiiy to lie perso is entitled ti a 
represenrnrives. share ut cotisequenee of die deauh or insolvency of a Mensher by 

sending it through he post in a prepaid letter addressed to theoi by 
liatne, or by the title of represenianves of the deceased, or assignee oh 
the insolvent or by any like description, at il Ic address (it' any I in 
Pakistan supplied 1kw the purpose by the persons claitmrmitg Id be 5cr 
entitled, or (until such an address has been so supplied) by gis ing he 
isotice in any manlier us which the slime might have k-en gr en 1 lIre 
death or insolvency had lilt occurred. 
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Notice to foreign 128) Notv I thsiaadi fig ans ti ig hereinabove to the contrary, in add it'' i in 

shareholder, ally oilier 11011cc t or lie sirn II be elIOt led Co ieee lye, a fyi em her, w hell 
is a ioreigli corporatIon, Clltltflhllly Or individtldi shall be giveil notIce, 
if app1 icahie, by I ac:, 1111 Ic I rajlstli i ss ion, dccl roll Ic 111111 I addressed I, 
such Mclii her al lilt IkIcsi Ill Ic ntltn her i Ir eke Cr, II Ic to au addres, 
supplied by ii 01 hun to the ('oinpaos 

Notices of General 129) Notice of every General Meellulg shall he gil CII II MIllie lflilllllcr 

Meetings. herelnhetore authorized to (a) every Meaihcr escepi those Meal] lxii 
who (hay jIl 110 registered address w I 111111 'ak hhtul) have ui,,t suppled 
hi I lIe (,'otnpauiy Ito address w lIb in l'ak asian Fir a lie gi'  Cog ot' I lilt lee:, 

to them, (hi every Mcvi her ol the C i111 pa i iy he it] it lout go 
corporation 01' CoIn pans li id, hats supplied LII ii IC ('0th 51111' a 
litestni 1k lu mIser UI C eel iou Cit I all address lbr I lie seisdi hg ill nIl Ices 
It) It, (c I every persuii CIII it lcd to a share in coulscq tlence of I he death 
or I also I veney of a l dIn her, w ho httl ibr his death Or tibia I vet Icy 
would he entitled to receive, iiotice ol the Iliectilig. and Id) the 
auditors of the ('olapany. 

Rimilug value of 130) Every person who, by operat lilti of law, ratlskr Or outer meal Is 

prior notices. whatsoever shall heconie elltllled to any shares shall be hound by 
every noi ice in respect ol 5 aich stmres, wli cli prey ioos I) to Ills IC ,tCfl 
and address being cratered on the Register shall have been duly gi' co 
to I lie person From w lion, tic dcii veil his Ill Ic to such shares - 

WINDING-i P 

Distribution of 131) Ii the ('otii pony shall he wotmd U. the I iqt I daito r Iii ay, w II Ii I lie 

assets in specie, sanction of' a Special Resolution of lile (onipan) and any 1,1 11cr 
sanction required by I lie ( lrd in once, divide alnongst 11w Ni eni he is ti 
slWc Ic or k ttld tIle Wllu IC or aluly part III the assets ol the C .ini pai 
(wliel her they shall CIII] su St ii I property of the stone k 11(1 or 1101) and 
lilly, fur such purpose, sd s tacIt val Lie as lie tketii s lair i ipoui ,iui) 
ph Iperty to he divIded asi ii. Iresaid and nay dctcrtn j lie ltoc attic Ii 
di vi s ion shill I he carried out as bet weeli C lie MCIII hers r if dii 1 crc III 
classes ol Members, lie Iiqoidatou Ito), cltll the lake ,,IICcCItlIl. ten 
tile who Ic or any pall oh such ,,ssc as ui II ustees 01)011 such trusts I IF 
tile benelit ol' the Melllbers Ill In) of thelu Us tile liquIdator tli lie 
like saillclioll shttli tlullk ill, halt iii that aut Melliber :,hi,il twclllilpelleui 
to accept ally shares or other securitIes whereon here is ally liahi lily - 

Inspection of she 
premises of the 
Company. 

Sl'A'RF('V  

132) Save as ollaerw se print ideil III tIle C I rdiuinliec, no Member or tIller 
pe'' (tail beiulg 1 i)ircelor) shall be entitled ti visit auid Ilispeel ,iIl ol 
the ('ounpany's preln i ses or pro1sert ies ol' the C '0111 pany wIt bout tile 
pertii i sston of I )u reclil ri ni the I 'inn pany' ho r I lie ii me he I hg or III) 
person antilorlzed in this hehal F by the I')ttec Iors or to requIre I sc,n cii 
iii tar auiy iuiliarhnation respecting 1111) detail of the Company's trading or 
any nlatter iv Ii ich is or 0111> he in t he nature of' a trade secret, lily stem 
trade or secret process or il lily halter iil]ilsocer whIch Itla elate to 
the clllidihet ol the husities:, ,il tile C .Inlp.tll) .ttiul ltlllcli ill lie optullu 
the Directors will he uutcxpedieni iii the Interest oh ilie Members nI the 
('urn pithy to coin null) icate to I he pulhl ie. 

IN fll:MN l'i'V  

Indemnity of 133) Every Director or ollicer ol the ('ulllpally atld elery persoul employed Iiy 

Directors, Officers the ('ill n patiy as A Ildator shail I be I ndetn it lied i htil of I tie I tlnds ul tite 

and Auditors. ('0111 pan> agai list ,tl I lability tncttr red by lull .15 shell 1)1 rector, ol Ikei or 
A ud I or In delëlldit ig any proceedings, w helhcr cii i I or cr1 In ma I - Ill 
which jtudgtneni is givelt 0 Ills liii our, or in iducll lIe Is acquItted, or III 
conuleel iou; with ally appl i atutill tinder Sect UI I 488 in who ch reel Cs 
gratited to luau by I he to Lmrl. 
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DISIqII'E I4ESOI.IITION 

Settlement of 134) In the event of a dispute, chum or coiltrtivcrsy urues between lie 
dispute through Company, its luanagetnettt or its sltareltokkrs, or between sharcholdcis 
,nedlntion ititer-se, or the directors intere-se, all sleps shall be taken to settle the 

dispute and resolve the issue through mediation by an accredited 
mediator before taking recourse to kir,iial dispute resolution such as 
aibit ration or lit igat Intl. 

Diffrrences to be 135) Whenever any difference arises between the t'oinpaiuy an the one hajid 
referred to and any at' the Members, their executors, ad,ninistrators or assigns on 
Arbltrotion(sj	 the oilier hand, touching the true ititent or construction, or the incident 

or consequence of these Articles or oh Ike statutes, or loutcltutg 
anything there or thereafter done, executed, omitted or suttërcd in 
pursuance of these Articles or of the statutes or touching any breach or 
alleged breach of these Articles, or any claim omi accoutn of any such 
breach, or alleged breach, or oiherwise relating to the premises. or to 
these Articles or to any statute afkcling the Cotnpany or to any of the 
affairs of the Company, every such dil1rence shall, asacondiuion 
precedent to any other acttoti at law he reterred in conlbniiity with the 
Arbitration Act, 1940. or any stattitory niodilication thereof and any 
rules made there under, to the decision of isa arbitrator to be -appotntcd 
by the panics in difference or if they cannot agree tipuln s simtgle 
arbitrator, to the decision of two arbitrators of whom one shalt be 
appotated by each of the parties In di t1rence, or ill the event of the "0 

arbitrat ions not agreeing, then oh' an ott tpire to he app.' muted by the s o 
azb,trators, in writing, before proceeding on the reference, and such 
decision shall be limit and binding on the part es. 
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We, ike several persons, whose lames and addresses are subscribed, arc desirous ut being üiruned 

jaw a Compary in pursuance of this Articles of Association, and we respecuvely agree to lake the 

number of shares in the capilal of use Company indicaued herein below against our respective 

nanles 

1! 

Satuib thinaa 
S5n.a 

Ynsutti 
Sh,,a, , 410100101011, 

Il Kha.ban-,-
IM,t5a4. P 

Si,gi 
OVA 

2 Fnbnu At, Kilsa -lisa' a7s, 'a-s 

0-it'll, Suulh 

t1i;:, OrI 

5 Ma5auud Ahn,.d 
(audlu 

Mul,.aimad flh,ufaas autmuss 
tsou,ve f'!02-2,fisvo5 

lUau,, No 
sums. EME 
ll,,k,, Nm 
o. 

0,', 

r.ia mumb,, .r,h.v., iii.',, 

Date the 13" day of May 2016 

Wiluiesse, lo above signature. 

Naluonal Inslilutuonal Uatultlat,osz Tectinoltugucs tl'vll I mulled 
9' 'tOol, AWl nan, 
It Chondrugaz Road, 
Ksgat,ht 

I'athtan 
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The (om1)anjes Oritiutance, l984 

COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES 

Memorandum of Association 

of 

ATLAS ENERGY l.lMl'l'EI) 

I. [he name of the Company is AliAS ltNFR(iY l,I!vllTl'l). 

II. Ihe Registered 0111cc oithe Company will be situated in the Province of 15unjah. 

Ill. 1 'he objects 11w w Ii ich (lie Company is estab I shed are to do all or any of' the lout iw i ng: 

'lb design, insure, build, establish, own, operate, maintain, manage electric povver getieratmg 

plants br the generation, supply & transni issi in of electric pi Iwer and in re I at io ii thereto, 
— esiablish, lix, carry out and maintain without limitation, any ancillary worts, cables, wires, 

meter, lines, overhead lines, sub stations, switching stations, interconnect làcilities. grid 

stations, transmission Facilities, civil, electrical and mechanical works, subject LU approval of 

concern authority (National Electric Power Regulatory Authority). 

2. 1'o carry on the business of power generation and In relation thereto, to generate, accumulate, 

transmit, distribute and sell electric power to the public sector, including LIce Water and l'tnser 

Development Authority. Natiotial 'l'ransmission and l)espateh Company, (jovertinient and 

Government bodies, and the private sector, subject to approval ol' concern authorih (National 

Electric Power Regulatoty Authority). 

3. 'l'e manulitetut'e, purchase, import or otherwise acquire, construct, own, process, operate and 

maintain buildings, workshops, warehouses and other storage l,ciliues, apparatus, l'ttures, 

f'mttings, plants, machinery, materials, and things as may he necessary, incidental to or 

coil yen lent ii con necti on with power get cerati hg plait l,r the gene rat ion of electric t"  a ci ,,mtd 
or in connection with supply, transni I ssion and di sir i hot i on of elect i- ic 0t Ct 

4. lu btty, sell, in alit, lacture, repui I, alter, intprov e. exchange i ,r let out, i in pint, cx pot1 and tIc al in 

all works, plant, machinery, engines, tanks, cylinders, valves, regttlators, testing etluipnient, 

tools, utensils, appliances, cookers, stoves, healers, apparatus, products, materials, substances, 

raw materials, chemicals, natural gas (whether in vaporied limo or liquefied), liquclied 
petroleum gas, hid oil, coal, lubricants, articles and things atid to inanubicture, experiment 

with, render marketable and deal in all products, incidental to or obtained in the husitiess carried 
on by the Company. 

5. la pu 'chase, take oti lease or tenancy ir in exchange, lore, take i mptit ins over or lit lie is' i se 

acquire lot' ztny estate or interest whatsoever and to hold, develop, work. cultivate, deal v utti and 

turn to accoutit concessions, grants, decrees, licenses, privileges, claims, options, leases, 
pru pet-tv, real or personal or rights or pi u ers uI ,in' k i id wIn cli cia) appear It I he neccss .i n 
convenient br lie htisiness ol the ('onipany hot not Iii acm as a leasitig cuimnpan\ or pipert 
developer. 

i 'o sell, exchange, to on gage, let on royalty or t ri ho te, giant Ii ceitses, easeni ents, 1)1)1 or is .tnd 
oIlier rights over and in any tuanner deal with or dispose of LIce Company's property or any part 

thereof for such cotisideration as may be thought lit and in particular for stocks, shares or 

securities ci' any company hat in any event not to act as an investineitt conipatcy or easiitg 
coni pany. 



7. lb establish lahoiatories and to employ and promote scientific research and invention, patrotlie 
such invention and enter into manufacture in collaboration with outside parties tir translcr ui 
technology from abroad and to promote transler ut technology horn Pakisttt abroad, and to 
carry on husiness itt all other allied lields permissible by law. 

8. lb invest and deal with any surplus moneys of the Company not immediately fir the Lime being 
tquired hbr any of the purposes of the Company in such investments as may be thought lit tper 
and to hold, sell or otherwise deal with such investments hut in any event not to act as all 
iitvestinent company. 

9. For the purposes of the business of the Company only, to advance money upon such terms Is 
the Company may approve, and to guarantee the ohligations and contracts of customers and 
others but not to act as a banking company. 

10. 10 apply lbr. purchase or otherwise acquire and protect. prolong and renew whether ill Pak stan 
or elsewhere any patents, patent rights, brevets d'invention, trade marks, design licenses, 
protections, concessions and the like conlerring any exclusive or non-exelusiv e or limited right 
to use any secret or tither intoniiation as to any invention, process or privilege which nias seem 
capable of being used lbr ally of the purposes of the Company or the acquisition ol nhich iiay 
seem calculated directly or indirectly to henetit the Company and to use, exercise, de' elop, 
manulacture under grant, licenses, privileges in respect ol or othertc ise turn to accoulit the 
property, rights and inl'nrniation so acquired and to carry on any business in any way conrtccted 
therewith, 

II. lu get insured against losses, damages, risks, accidents and liabilities uI all kinds which nay 
allèct the company whether in respect ot' its colitructs, agreements, advances or sccunties or iii 
respect of servants or employees or directors of the company, or it respect of property 
belonging to or teased to or hired by the company, either by setting apart l'unds ui the eoitjiany 
or by effecting such insurance and in later case to pay the premium thereon. 

12. 'to train personnel and workers, in Pakistan and/or abroad, to obtain technical prolieieiicy in 
various specialties connected with the business of the Company. 

13. lu LI ndertakc md execute any project tilt' undertak tug w I lcreo f iii a) scent tic si r'ahl c . and cit It cr 
grat 0 ttousl y  or other" I se. 

I 4. I o procure t he C omil pan> to he registered or rcci gO m,ed tt at ty I tile t lt ci itti ltr) Or I hilt C. 

IS. lit acquire and undertake all or any part of the business, property, goodwill and liabilities if any 
person or company carrying ott any business s hich the Company is authot-iied to caff> on or 
possessed ol' property suitable 11w the ptirposes of the Company. 

16. 'i'o adopt such means of making known the business atid/tir seiviecs of tIle ('onipan us nay 
seem expedient and in particular by advertising in the press, or in the other media or by 'a of 
parttcipation in exhibitions. 

ii. For the purposes of tile Company, to purchase. manage, acquire by lease, mortgage. dispose ii 
sell. exchange. ttmnt to accotiiit any part of the propeli utid rights of the ('otlipmiiis - 

lx. to employ or appoint any persons, experts, consttltants, advisers, contractors (including ( )&M 
contractors), brokers in connection with the business of the Company. 

19. lb pay tor any property or rights acquired by the Company, either in cash or lully paid shares or 
by the issue ot secttrities, or partly in one mode and partly in another and generally tin such 
terms as may be determined. 
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20. Only in con nec Li on 'vi itt the business of the ('onlpativ to 9C11 and operate ans CLI F lent 
ovei-du-att. loan, tixed or savings hank accounts lür the ('on lxtn) and draw, nake, accept. 
discount, endorse, execute and issue promissory lutes, bills of exchange, hills ol lading and 
other negotiable or trans friable instruments or see ant 'Cs and to adv ailce money to the 
('ompany's executives, otlicers and eniployees;agcnt'eustomers and others having dealings 
with the company hut in any event not to act as an in' estment, banking or linance Company 

2 I . In connection wit Is the business ot the ('inn pUll) only Lu g Ye gLiaral flees and Indent nit es I or 
the payment of money or the pertomiance oh contracts or obligations by this Company but in 
any event not to act as an investment, banking or linance company. 

22. In borrow and where required, to secure the pay nient ot none) in such manner as the C oittpaiiy 
shall think lit and in particular by the creation oh mortgages and charges LICF the (present and 
future) property, assets and/or undertaking oh' the ('ilinpany and/or by issue ot dcheniurcs, 
participation terni certilicates, term linance certiticates and other securities charged upon at I 
any of the Company property both preseitt and tuttire, and to ptirchase. redeem and pa> off 
any such securittes. 

23. lu take, or otherwise acquin. and hold shares in any other company having objects altogether 
(IF in part similar to those oh this Corn puny or carrying on any business capable ,t being 
conducted so as directly or indirectly to henelit this Company hut in an> event hit to act as an 
investment eotnpany. 

24. 'lu enter no partnersh p or Vito any elgreeiiiell t I if agreel nen ts hi n shin Hg pri ills (itt, Ill iii 
interests, cooperation, joint venture, i'eciprocal concession and/or tciIities with any or 
company whether or not having objects similar to those of this Company hut in any evenl 1101 tO 
act as managing agents. 

25. So hitr as is perns issible in law, to establ isli, ma mi ai it and/or ci in tribute to ally pension, 
superannuation, death henehits, funds or schemes Fir the henetit of and to gie. award or 
procure the giving or awarding, of donations, pensions, gratuities, allowattees, anntlilies, 
emo I omen ts or other hene its w hat soever to 'an> perso, is "ho arc I 'r ha e at an> Li inc bee liii the 
e01p111yn1e111 or 5cr' ice of tile Company or of allY company ituch Is its holding or whitt is a 
subsi dl ar) of en her the Conl pany or an> sue hi hi tiding ci till patty or iii a iiy ci 111 ),ulty hti h 
otherwise allied to or associated with the Company, or what 'tie or hac at ally tithe been 
t)ucctors t'r otl'ieei-s (or held comparable or equn alcnt i'liccs) ol the Company or oh an' or 
any such other company, and also to tile wives, widows, lamthies atid dependents of any such 
persons; to establish, subsidise or subscribe to any institutions, associations, clubs or tunds 
which may be considered likely to benefit all or any such persons; to make payments li,r or 
towards the insurance of any such persons; to establish, support and maintain an):  tornt oh' 
prohit-sharing, share ptirchase, share incentive, share option or employees' share scheme iii any 
such persons eligible to part ici pate in them or be ic lit bum bent (or LII trustees on their ilchlal ft 
lhr the pu poses oh or In connect ion wit Is the o lerati on and enjoyment il all) soc II scheinc 

26, I o enter ill to tiny agreetnent or agreentent wit hi alt) g' '5 cliii net IL l 'r other aut hon ty, stq si tine. 
municipal, local or otherwise, that may scent conducive to all or lIlly of the ohlects ill tile 
Company and/or to ohta in horn sttch uo\crnnicnt or authorit ncludiig the Slate bi,ttk oh 

Pak is tall Or Nat illia I I lcct nc Power I(cgul at or) A ii tlii liii) (Nit I '1(A) any nigh is, ci 111cc ss h,'nis,'r 
privileges, licenses which the Company niay think desirable to obtain and to early (lilt, exercise 
and comply with any such arrangements, rights, privileges, concessions and licenses. 

27. lo pay all or any costs charges and expenses prelunitlal-y and incidental to the proittLltitin, 
lorntation, establishment and registration of the Company and to pay any development LIsts 
iticuited (whether befure or afer the incorporation of the Company I  by the spiltisors it he 
Company in connection with any project ii I the toni pany - 



28. lu posy brokerage Or COlfltfl isslon to any persoll or pen.otis in cons iderat It In ot I I lici I 

suhscrihin, or agreeing to subscribe, whether absolutely or conditionally. br ans shares or 
deheniures ol the Company, or ftir procuring or agreeing to procure subscriptions whether 
abso vie Or conditional br the same which brokerage or conintission may he paid either ill cash 
or shares of the Company, credited as lüliy paid op. 

29. Ii, anialgamate, consolidaic, or merge, either in whole or iii part, w tb or into any titter 
etttflflaflles, associattons, firms or persons cii flying on any trade or business of a similar naiurc 
Lo ihat which this Company is authori,ed Lu carry on. 

3D. lu resolve, settle disputes by negotiation, conciliation, meditation, arbitration, litigation or oilier 
means, judicial or extra judicial, and to enter in compronitse agreement with creditors. nseiiiliers 
and any other persons in respect ol'a dilitrence or dispute with them and to exercise the power 
to sue and be sued and to i nit ial or oppose at I act i otis, steps, proceed i rigs Or appl i cat ion is I tich 
nay seem calculated directly or indirectly to benefit or prejudice, as the case nay he. the 
interest of the Company or of its members. 

31. To do all or any of the things herein in ally part ot' the world either as principals, agents, 
contractors or otherwise, atid either alone or in conjunction with others hut itt any event lot to 
act as tnanaging agents. 

32. 10 provide engineering, construction, consultaney and design services and radio and mIter 
communication systems and services, and any Iheilities, equipment and installations whether 
related to such senices and systems or otherwise, subject to permission of concern authorit> 

33. Fe carry tin any other business whether niantilücturing or otherwise that may seem to the 
Company capable of being conveniently carried on in connection with tile above objects or 
calculated directly or indirectly to enhancc the value of or render prolitahle any iii the 
('oinpany'r property or rights or which it may be advisable to utideriake wills a view to 
improving, developing retidering or turning to account any properly eat or personal belonging 
to the Company or in which the Company may be interested and to do all or any of the above 
ihi ngs cit her as principals, agents, con t racti irs or otheris ise. atid either alone in in ciii vi ill Ct Ion 
with others and either by or through agents. suh-cntnactors, trtistees or , Ltters se. and to it,' 
simm_li things as are incidental lit condttcive to thc .sttamnjncnt iii tile zih,,e ,'hpeet', hot i'I.iis\ cierit 
not to act as managing agents. 

34. lu do all and everyt hiii g necessary, su i tab Ic t ir pri per i ir ''Ic dental or ci mud Lie I sc lii the 
ace'' lisp I ishnsent of any oft he purposes or the itt Lai not ent of atty of the objects or t he I mrt I terance 
of any of the powers hereinbel'ore set borth, either alone or in tissociation with other corporate 
hod its, Ii rms or individuals i ir with any C os ernment authority i ir pu hi ic or quasi 'riots Ii c 
authority or any other authority, and to do ever) other act or thing incidental or aippertinent to or 
arising out of or connected with the business or xissers  ui the Company or pfl tltctetit 
provided the sante he law Iül. 

35. II IS III itELlY tJNDI JIFAKI N that the Company shall not engage in the hankmtig business t* 
1tirex, illegal brokerage, business of a finance, investment, leasing or insurance cotupain . or 
non-banking linance couttpany or as a modaraha management company, or the husittess ut haitd 
development or a tnantging agency or ans Liolits liii business and that nothing In Ll,e,ml'tem_t, 
c I aose shall be const tied to etit i tie it to engaue in such Isusi ness directly tr indirect I I tie 
C'ompany shall not launch multi-level marketing (Mb.M), l'yrainid or I'oitii schemes. 

36. Notwithstanding any thing stated in any object clause, the cotnpany shall obtain such tither 
approval or license from the competent authorit, as may be required under any law hw the time 
being in t'oree, to undertake a partictilars business. 

IV. Ihe liability of the Members is linsited. 



V. 'the authorized capital of the Company is Ks. 10,000,000 (Rupees ten million) divided into 
1,000,000 (One million) shares of Ks. 10 (Pak Rupees len) each, with power of the ('onipany, 
specifically, to increase the authorized share capital to include a limiter issue including ol' 
preference shares and generally, to increase or reduce the capital and to divide the shares in the 
capital 11w the time being into several classes in accordance with the provisions uI the 
Companies Ordinance, 1984 and any rules made there under, and to attach thereto respeuively 
such preferential, deferred, qualified or special rights, privileges or conditions its may be 
detemilned by or in accordance with the Articles ol' Association of the Company for the time 
being, and to vary, modilS# or abrogate any such rights, privileges or conditions in such tnanncr 
as may for the time being be provided by the Anicles of Association ol' the Company in 
accordance with law. 
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lot.! Number at abnn liken 

Dale the I3aday  of May 2016 

Wilnesses 10 the above signature 

National Instil utionat Fad! itation technologies C t'rivaic ) I mi ted 
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ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED 
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 



SHIWEIMG RAMEED CHAUDARI & CO1 
PA K IS TA N CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Independent Auditor's Report To The Members Of 
Atlas Enerqv Limited  

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Atlas Energy Limited (the Company), 
which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2023, the statement of profit or 
loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of 
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary 
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have 
obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, 
were necessary for the purposes of the audit. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income, the statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows together with the notes 
forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in 
Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the 
manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's 
affairs as at June 30, 2023 and of the profit, other comprehensive income, the changes in equity 
and its cash flows for the year then ended. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as 
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for 
Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors' Report thereon 

Management is responsible for the other information presented along with the financial 
statements and the auditors' report thereon. With respect to the Company the other information 
comprises only the Director's Report on the operations of the Company. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated, If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a 
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard. 

Principal Office: 
HM House 
7-Bank Square, Lahore. 
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the 
requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Board of directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSAs as applicable in Pakistan 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained upto the date of our auditors' report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a 
going concern. 

> Catalyst for success 
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• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies 
in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion: 

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies 
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017); 

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income, the statement of changes In equity and the statement of cash flows together with 
the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 
2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns; 

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were 
for the purpose of the Company's business; and 

d) no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 
1980). 

Other Matter 

The financial statements for the Company for the year ended June 30, 2022 were audited by 
another firm of chartered accountants who expressed unmodified opinion on those financial 
statements on September 29, 2022. 

The Engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors' report is 
Osman Hameed Chaudhri. 

\AAsictn4Wt&atJ ctu4 1.-, 

LAHORE; August 23, 2023 SHINEWING HAMEED CKAUDHRI & CO., 
UDIN: AR20231O104NXURzGVW3 CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
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230,114,142 

ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT JUNE 30, 2023 

2023 2022 
Rupees Note 

ASSETS 
Non-current assets 
Plant and equipment 4 474,517,025 

Current assets 
Trade debts 5 17,664,483 
Inventory 6 9,780,216 
Loans and advances 7 18,560,474 
Other receivables 8 48,324,951 
Short term investments 9 70,076,729 
Cash and bank balances 2,782,986 

167,189,839 

Total assets 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Share capital and reserves 
50,000,000 (2022: 50,000000) ordinary 

shares of Rs. 101- each 
7,400,003 (2022: 7,400,003) ordinary 

shares of Rs. 10/- each 
Unappropriated profits 

641,706,864 847,166,211 

500,000,000 500.00Q000 

74,000,030 74,000,030 
193,631,929 100,463,439 
267,631,959 174,463,469 

Liabilities 
Non-current liabilities 
Long term financing 
Security deposit 

Current liabilities 
Accrued mark-up 
Current portion of long term financing 
Contract liability 
Project payable 
Trade and other payables 
Provision for taxation 

10 
12 

10 
11 

13 

14 
Total liabilities 
Contingencies and commitments 

Total equity and liabilities  

374,074,905 672,702,142 

641,706,864 847,166,211 

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 

T\ k-: 
I LiJ-- - '-n I 

Chairman Dttett61 Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer 
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ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED 
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS & 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

Note 2023 2022 
Rupees  

Revenue from contracts with customer - net 15 354,840,501 201,039,748 
Cost of sales 16 (192,391,958) (115,361,365) 

Gross profit 162,448,543 85,678,383 

Administrative expenses 17 (5,764,662) (2,291,030) 
Finance cost 18 (41,868,176) (7,437,175) 

Other income 19 8,785,246 4,124,077 

Other expenses (14,165,828) 

Profit before taxation 109,435,123 80,074,255 
Taxation 21 (16,266,633) (12,684,438) 

Profit after taxation 93,168,490 67,389,817 

Other comprehensive income 

Total comprehensive income 93,168,490 67389,817 

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements 
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ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

2023 
Note Rupees 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Cash (used in)! generated from operations 22 (24,531,019) 229845,161 

Taxes paid (13,338,125) (873,005) 

2022 

Net cash (used in)! generated from operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Fixed capital expenditure 

Sale proceeds of operating fixed assets 

Net cash generated from I (used In) investing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Long term finances - obtained 

- repaid 

Finance cost paid 

Security deposit 
Net cash (used in)! generated from financing activities 

Net (decrease)! increase in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents - at beginning of the year  

(37,869,144) 228,972,156 

(31,015,234) (494,540,081) 

256,567,627 

225,552,393 (494,540,081) 

119,500,000 

(274,091,000) 

(45,575,943) 

252,196,000 

(2,750,990) 

28,000,000 

 

(200,166,943) 277,445,010 

(12,483,694) 11,877,085 

15,266,680 3,389,595 

Cash and cash equivalents - at end of the year 

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 

2,782,986 15,266,680 

 

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer 
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ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

Share 
capital 

Unappropriated 
profit 

Total 

Rupees  

Balance as at July01, 2021 74,000,030 33,073,622 107,073,652 

Total comprehensive income for the year: 
Profit after taxation 67,389,817 67,389,817 

Other Comprehensive income 
67,389,817 67, 389, 8 17 

Balance as at June 30, 2022 74,000,030 100,463,439 174,463,469 

Balance as at July01, 2022 74,000,030 100,463,439 174,463,469 

Total comprehensive Income for the year: 
Profit after taxation 93,168,490 93,168,490 

Other Comprehensive Income 

93,168,490 93,168,490 

Balance as at June 30, 2023 74,000,030 193,631,929 261,631,959 

The annexed notes form an integral part of tQese financial statements. 

7 
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer 
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ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS 
Atlas Energy Limited hereafter referred as "the Company" was incorporated as an unquoted - 
public limited company in Pakistan on May 18, 2016, under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 
1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017). 
The purpose of Atlas Energy Limited is to provide cost effective solar solutions for industrial and 
commercial consumers. 

Shirazi Investments (Private) Limited - holding company held 100% (2022:100%) ordinary shares 
of the Company. 

1.1 Geographical location and address of major business units including mills I plant of the Company 
are as under: 
Lahore Purpose 

64/XX, Khayaban -e- lqbal, DHA Phase Ill. Registered office 

Karachi 
2nd Floor, Federation House, Shahra-e-Fardousi, 

Main Clifton. Branch office 
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
2.1 Statement of compliance 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting 
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in 
Pakistan comprise of: 

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board (lASS) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act); 

- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Pakistan as notified under the Act; and 
Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017. 

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, differ with the 
requirements of lAS 34, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 
have been followed. 

2.2 Basis of measurement 
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention. 

2.3 Functional and presentation currency 

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Company's functional 
and presentation currency. All financial information presented in Pakistan Rupees has been 
rounded to the nearest rupees unless otherwise specified. 

2.4 INITIAL APPLICATION OF STANDARDS, AMEMDMENTS OR INTERPRETATIONS TO 
EXISTING STANDARDS 

2.4.1 Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards effective in current year and 
have been adopted by the Company 
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are consistent 
with those of the previous financial year, except for change resulted due to adoption of 
amendments to accounting standards. The below mentioned amendments to approved 
accounting standards are effective for the financial year beginning on July 01, 2022 and have 
been adopted by the Company: 

a) lAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 
Under lAS 37, a contract is onerous' when the unavoidable costs of meeting the contractual 
obligations — i.e. the lower of the costs of fulfilling the contract and the costs of terminating it — 
outweigh the economic benefits. The amendments clarify that the 'costs of fulfilling a contract' 
comprise both the incremental costs — e.g. direct labor and materials; and an allocation of other 
direct costs — e.g. an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and 
equipment used in fulfilling the contract. 



ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED (2) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

b) lAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment 

Amendment to lAS 16 (regarding proceeds before an assets intended use) prohibit a company 
from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment amounts received from selling 
items produced while the Company is preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, a 
Company will recognise such sales proceeds and related cost in profit or loss. The amendments 
apply retrospectively, but only to items of PPE made available for use on or after the beginning of 
the earliest period presented in the financial statements in which the Company first applies the 
amendments. 

The adoption of the above amendments to accounting standards did not have any material effect 
on the financial statement of the Company. 

2.4.2 Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations that are 
not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Company 

a) lAS I Presentation of Financial Statements Effective: January 01, 2024 

The amendments clarify how to classify a debt and other liabilities as current or non-current. The 
IASB issued amendments to lAS ito specify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current 
or non-current. The amendments clarify the following: 

what is meant by a right to defer settlement; 

that a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period; 

that classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral right; 
and 

- only covenants with which an entity is required to comply on or before the reporting date 
affect the classification of a liability as current or non-current. In addition, an entity has to 
disclose information in the notes that enables users of financial statements to understand 
the risk that non-current liabilities with covenants could become repayable within twelve 
months. 

b) lAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors Effective: January 01, 2023 

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in 
accounting policies and the correction of errors. The amendments introduce a new definition for 
accounting estimates clarifying that they are monetary amounts in the financial statements that 
are subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify the relationship between 
accounting policies and accounting estimates by specifying that a Company develops an 
accounting estimate to achieve the objective set out by an accounting policy. The amendments 
will apply prospectively to changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies 
occurring on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period in which the company 
applies the amendments. 

c) lAS I Presentation of Financial Statements Effective: January 01, 2023 

Amendments to lAS 1, 'Presentation of Financial Statements' includes requiring companies to 
disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies, 
clarifying that accounting policies related to immaterial transactions, other events or conditions 
are themselves immaterial and as such need not be disclosed and also clarifying that not all 
accounting policies that relate to material transactions, other events or conditions are themselves 
material to a Company's financial statements. 

The Company has assessed that the impact of above amendments is not expected to be 
significant. 

There are number of other standards, amendments and interpretations to the approved 
accounting standards that are not yet effective and are also not relevant to the Company and 
therefore, have not been presented here. 
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2.5 Critical accounting estimates and judgements 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards 
requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application 
of policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Estimates and 
judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors! 
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances. 

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting 
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. Judgments, estimates and 
assumptions made by the management that may have a significant risk of material adjustment to 
the financial statements in the subsequent year are as follows; 

(a) Plant and equipment 

The Company reviews appropriateness of the rates of depreciation, useful lives and residual 
values for calculation of depreciation on an on-going basis. Further, where applicable, an 
estimate of recoverable amount of asset is made if indicators of impairment are identified. 

(b) Inventory 

The Company estimates the net realizable value of equipment inventory to assess any diminution 
in the carrying value. Net  realizable value is determined with reference to estimated selling price 
less estimated expenditure to make sale. Provision is made in the financial statements for 
obsolete and slow moving stock-in-trade based on management estimate. 

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set 
out below. These polices have been consistently applied to all the years presented. 

3.1 Plant and equipment 

Owned assets 

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. 

Depreciation 

Depreciation on all items of plant and equipment except for vehicles is charged to statement of 
profit or loss applying the straight line method. Vehicles are depreciated using the reducing 
balance method so as to write off historical cost of an asset over its estimated useful life. Rates 
of depreciation is stated in note 4.1. 

Depreciation on addition in plant and equipment is charged from the date of addition while no 
depreciation is charged in the date of disposal. The Company reviews the useful life and residual 
value of plant and equipment on a regular basis. Any change in estimates in future years might 
affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of plant and equipment with a corresponding 
effect on depreciation charge. 

Disposal 

Gains or losses on disposal or retirement of fixed assets are determined as the difference 
between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of assets and are included in the statement 
of profit or loss. 

Capital work-in-progress 

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost accumulated up to the statement of financial position 
date less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Capital work-in-progress is recognized as an 
operating fixed asset when it is made available for intended use. 
Impairment 

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each statement of financial position date to 
determine whether there is any indication of impairment of any asset or a group of assets. If any 
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of that asset is estimated and impairment losses 
are recognized in the profit and loss account. 
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3.2 Right-of-use assets and lease liability 

As per IFRS 16, the Company has to recognize right to use assets and a corresponding lease 
liability. The lease liability will be measured at the present value of the consideration (lease 
payments) to be made over the lease term. I he lease payments will be discounted using the 
interest rate implicit in the tease, unless it is not readily determinable, in which case the Company 
may use the incremental rate of borrowing. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at the 
present value of lease liability and adjusted for lease prepayments/accruals and borrowing costs. 

The right-of-use assets recognized subsequent to the adoption are measured based on the initial 
amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the 
commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred, The right-of-use assets are 
depreciated over the lease term using a straight line basis as it closely reflects the expected 
pattern of consumption of future economic benefits. The right-of-use assets are reduced by 
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of lease liability. 

3.3 Financial assets 

Initial measurement 

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following three measurement categories: 

- fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI); 

- fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and 

- measured at amortized cost. 

A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction 
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition. 

Subsequent Measurement 

Equity Instruments at FVTOCI 

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as 
income in the statement of profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognized in 
statement of other comprehensive income and are never reclassified to the statement of 
profit or loss. 

Debt Instruments at FVTOCI 

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest I mark-up income 
calculated using the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and 
impairment are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are 
recognized in statement of other comprehensive income. On derecognition, gains and 
losses accumulated in statement of other comprehensive income are reclassified to the 
statement of profit or loss. 

Debt Instruments at FVTPL 

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net  gains and losses, including any 
interest I mark-up or dividend income, are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 

Financial Assets measured at amortised cost 

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest 
method. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest I mark-up income, 
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in the statement of profit 
or loss. 

Derecognition 

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets 
have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks 
and rewards of ownership. 



ATLAS ENERGY LIMI TED (5) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

3.4 Trade debts and other receivables and related impairment 

Trade debts and other receivables are recognized when an unconditional right to amount of 
consideration is established. 

Trade debts are measured at the transaction price measured under IFRS 15. A loss allowance is 
recognized for trade debts based on lifetime expected credit losses at each reporting date based 
on Company's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to 
the debtors and the economic environment. 

Other receivables are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized 
cost using the effective interest method, less expected credit losses as explained in note 3.3. The 
trade debts mainly comprise of a balances with related parties which are considered as good and 
having no impact of expected credit loss. 

3.5 Equipment inventory 

Equipment inventory is valued principally at lower of weighted average cost and net realizable 
value except for the item in transit stated at invoice value plus other charges thereon till the 
reporting date, while item considered obsolete are carried at nil value. 

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less 
costs necessarily to be incurred in order to make the sale. Provision is made in the financial 
statements for obsolete and slow moving stock-in-trade based on management estimate. 

3.6 Impairment 

(a) Financial assets 

The Company recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses ("ECL') for all debt 
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference 
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows 
that the Company expects to receive, The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to the 
asset's original effective interest rate. 

ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a 
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that 
result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For 
those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial 
recognition, a loss allowance Is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the 
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL). 

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 60 days past 
due. However, iii certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default 
when internal or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the 
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held 
by the Company. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of 
recovering the contractual cash flows. 

For trade debts, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs based on lifetime 
expected credit losses. The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on the 
Company's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the 
debtors and the economic environment. The expected credit losses are recognized in the 
statement of profit or loss. 

For bank balances, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs based on 
lifetime expected credit losses. The Company reviews internal and external information available 
for each bank balance to assess expected credit loss and the likelihood to receive the 
outstanding contractual amount. The expected credit losses are recognized in the statement of 
profit or loss. 
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(b) Non-financial assets 

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date 
to identify circumstances indicating occurrence of impairment loss or reversal of provisions for 
impairment losses. If any indications exist, the recoverable amounts of such assets are estimated 
and impairment losses or reversals of impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit 
or loss. Reversal of impairment loss is restricted to the original cost of the asset. 

3.7 Financial liabilities 

Initial measurement 

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss! loans and borrowings! payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging 
instruments in an effective hedge! as appropriate. 

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings 
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

The Company's financial liabilities include long term loans, creditors, accrued and other liabilities. 

Subsequent Measurement 

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at 
amortized cost using the ElR method, Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the 
liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process. 

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and 
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance 
costs in the statement of comprehensive income. 

This category applies to long term loans, short term borrowings utilized under mark-up 
arrangements!  creditors, liabilities against assets subject to finance lease, accrued and other 
liabilities. 

Derecognition 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. 

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange 
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new 
liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of 
profit or loss. 

3.8 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash in hand, cash at banks and short-term highly 
liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to 
insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash 
equivalents comprise bank balances including short-term deposits net of bank overdraft, if any. 

3.9 Contract asset 

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to 
the customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before 
the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized 
for the earned consideration that is conditional. 

3.10 Contract liabilities 

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the 
Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If 
a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, 
a contract liability is recognized when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is 
earlier). Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs under the 
contract. 
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3.11 Borrowings 

Borrowings are recorded at the proceeds received. Financial charges are accounted for on 
accrual basis and are included in mark up accrued on loans to the extent of amount remaining 
unpaid, if any. 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying 
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their 
intended use, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially 
ready for their intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to the income statement , in 
the period in which these are incurred. 

3.12 Trade and other payables 

Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at their amortised cost, which approximates 
fair value of the consideration to be paid in future for goods and services received, whether or not 
billed to the Company. 

3.13 Provisions 

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present (legal or constructive) obligation as 
a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligations can be 
made. Provisions are reviewed at each statement of financial position date and accordingly 
adjusted to reflect current best estimates. 

3.14 Taxation 

Income tax on profit and loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. 

Current 

Profit and gains derived by the Company from the power generation project are exempt from the 
tax under Clause (132) of Part I of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. 
The Company is also exempt from the minimum tax on the turnover under Clause 1 1A (v) of the 
Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. 

However, provision for current taxation on profits and gains other than from power generation 
project is based on taxable income at current rates of taxation after taking into account tax 
credits and rebates available, if any, in accordance with the provision of the Income Tax 
Ordinance, 2001. It also includes any adjustment to tax payable in respect of prior years. 
Deferred 

As the Company's revenue is exempt from tax, therefore no deferred tax has been recognized in 
these financial statements. 

3.15 Revenue Recognition 

Revenue recognition policy 

The Company is in the business of power generation and sale of energy. Revenue from contract 
with customer is recognized when control of the goods are transferred to the customer at an 
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange 
for those goods or services. Specific revenue recognition details are as follows: 
Sale of energy 

Revenue from the sale of energy is recognized upon the transfer of control of the goods to the 
buyer when performance obligation is satisfied, which refers to the transmission of Net Electrical 
Output (NEO) to customer through solar solution installed at premises of customer, as agreed in 
the Agreements for sale and purchase of electricity. 
Determining the timing of satisfaction of performance obligations 

The Company concluded that revenue from electricity is to be recognized at over time because 
the electricity element represents a promise to transfer a series of distinct goods that are 
substantially the same and that have the same pattern of transfer to the customer; therefore the 
electricity represents one performance obligation that is satisfied over time. Further, electricity is 
distinct and the buyer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefit provided by the 
Company. 
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Sale of equipment 

Revenue from the sale of equipment is recognized upon the transfer of control of the goods to 
the buyer when performance obligation is satisfied, which refers to the transfer of equipment to 
the customer. 

Determining the timing of satisfaction of performance obligations 

The Company concluded that revenue from sale of equipment is to be recognized at a point in 
time when the asset is actually transferred to the customer. The transfer of equipment to the 
customer represents a single performance obligation. Therefore, revenue is recognized when the 
control of the asset is transferred to the customer. 

Provision of engineering and installation services 

Revenue from the provision of engineering and installation services is recognized when the 
equipment is installed at the customer premises and performance obligation is satisfied, which 
refers to the provision of installation services related to equipment sold by the Company. 

Determining the timing of satisfaction of performance obligations 

The Company concluded that revenue from provision of engineering and installation services is 
to be recognized at a point in time when the asset is actually installed at the customer premises 
by the company. The provision of engineering and installation services to the customer 
represents a single performance obligation. Therefore, revenue is recognized when the services 
are performed. 

3.16 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities 

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amount is reported in the statement 
of financial position if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized 
amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously. 

4. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Note 
2023 

- - - Rupees 
2022 

- - - 

Operating fixed assets 4.1 455,762,888 729,049,333 

Capital work in progress 4.4 18,754,137 

474,517,025 729,049,333 
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4.1 Operating fixed assets 

Cost 

Plant and 
equipment 

Computers Vehicles Total 

Rupees  

Balance as at July 01, 2021 259,438,289 119,500 259,557,789 

Additions during the year 494,363415 176,666 494,540,081 

Balance as at June 30, 2022 753,801,704 296,166 754,097,870 

Balance as at July01, 2022 753,801,704 296,166 754,097,870 

Additions during the year 240,000 12,021,097 12,261,097 

Disposals during the year (263,917,526) (587200) (264,504,726) 

Balance as at June 30, 2023 489,884,178 536,166 11,433,897 501,854,241 

Depreciation 

Balance as at July01, 2021 12,871,008 73,027 - 12,944,035 

Charge for the year 12,025,410 79,092 12,104,502 

Balance as at June 30, 2022 24,896,418 152,119 - 25,048,537 

Balance as at July01, 2022 24,896,418 152,119 25,048,537 

Charge for the year 26,633,168 132,194 2,214,553 28,979,915 

On disposals during the year (7,917,526) - (19,573) (7,937,099) 

Balance as at June 30, 2023 43,612,060 284,313 2,194,980 46,091,353 

Book value as at 
June 30, 2022 728,905,286 144,047 729,049,333 

Book value as at 
June 30, 2023 446,272,118 251,853 9,238,917 455,762,888 
Depreciation rate (To) 4 33 20 



Net 
book 
value 

Gain Sold to: 
Mode of 
disposal 

Sale 
proceeds 

Accumu• 
Particulars of assets Cost lated 

depreciation 
Rupees 
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4.1.1 The Company has purchased vehicles from Atlas Honda Limited (a related party) of Rs.5.34 
million and Atlas Power Limited (a related party) of Rs. 3.92 million (2022: Rs. Nil). 

4.1.2 This represents assets installed at Atlas Honda Limited (AHL), a related party, for the purpose of 
generation of solar based energy for the duration of solar energy agreement. 

4.1.3 The cost of plant and equipment includes provision for equipment restoration amounting to Rs. 
5.588 million (2022: Rs. 5.588 million). 

4.t4 There are fully depreciated assets having cost of Rs.119,500 that are still in use as at year end. 

4.2 Depreciation for the year has been 
apportioned as under: 

Cost of sales 

Administrative expenses 

4.3 Disposal of Operating Fixed Assets 

2023 2022 
- - - Rupees - - - 

28,847,721 12025,410 

132,194 79,092 

28,979,915 12,104,502 

Assets having net book value 
exceeding Rs.500,000 each 

Vehicles 

587200 19,573 567,627 567627 - Company policy Mr. Tanzil lii Rabman 
(Employee) 

Suzuki Cuitus 

Plant and equipment 

Solar Modules 263917526 7917,526 256000,000 256,000,000 Negotiation Alias Honda Limited (a 
related party) 

2023 264,504,726 7,937,099 256,567,627 256,567,627 

2022 

4.4 Capital work-in-progress 2023 2022 
Note - - - Rupees - - - 

Opening balance as at 1 July 

Addition during the year 

Transfer to operating fixed assets 

Closing balance as at 30 June 

4.4.1 18,754,137 494,363,415 

(494,363,415) 

 

18,754,137 

 

4.4.1 Preceding years additions to capital work-in-progress includes borrowing costs for phase 03 
project determined using an average capitalization rate of 14.08% amounting to Rs. 4.873 
million. 

5. TRADE DEBTS — unsecured 

5.1 This relates to an amount receivable from Atlas Honda Limited (a related party). The maximum 
aggregate amount outstanding at any time during the year was Rs,17.664 million(2022: Rs,6,709 
million). 

5.2 Aging of balance due but not impaired: 
2023 2022 

- - - Rupees - - - 
0-3 months 17.664.483 6708,522 
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6. INVENTORY 2023 2022 
Note - - - Rupees - - - 

Equipment inventory 9,268,098 9,413,455 

Work in progress 6.1 512,118 15,770,149 

9,780,216 25,183,604 

6.1 This includes stock held by related parties amounting to Rs. 9.268 million (2022: 17.800 million). 

LOANS AND ADVANCES - unsecured 
considered good Note 

2023 2022 
---Rupees--- 

Advance tax 17,488,018 2,065,106 

Loans and advances to employees 1,072,456 389,454 

18,560,474 2,454,560 

OTHER RECEIVABLES - considered good 

Sales tax receivable 46,513,764 63,658,645 

Profit receivable 85,887 

Security deposits 1,725,300 

48,324,951 63,658,645 

SHORT TERM INVESTMENT 

Investment in mutual funds 9.1 45,076,729 3,844,867 

Investment in term deposit receipts 9.2 25,000,000 1,000,000 

70,076,729 4,844,867 

9.1 This represents investment in mutual funds managed by Atlas Asset Management Limited (a 
related Party), the breakup of the investment is as follows: 
Related parties: 

2023 2022 2023 2022 
- - - - Units - - - Rupees - - - 

Atlas income funds 9.336 6.809 4,896 3,564 
Atlas Money Market Funds 88,635.656 7,568.966 45,071,833 3,841,303 

45,076,729 3,844,867 

9.1.1 The fair value of these investments has been determined using their respective net assets value, 
published by Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) on its website at the reporting date. 

9.2 This represents an investment in term deposits with Habib Bank Limited (a commercial bank) 
having maturity of 1 year and carrying markup at 18.66% (2021: 6%) per annum. 

3.  

7.  

8.  

9.  

LONG TERM FINANCING - Secured 

Habib Bank Limited 

Note 
2023 

- - - Rupees 
2022 

- - - 

- Long term finance facility - phase 1 10.1 52,144,000 59,596,000 

- Long term finance facility - phase 2 10.1 93,157,000 102,796,000 

- Long term finance facility - phase 3 10.2 135,000,000 272,500,000 

280,301,000 434,892,000 

Less: current portion grouped under 
current liabilities 38,517,000 20,304000 

241,784,000 414,588,000 
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10.1 The Company has arranged long term finance facility amounting Rs.270 million from Habib Bank 
Limited under SBP Financing Scheme for Renewable Energy. The bank against the said facility 
disbursed Rs.203 million in three tranches of different amounts. The loan is repayable in 40 equal 
quarterly installments. These finances carry mark-up at the SBP rate plus 1% and are secured 
against first charge over all present and future current and non-current assets of the Company 
with the margin of 10% and 20% respectively. 

10.2 The Company, during the preceding year, has arranged long term finance facility amounting 
Rs.272.5 million having a total limit of PKR 400 million including loan from SBP under Green 
Financing Facility of Rs.150 million repayable in 40 equal quarterly instalments. This facility has 
obtained by the Company for the purpose of financing the capital expenditure. This facility is 
secured by current and non-current assets of the Company with the margin of 20%. The rate of 
mark-up is 4% for the loan facility of Rs.150 million and KIBOR plus 1% for the loan facility of 
Rs 122.5 million. The mark-up will be payable on each quarter along with the payment of 
principal. This facility also includes certain financial covenants, breaches in meeting the financial 
covenants would permit the bank to immediately call these bank facilities. 

11. SECURITY DEPOSIT 

This represent amount received from Atlas Honda Limited (a related party) equivalent to three 
months energy invoices. 

12. CONTRACT LIABILITY 

This represent advance consideration received from customer in ordinary course of business. 
The breakup of the same is as follows: 

2023 2022 
- - - Rupees - - - 

Honda Atlas Cars Pakistan Limited 69.414.802 

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 2023 2022 
- - - Rupees - - - 

Trade creditors 19,425,665 

Provision for equipment restoration 5,588,904 5,588904 

Income tax deducted at source 43,047 3,598924 

Accrued liabilities 6,623,313 428,760 

Provision for workers profit participation fund 12,194,211 

Provision for workers welfare fund 1,971,617 

Retention money payable 458,458 458,458 

Others 1,824,950 1,855,704 

48,130,165 11930,750 

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 

14.1 Contingencies 
There are no contingencies to be reported as at June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2022. 
Commitments 

14.2 Guarantees aggregating Rs.500,000 (2022:Rs.1000,000) have been issued to Alternative 
Energy Development Board (AEDB) for upgradation of vendor category of the Company through 
a bank. 

12.1 The contract liabilities outstanding as at June 30, 2022 have been recognized as revenue during 
the year. 

13.  

14.  
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15. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMER - net 

Note 

TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

2023 2022 
- - - Rupees - - - 

Energy Revenue 178,320,838 70,485,641 
Less: Sale tax 26,575,527 10,241,503 

151,745,311 60,244,138 
Revenue from sale of solar related equipment 209,772,705 130,819,606 
Less: Sale tax 21,825,354 635,871 

187,947,351 130,183,935 
Revenue from engineering and consultancy services 17,370,506 12,001,979 
Less: Sale tax 2,222,667 1,390,304 

15,147,839 10,611,675 

354,840,501 201,039,748 

15.1 Timing of revenue recognition 

Good transferred to customer over time 151,745,311 60,244,138 

Good transferred to customer at a point in time 203,095,190 140,795,610 

354,840,501 201,039,748 

16.  COST OF SALES 

Cost of solar related equipment 156,206,687 100,230,878 
Depreciation 4.2 28,847,721 12,025,410 

NEPRA generation license fees 226,704 88,516 

Operation and maintenance cost 2,493,125 1,432,466 

Insurance of plant and equipment 4,617,721 1,584,095 

192,391,958 115,361,365 

17.  ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 

Legal and professional charges 829,056 410,750 

Auditor's remuneration 17.1 361,504 330,050 

Depreciation 4.2 132,194 79,092 

Donations 17.2 2,307,741 1,120,041 

Membership and annual subscription fee 1,065,882 258,409 

Others 1,068,285 92,688 

5,764,662 2,291,030 

17.1 Auditors' remuneration 

Annual audit fee - current year 330,050 330,050 

- prior year 31,454 

361,504 330,050 

17.2 This includes an amount of Rs.1,000,000 (2022: Rs.993,196) paid to Atlas Foundation (a related 
party). Mr. Saqib Shirazi (Director) is a trustee of Atlas Foundation. 

18.  FINANCE COST 2023 2022 
---Rupees--- 

Markup on long term finance 41,832,634 7,407,766 

Bank charges 35,542 29,409 

41,868,176 7,437,175 
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OTHER INCOME 2023 2022 
- --Rupees --- 

Profit on term deposit receipts 7,646,899 3,353,169 

Unrealized gain on mutual funds 1,138,347 770,908 

8,785,246 4124,077 

OTHER EXPENSES 

Workers profit participation fund 12,194,211 

Workers welfare fund 1,971,617 

14,165,828 

TAXATION 

Current tax on profit for the year 15,815,586 12,684,438 

Adjustment in respect of prior year 451,047 

16,266,633 12,684,438 

CASH GENERATED FROM 
OPERATIONS Note 

2023 2022 
- - - Rupees - - - 

Profit before taxation 109,435,123 80,074,255 

Adjustments for non-cash and other items: 

Depreciation 28,979,915 12,104,502 

Finance cost 41,832,634 7,407,766 

Provision for workers profit participation fund 12,194,211 

Provision for workers welfare fund 1,971,617 

Working capital changes 22.1 (218,944,519) 130,258,638 

(24,531,019) 229,845,161 

Working capital changes 

(Increase) I decrease in current assets: 

- inventory 15,403,388 70,079,556 

- trade debts (10,955,961) (460,797) 

- advances (16,105,914) (2,290,796) 

- short term investment (65,231,862) 9,883,753 

- other receivables 15,333,694 (61,562,029) 

(61,556,655) 15,649,687 

Increase! (decrease) in current liabilities: 

- trade and other payables 22,033,587 (14,812,500) 

- project payable (110,006,649) 110,006,649 

- contract liability (69,414,802) 19,414,802 

(157,387,864) 114,608,951 

(218,944,519) 130,258,638 

19.  

20.  

21.  

21.1 No deferred tax assets or liability has been recognised as the revenue generated by Company is 
exempt from tax as explained in note 3.14. The above tax amount includes provision for taxation 
of Rs.14,049,032 (2022: Rs.11,958,921) on revenue from sale of solar relate equipment and 
from engineering and consulting services. The other amount included in the above tax relate to 
minimum tax (2022: minimum tax ) paid over income earned from mutual funds and term deposit 
receipts. 

22.  

22.1 
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23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: 

- market risk 

- credit risk; and 

- liquidity risk. 

The Company's Board of Directors (the Board) has overall responsibility for the establishment 
and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. The Board is also responsible for 
developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies. 

The Company's overall risk management programmed focuses on the unpredictability of financial 
markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company's financial 
performance. Risk management is carried out by a treasury department under policies approved 
by the Board. The treasury department identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks. The 
Board provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering 
specific areas, such as currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative and non-
derivative financial instruments and investment of excess liquidity. 

23.1 Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of three types of risks: currency risk, 
interest rate risk and price risk. 

(a) Currency risk 

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign currency risk arises mainly 
where receivables and payables exist due to transactions entered into foreign currencies. The 
Company is not exposed to currency risk as all financial instruments are in local currency. 

(b) Price risk 

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
as a result of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or 
currency risk) whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial 
instruments or its issuer or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. 
The Company is not exposed to price risk with respect to its investments in mutual funds as at 
June 30, 2023. 

(c) Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the financial instruments will 
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company manages these 
mismatches through risk management strategies where significant changes in gap position can 
be adjusted. The Company is exposed to interest rate risk on long term finances and its 
investment in term deposit receipts. 

23.2 Credit risk exposure and concentration of credit risk 

Credit risk represents the risk of a loss lithe counter party fails to discharge its obligation and 
cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company attempts to control credit risk by 
monitoring credit exposures, limiting transactions with specific counterparties and continually 
assessing the credit worthiness of counterparties. 

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar 
business activities or have similar economic features that would cause their abilities to meet 
contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other 
conditions. Concentration of credit risk indicates the relative sensitivity of the Company's 
performance to developments affecting a particular industry. 
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Credit risk primarily arises from trade debts, advances, other receivables, short term investments 
and balances with banks. To manage exposure to credit risk in respect of trade debts, 
management performs credit reviews taking into account the customer's financial position, past 
experience and other relevant factors. Where considered necessary, advance payments are 
obtained from certain parties. The management has set a maximum credit period of 15 days to 
reduce the credit risk. Credit risk on bank balances is limited as the counter parties are banks 
with reasonably high credit ratings. 

Exposure to credit risk 

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at June 30, 2023 along with comparative is tabulated 
below: 

2023 
- - - Rupees - 

2022 

Trade debts 17,664,483 6,708,522 
Other receivables 48,324,951 63,658,645 

Short term investments 70,076,729 4,844,867 

Cash and bank balances 2,782,986 15,266,680 

138,849,149 90,478,714 

The credit quality of loans and other receivables can be assessed with reference to their 
historical performance with no or negligible defaults in recent history and no losses incurred. 
Accordingly, management does not expect any counter party to fail in meeting their obligations. 
The credit quality of the Company's bank balances can be assessed with reference to the 
external credit ratings as follows: 

Rating 
Name of Bank short term long term agency 
National Bank of Pakistan A1+ AAA VIS 
Habib Bank Limited A1+ MA VIS 

23.3 Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they 
fall due. The Company's approach is to ensure, as tar as possible, to always have sufficient 
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining 
sufficient cash and marketable securities and ensuring the availability of adequate credit 
facilities. The Company's treasury department aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by keeping 
committed credit lines available. 
Financial liabilities in accordance with their contractual maturities are presented below: 

2023 
Contractual cash flows 

Particulars Carrying 

amount Total 
Less than I Between ito More than 5 

year 5 years years 

Rupees 

Long term financing 280,301,000 322,311,759 46,038,121 208,048,884 68,224,754 

Trade and other payables 48,130,165 48,130,165 48,130,165 

Accrued mark-up 2,895,391 2,895,391 2,895,391 

Security deposit 28,000,000 28,000,000 28,000,000 

359,326,556 401,337,315 97,063,677 208,048,884 96,224,754 
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2022 

Contractual cash flows 

Particulars Carrying 

amount Total 
Less than 1 

year 

Between ito 5 

years 
More than 5 

years 

 Rupees  

Long term financing 414588,000 434,892,000 62,554,000 312,770000 59,568,000 

Trade and other payables 11,930,750 11930,750 11,930750 

Accrued mark-up 6,638,700 6,638,700 6,638,700 

Contract liability 69,414,802 69,414,802 69,414,802 

Security deposit 28,000,000 28,000,000 28,000,000 

Project payable 110006649 110,006,649 110,006,649 

640,578,901 660,882,901 260,544,901 312,770,000 87,568,000 

The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the 
basis of mark-up I interest rates effective at the respective year-ends. The rates of mark-up / 
interest have been disclosed in the respective notes to these financial statements. 

23.4 Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date 
under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly 
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. 

The Company classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the 
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the 
following levels: 

Valuation techniques used to determine fair values 

Level 1: 

Level 2: 

Level 3: 

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the 
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived 
from prices). 

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that 
is, unobservable inputs). 

As at June 30, 2023, all financial assets and financial liabilities reflected in the financial 
statements approximate to their fair values. 

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the 
reporting period during which the transfer has occurred. 

The Company's policy for determining when transfers between levels in the hierarchy have 
occurred includes monitoring of the following factors: 

changes in market and trading activity (e.g. significant increases I decreases in activity) 

changes in inputs used in valuation techniques (e.g. inputs becoming / ceasing to be 
observable in the market) 

There were no transfers between level 1, 2 or 3 of the fair value hierarchy during the year. 
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23.5 Financial instruments by category 

Amortised cost 

Financial assets 2023 2022 
as per statement of 

financial position 
- - - Rupees - - - 

Trade debts 11,664,483 6,708,522 

Other receivables 48,324,951 63,658,645 

Short term investments 70,076,729 4,844,867 

Cash and bank balances 2,782,986 15,266,680 

138,849,149 90,478,714 

Amortised cost 

Financial liabilities 2023 2022 
as per statement of 

financial position 
- - - Rupees - - - 

Long term financing 241,784,000 414,588,000 

Security deposit 28,000,000 28,000,000 

Accrued mark-up 2,895,391 6,638,700 

Trade and other payables 48,130.165 11,930750 

Project payable 110,006,649 

320,809,556 571,164,099 

23.6 Capital risk management 

The Company's prime objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a 
going concern so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders, benefits for other 
stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital base to support the sustained development of its 
business. 

The Company manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes 
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the 
capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders and / or 
issuer new shares. 

Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. 
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net  debt is calculated as total 
borrowings less cash and bank balances. Total capital is calculated as equity as shown in the 
statement of financial position plus net debt. 

2023 
- - - Rupees 

2022 
- - - 

Total borrowings 280,301,000 434,892,000 

Less: cash and bank balances 2,782,986 15,266,680 

Net debt 277,518,014 419,625,320 

Total equity 267,631,959 174,463,469 

Total capital 545,149,973 594,088,789 

Gearing ratio 51% 71% 

For the purpose of calculating the gearing ratio, the amount of total borrowings has been 
determined by including the effect of short term borrowings under mark-up arrangements (if any). 
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23.7 RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT OF LIABILITES TO CASH FLOWS ARISING 
FROM FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES 

Liabilities 

Long term 
finances 

Accrued 
interest! 
mark-up 

Total 

 Rupees  

Balance as at July01, 2022 434,892,000 6,638,700 441,530,700 

Finances obtained 119,500,000 119,500,000 

Finances repaid (274,091,000) (274,091,000) 

Finance cost paid - (45,575,943) (45,575,943) 

Total changes from financing cash flows 280,301,000 (38,937,243) 241,363,757 

Mark-up I interest expense 41,832,634 41,832,634 

Balance as at June 30, 2023 280,301,000 2,895,391 283,196,391 

Liabilities 

Long term 
finances 

Accrued 
interest! 
mark-un 

Total 

 Rupees  

Balance as at July 01,2021 182,696,000 1,981,924 184,677,924 

Finances obtained 272,500,000 - 272,500,000 

Finances repaid (20,304,000) (20,304,000) 

Finance cost paid (2,750,990) (2,750,990) 

Total changes from financing cash flows 434892,000 (769,066) 434,122,934 

Mark-up / interest expense 7,407,766 7,407,766 

Balance as at June 30, 2022 434,892,000 6,638,700 441,530,700 

24. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES 

Related parties comprise of the Parent company, Associated companies, directors and key 
management personnel. The Company in the normal course of business carries out transactions 
with various related parties. Detail of related parties (with whom the Company has transacted) 
along with relationship and transactions with related parties, other than those which have been 
disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, are as follows: 

24.1 Name of the related party 

Holding Company 

Shirazi Investments (Private) Limited (100% shareholding) 

Associated Companies (due to common directorship) 

Atlas Power Limited 

Honda Atlas Cars Pakistan Limited 

Atlas Solar Limited (formerly Zhenfa Pakistan New Energy Limited) 

Atlas Honda Limited 

Atlas Engineering (Private) Limited 

Atlas Autos (Private) Limited 

Atlas Insurance Limited 

Atlas Battery Limited 

Atlas Hitec (Private) Limited 

Atlas Foundation 
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24.2 Significant transactions with related parties are as follows: 

Names of Company Nature and Description of 
Related Party Transaction 

2023 

- - - Rupees 

2022 

- - - 

Atlas Power Limited 

Shirazi Investments (Private) Limited 

Purchase of assets 

Services received 

3,922,536 

428,528 

Atlas Honda Limited Revenue earned 151,745,322 71,244,138 
Security deposit received 28,000000 
Sales of assets 256,000,000 
Purchase of assets 5,344,561 

Atlas Battery Limited Revenue earned 37750,000 

Atlas Autos (Private) Limited Revenue earned 89,327,694 85145,695 

Atlas Foundation Revenue earned 214,803 4,099,915 
Donation paid 1,800,743 

Atlas Hitec (Private) Limited Revenue earned 2,800,000 

Honda Atlas Cars Pakistan Limited Advance received - 69,414,802 
Revenue earned 105,907.090 

Atlas Insurance Limited Insurance premium paid 4,617,721 3,244,902 

Key management perosnal Salary & benefits 20,506,726 

25. PLANT CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION 2023 2022 
KWH KWH 

Installed capacity-per hour (MW) 8,123 8,123 

Installed capacity 58,975,873 28,087832 

Standard generation from installed capacity 8,757,176 4,349,885 

Actual net electricity billed 8,779,818 4,386,466 

26. RENUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVE 

No remuneration has been paid to chief executive or to any of the director of the Company. 
2023 2022 

Remuneration paid to executives of the Company - - - Rupees - - - 
is as follows: 

Managerial remuneration 15,196,356 

Performance bonus 6,500,924 

Reimbursements 1,871,924 

Retirement benefits 909,744 

24,478,948 

Number of person 2 - 

27. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 

Total number of employees obtaining remuneration as at June 30, 2023 is 6 (2022: 2) and 
average number of employees for the year ended June 30, 2023 is 6 (2022: 2). 
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28. CORRESPONDING FIGURES 

Corresponding figures have been reclassified wherever necessary to reflect more appropriate 
presentation of events and transactions for the purpose of comparison in accordance with the 
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. However, no significant 
reclassification has been made in these financial statements, 

29. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE 

These condensed interim financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and 
authorized for issue on 15 AUG 2023 

 

7 
Chief Executive Officer 

 

Chairman I Difector j• Chief Financial Officer 
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applicant to whom section 130 of the Companies Act does not 
apply, a return comprising of all such information and 

particulars as required by the specified form under section 130 of 
the Companies Act, as the case may be; 
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cJ!i!IAtIasEnergy Application for Generation License 

3(4)(c)Qii) the authorised, issued, subscribed and paid up share 
capital of the applicant 



(At1asEnergy 

Noof Shares Rs. 

Authorized Share Capital 50,000,000 500,000,000  

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital 7,400003 74,000,030 

Ordinary Shares of Rs. 10 each 

Atlas Energy Limited 
Registered Office: 64/XX, flayaban.e-Iqbal,  DI-IA Phase 3, Lahore. 

Tel: +92-42-37132637-38-39, Fax: +92-42'37 132634 



(rAtlas Energy Application for Generation License 

3(4)(d)(iii) latest audited financial statements of the applicant; 



(Y1At!as Energy Application for Genera/ion License 

3(4)(c)(iv) the shareholding pattern of the applicant including list 
of shareholders holding 5% or more shares, number of shares 

held by each of them and percentage shares of the total paid-up 
capital 



'(t1asEnergy 
p 

Pattern of Shareholding 

Name of Shareholder 

Shirazi Investments (Pvt) Ltd 

Maqsood Ahmad 

No of Shareholding 
Shares Percentage 

7,400,000 99.99996% 

1 0.00001% 

Farahiin All Khan 1 0.00001% 

S Saquib H Shirazi I 0.00001% 

7,400,003 

 

100% 

   

Atlas Energy Limited 
Registered Office: 64/XX, Khayaban-e-Iqbal, DHA Phase 3, Lahore. 

Tel; +92-42-37132637-38-39, Fax: +92-42-37132634 
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3(4)(d)(i) evidence of cash balances held in reserve by the 
applicant, along with bank certificates; 



AMF-G 

Atlas Money Market Fund 

NAVDate Tmnsactlen . eroosArnount ' ':.cGt::' YaRitNetLoad 
Opening Balance as of 01-Aug.2024 

06-Aug2024 Redemption 2.000.000 00 10.29700 . . 
ot-Aug-2024 Redemption t,000.000 00 44,535.00 . - 
20-Aug2024 Salt 7,000,000.00 - . . 
27-Aug2024 Redemption 4,000,000.00 31,7t3.® . . 

DMdend Option: Reinvest 

N.tAmo.arit UnitPrlce Ne.of Units 61ance Units 
10 1.146.3124 

I .9t9,703 00 521.3256 3.836.3740) 97.309.9384 
7,955,465.00 522.2177 15,319.2816) 81,990.6568 
7,000,00000 525 2973 13,315 7871 95.316 4439 
3.968,21700 527.3502 7.585.0924) 97.731.3515 

;7) 

u4XtiasAsset Management 
minor 

14e<ji ctra r Ser'ic P: 

An Atlas ( iroup Coinpan Rated A M2l by PA( RA 

Statement of Account 
For the Period From O1-Aug-2024 to 31-Aug-2024 

Registration Number:12999 
MIS. Atlas Energy Limited 
Building No. 64, XX Block, 
Khayaban-e-lqbal, Phase 3, DHA, Lahore, Pakistan 

Contact No: 0423-1132644 

Account Into 
Zakat Status : Not Applicable 
tax Status : Applicable 
Account Type : Not Applicable 

Tax Filing Slatus : Filer 
Print Dale :03/09/2024 

AlE Dividend Option: Reinvest 

Atlas Income Fund 

NM Date Transaottqlt. Gross Amount COT ,' Zakat: '' NetLead NetAitiount UnitPrlce No.ofljnits BalanceUnlls 
Opening Balance as of 01-Aug.2024 11.05 33 

ng Balance as of 31-Aug-2024 11.0533 

at Value of investment in Plan Atlas Income Fund as of 31-Aug-2024: Rs. 6,029.70 

Closing Balance as of 31-Aug.2024 87,731 .3515 

Total Value of investment in Plan Atlas Money Market Fund - Grewth Units as of 31-Aug-2024: Rs. 46,318,898.16 

Dividend Payout - For the Period From 01-Aug-2024 to 31-Aug-2024 

Date Gross DIvIdend WIlT Zakat Other Deductions Net Dividend 

Summary of Investment - As of 31-Aug-2024 

FimndMarne7 ..... .': ...Ttiutue'efUnlb . Units unitPrlce Price Date InvestnientVaIue 
At/as Itcome Fund CLASS D lt.0533 545.5112 31-Aug-2024 6.029.701 
Atlas Money MarketFend CLASS B 87.731.3515 527 9629 31-Aug2024 463t88981!1 

46,324 928,46 

of Unit Holding-As of 31-Aug-2024 

F ndName ' ' ,AM0Eedttontc ... 'H': h5lC5 
°° tiny COBB RE Tot I a 

Mailable fllock?pledoo Available Block I Pledge 
Atlas Income Fund 11.0533 - - , . 11.0533 

MoneyMarketFscd 87,731.3515 - - . . s.z3o 3515 

For Atlas Asset Management Limited 

- Please quote your regisliaboe neabe 'a all cffleapondence inctiading request tenea. 
- Please review the stateaent carefully and repass disaepaacy in wnithg (it any) wiSh 6twen (IS) days of the dale of this statanent, atheresire II edt be conuidered correct and accepted by yea. 
- To ensure accurate rewd tar efficient sernice, please nctiu asychange is ant Issuer information including contact details to the aanagenientcompany. 

Pate I 

Head Office 
('around Floor, Federation Houjne Sharaci Firdousi, Clifton, Karactsl-75600, Pakistan. 
Ph: 192-2t) 35379505- 04, Fax: 19221) 35379280 
UAN: 92-21) ii 1-MUTU,ALIÔ-888'251 
Websine: vniw.atiasfunds.co,nn.pk (mail: lnfosctasfundt.com.pk  



(JLWAt1as Energy Ap411ication for Generation License 

3(4)(d)(ii) details of charges or encumbrances attached to the 
applicant's assets, if any; 

Not Applicable 

I 
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Cli) SHINEIMG HAMEED CHAUDHRI & Co. 
C WV PAKISTAN CHARTEREDACCOUNTANTS 

Independent Auditor's Report To The Members Of 
Atlas Enerciv Limited  

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Atlas Energy Limited (the Company), 
which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2023, the statement of profit or 
loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of 
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary 
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have 
obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, 
were necessary for the purposes of the audit. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income, the statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows together with the notes 
forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in 
Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the 
manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's 
affairs as at June 30, 2023 and of the profit, other comprehensive income, the changes in equity 
and its cash flows for the year then ended. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as 
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for 
Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We beheve that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors' Report thereon 

Management is responsible for the other information presented along with the financial 
statements and the auditors' report thereon. With respect to the Company the other information 
comprises only the Director's Report on the operations of the Company. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a 
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact, We have 
nothing to report in this regard. 

Principal Office: 
HM House 
7-Bank Square, Laiiore. 

www.hccpkcom Tel: +92 42 37235084-87 Other Offices:
' Catal st for success swinternational Email: lhr@hccpk.com Karachi, isiamabad & Muitan y 



SHIWEING HAM EED CHAUDNRI & CO, 
PA K IS TA N CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the 
requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Board of directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditors report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained upto the date of our auditors' report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a 
going concern. 

Catalyst for success 
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• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies 
in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion: 

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies 
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017); 

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income, the statement of changes In equity and the statement of cash flows together with 
the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 
2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns; 

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were 
for the purpose of the Company's business; and 

d) no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 
1980). 

Other Matter 

The financial statements for the Company for the year ended June 30, 2022 were audited by 
another firm of chartered accountants who expressed unmodified opinion on those financial 
statements on September 29, 2022. 

The Engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors report is 
Osman Hameed Chaudhri. 

StA%ALw'fl4vnA,ALa c scu4 cc, 
LAHORE; August 23, 2023 SI-IlNEWING HAMEED CHAUDHRI & CO., 
UDIN: AR2023101O4NXlJRzGVW3 CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Catalyst for success 
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Current assets 
Trade debts 
Inventory 
Loans and advances 
Other receivables 
Short term investments 
Cash and bank balances 

74,000,030 
100,463,439 

74,000,030 
193,631,929 

672,702,742 374,074,905 

ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT JUNE 30, 2023 

Note 
ASSETS 
Non-current assets 
Plant and equipment 4 

Total assets 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Share capital and reserves 
50000,000 (2022: 50,000000) ordinary 

shares of Rs. 10/- each 

7,400003 (2022: 7,400003) ordinary 
shares of Rs. 10/- each 

Unappropriated profits 

2023 2022 
Rupees  

641,706,864 847,166,211 

500,000,000 500,000,000 

267,631,959 174,463,469 
Liabilities 
Non-current liabilities 
Long term financing 
Security deposit 

Current liabilities 
Accrued mark-up 
Current portion of long term financing 
Contract liability 
Project payable 
Trade and other payables 
Provision for taxation 

Total liabilities 
Contingencies and commitments 14 

Total equity and liabilities 

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial 

641,706,864 647,166,211 

statements. 

Chairman or Chie Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer 

474,517,025 

17,664,483 
9,780,216 

18,560,474 
48,324,951 
70,076,729 

2,782,986 

167,189,839 

729,049,333 

6,708,522 
25,183,604 
2,454,560 

63,658,645 
4,844,867 

15,266,680 
118116,878 

10 
11 

10 
12 

13 

241,784,000 
28,000,000 

269,784,000 

2,895,391 
38,51 7,000 

48,130,165 
14,748,349 

104,290,905 

414,588,000 
28,000,000 

442,588,000 

6,638,700 
20,304,000 
69,414,802 

110,006,649 
11,930,750 
11,819,841 

230,114,742 



ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED 
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS & 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

Note 2023 2022 
Rupees  

Revenue from contracts with customer - net 15 354,840,501 201,039,748 

Cost of sales 16 (192,391,958) (115,361,365) 

Gross profit 162,448,543 85,678,383 

Administrative expenses 17 (5,764,662) (2,291,030) 

Finance cost 18 (41,868,176) (7,437,175) 

Other income 19 8,785,246 4,124,077 

Other expenses (14,165,828) 

Profit before taxation 109,435,123 80,074,255 

Taxation 21 (16,266,633) (12,684,438) 

Profit after taxation 93,168,490 67,389,817 

Other comprehensive income 

Total comprehensive income 93,168,490 67,389,817 

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 

\IV!I — F 
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22 (24,531,019) 229845,161 

(13,338,125) (873,005) 

(37,869,144) 228,972,156 

(31,015,234) 

256,567,627 

(494,540,081) 

225,552,393 (494,540,081) 

119,500,000 

(274,091,000) 

(45,575,943) 

252,196,000 

(2,750990) 

28,000,000 
(200,166,943) 277,445,010 

(12,483,694) 11,677,085 

15,266,680 3,389,595 

2,782,986 15,266,680 

ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED 
STATEMENT OF CASK FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

2023 2022 
Note Rupees  

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Cash (used in)! generated from operations 

Taxes paid 

Net cash (used in)! generated from operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Fixed capital expenditure 

Sale proceeds of operating fixed assets 

Net cash generated from I (used in) investing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Long term finances - obtained 

- repaid 

Finance cost paid 

Security deposit 
Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities 

Net (decrease)! increase in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents - at beginning of the year 

Cash and cash equivalents - at end of the year 

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 

—7 
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ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

Share 
capital 

Unappropriated 
profit 

Total 

Rupees  

Balance as at July 01, 2021 74,000,030 33,073,622 107,073,652 

Total comprehensive income for the year: 
Profit after taxation 67,389,817 67,389,817 

Other Comprehensive income 
67,389,817 67,389,817 

Balance as at June 30, 2022 74,000,030 100,463,439 174,463,469 

Balance as at July01, 2022 74,000,030 100,463,439 174,463,469 

Total comprehensive income for the year: 
Profit after taxation 93,168,490 93,168,490 

Other Comprehensive income 

93,168,490 93,168,490 

Balance as at June 30, 2023 74,000,030 193,631,929 267,631,959 

The annexed notes form an integral part of tQese financial statements. 

7 
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ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS 
Atlas Energy Limited hereafter referred as "the Company" was incorporated as an unquoted - 
public limited company in Pakistan on May 18, 2016, under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 
1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017). 
The purpose of Atlas Energy Limited is to provide cost effective solar solutions for industrial and 
commercial consumers, 
Shirazi Investments (Private) Limited - holding company held 100% (2022:100%) ordinary shares 
of the Company. 

1.1 Geographical location and address of major business units including mills / plant of the Company 
are as under: 
Lahore Purpose 

64/XX, Khayaban -e- lqbal, DHA Phase Ill. Registered office 

Karachi 
2nd Floor, Federation House, Shahra-e-Fardousi, 

Main Clifton. Branch office 

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
2.1 Statement of compliance 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting 
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in 
Pakistan comprise of: 

- International Financial Reporting Standards (lFRS Standards) issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board (lASS) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act); 
Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Pakistan as notified under the Act; and 

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017. 
Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, differ with the 
requirements of lAS 34, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 
have been followed. 

2.2 Basis of measurement 
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention. 

2.3 Functional and presentation currency 
These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Company's functional 
and presentation currency. All financial information presented in Pakistan Rupees has been 
rounded to the nearest rupees unless otherwise specified. 

2.4 INITIAL APPLICATION OF STANDARDS, AMEMDMENTS OR INTERPRETATIONS TO 
EXISTING STANDARDS 

2.4.1 Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards effective in current year and 
have been adopted by the Company 
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are consistent 
with those of the previous financial year, except for change resulted due to adoption of 
amendments to accounting standards. The below mentioned amendments to approved 
accounting standards are effective for the financial year beginning on July 01, 2022 and have 
been adopted by the Company: 

a) lAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 
Under lAS 37, a contract is 'onerous' when the unavoidable costs of meeting the contractual 
obligations — i.e. the lower of the costs of fulfilling the contract and the costs of terminating it — 
outweigh the economic benefits. The amendments clarify that the 'costs of fulfilling a contract' 
comprise both the incremental costs — e.g. direct labor and materials; and an allocation of other 
direct costs — e.g. an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and 
equipment used in fulfilling the contract. 



ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED (2) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

b) lAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment 

Amendment to lAS 16 (regarding proceeds before an assets intended use) prohibit a company 
from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment amounts received from selling 
items produced while the Company is preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, a 
Company will recognise such sales proceeds and related cost in profit or loss. The amendments 
apply retrospectively, but only to items of PRE made available for use on or after the beginning of 
the earliest period presented in the financial statements in which the Company first applies the 
amendments. 

The adnption of the above amendments to accounting standards did not have any material effect 
on the financial statement of the Company. 

2.4.2 Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations that are 
not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Company 

a) lAS I Presentation of Financial Statements Effective: January 01, 2024 

The amendments clarify how to classify a debt and other liabilities as current or non-current. The 
IASB issued amendments to lAS ito specify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current 
or non-current. The amendments clarify the following: 

- what is meant by a right to defer settlement; 

- that a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period; 

- that classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral right; 
and 

only covenants with which an entity is required to comply on or before the reporting date 
affect the classification of a liability as current or non-current. In addition, an entity has to 
disclose information in the notes that enables users of financial statements to understand 
the risk that non-current liabilities with covenants could become repayable within twelve 
months. 

b) lAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors Effective: January 01, 2023 

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in 
accounting policies and the correction of errors. The amendments introduce a new definition for 
accounting estimates clarifying that they are monetary amounts in the financial statements that 
are subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify the relationship between 
accounting policies and accounting estimates by specifying that a Company develops an 
accounting estimate to achieve the objective set out by an accounting policy. The amendments 
will apply prospectively to changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies 
occurring on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period in which the company 
applies the amendments. 

c) lAS I Presentation of Financial Statements Effective: January 01, 2023 

Amendments to lAS 1, 'Presentation of Financial Statements' includes requiring companies to 
disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies, 
clarifying that accounting policies related to immaterial transactions, other events or conditions 
are themselves immaterial and as such need not be disclosed and also clarifying that not all 
accounting policies that relate to material transactions, other events or conditions are themselves 
material to a Company's financial statements. 

The Company has assessed that the impact of above amendments is not expected to be 
significant. 

There are number of other standards, amendments and interpretations to the approved 
accounting standards that are not yet effective and are also not relevant to the Company and 
therefore, have not been presented here. 
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2.5 Critical accounting estimates and judgements 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards 
requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application 
of policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Estimates and 
judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, 
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances. 

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting 
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. Judgments, estimates and 
assumptions made by the management that may have a significant risk of material adjustment to 
the financial statements in the subsequent year are as follows; 

(a) Plant and equipment 

The Company reviews appropriateness of the rates of depreciation, useful lives and residual 
values for calculation of depreciation on an on-going basis. Further, where applicable, an 
estimate of recoverable amount of asset is made if indicators of impairment are identified. 

(b) Inventory 

The Company estimates the net realizable value of equipment inventory to assess any diminution 
in the carrying value. Net  realizable value is determined with reference to estimated selling price 
less estimated expenditure to make sale, Provision is made in the financial statements for 
obsolete and slow moving stock-in-trade based on management estimate. 

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set 
out below. These polices have been consistently applied to all the years presented. 

3.1 Plant and equipment 

Owned assets 

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. 

Depreciation 

Depreciation on all items of plant and equipment except for vehicles is charged to statement of 
profit or loss applying the straight line method. Vehicles are depreciated using the reducing 
balance method so as to write off historical cost of an asset over its estimated useful life. Rates 
of depreciation is stated in note 4.1. 

Depreciation on addition in plant and equipment is charged from the date of addition while no 
depreciation is charged in the date of disposal. The Company reviews the useful life and residual 
value of plant and equipment on a regular basis. Any change in estimates in future years might 
affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of plant and equipment with a corresponding 
effect on depreciation charge. 

Disposal 

Gains or losses on disposal or retirement of fixed assets are determined as the difference 
between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of assets and are included in the statement 
of profit or loss. 

Capital work-in-progress 

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost accumulated up to the statement of financial position 
date less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Capital work-in-progress is recognized as an 
operating fixed asset when it is made available for intended use. 
Impairment 

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each statement of financial position date to 
determine whether there is any indication of impairment of any asset or a group of assets. If any 
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of that asset is estimated and impairment losses 
are recognized in the profit and loss account. 
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3.2 Right-of-use assets and lease liability 

As per IFRS 16, the Company has to recognize right to use assets and a corresponding lease 
liability. The lease liability will be measured at the present value of the consideration (lease 
payments) to be made over the lease term, I he lease payments will be discounted using the 
interest rate implicit in the lease, unless it is not readily determinable, in which case the Company 
may use the incremental rate of borrowing. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at the 
present value of lease liability and adjusted for lease prepayments/accruals and borrowing costs. 

The right-of-use assets recognized subsequent to the adoption are measured based on the initial 
amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the 
commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred, The right-of-use assets are 
depreciated over the lease term using a straight line basis as it closely reflects the expected 
pattern of consumption of future economic benefits. The right-of-use assets are reduced by 
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of lease liability. 

3.3 Financial assets 

Initial measurement 

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following three measurement categories: 

fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCl); 

fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and 

measured at amortized cost. 

A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction 
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition. 

Subsequent Measurement 

Equity Instruments at FVTOCI 

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as 
income in the statement of profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognized in 
statement of other comprehensive income and are never reclassified to the statement of 
profit or loss. 

Debt Instruments at FVTOCI 

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest / mark-up income 
calculated using the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and 
impairment are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are 
recognized in statement of other comprehensive income. On derecognition, gains and 
losses accumulated in statement of other comprehensive income are reclassified to the 
statement of profit or loss. 

- Debt Instruments at FVTPL 

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net  gains and losses, including any 
interest I mark-up or dividend income, are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 

- Financial Assets measured at amortised cost 

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest 
method. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest / mark-up income, 
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in the statement of profit 
or loss. 

Derecognition 

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets 
have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks 
and rewards of ownership. 
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3.4 Trade debts and other receivables and related impairment 

Trade debts and other receivables are recognized when an unconditional right to amount of 
consideration is established. 

Trade debts are measured at the transaction price measured under IFRS 15. A loss allowance is 
recognized for trade debts based on lifetime expected credit losses at each reporting date based 
on Company's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to 
the debtors and the economic environment. 

Other receivables are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized 
cost using the effective interest method, less expected credit losses as explained in note 3.3. The 
trade debts mainly comprise of a balances with related parties which are considered as good and 
having no impact of expected credit loss. 

3.5 Equipment inventory 

Equipment inventory is valued principally at lower of weighted average cost and net realizable 
value except for the item in transit stated at invoice value plus other charges thereon till the 
reporting date, while item considered obsolete are carried at nil value. 

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less 
costs necessarily to be incurred in order to make the sale. Provision is made in the financial 
statements for obsolete and slow moving stock-in-trade based on management estimate. 

3.6 Impairment 

(a) Financial assets 

The Company recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses ("ECL") for all debt 
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference 
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows 
that the Company expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to the 
asset's original effective interest rate. 

ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a 
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that 
result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For 
those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial 
recognition, a loss allowance Is requIred for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the 
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL). 

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 60 days past 
due. However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default 
when internal or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the 
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held 
by the Company. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of 
recovering the contractual cash flows. 

For trade debts, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs based on lifetime 
expected credit losses. The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on the 
Company's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the 
debtors and the economic environment. The expected credit losses are recognized in the 
statement of profit or loss. 

For bank balances, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs based on 
lifetime expected credit losses. The Company reviews internal and external information available 
for each bank balance to assess expected credit loss and the likelihood to receive the 
outstanding contractual amount. The expected credit losses are recognized in the statement of 
profit or loss. 
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(b) Non-financial assets 

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date 
to identify circumstances indicating occurrence of impairment loss or reversal of provisions for 
impairment losses. If any indications exist, the recoverable amounts of such assets are estimated 
and impairment losses or reversals of impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit 
or loss. Reversal of impairment loss is restricted to the original cost of the asset. 

3.7 Financial liabilities 

Initial measurement 

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging 
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. 

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings 
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

The Company's financial liabilities include long term loans, creditors, accrued and other liabilities. 

Subsequent Measurement 

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at 
amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the 
liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process. 

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and 
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance 
costs in the statement of comprehensive income. 

This category applies to long term loans, short term borrowings utilized under mark-up 
arrangements, creditors, liabilities against assets subject to finance lease, accrued and other 
liabilities. 

Derecognition 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. 

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange 
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new 
liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of 
profit or loss. 

3.8 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash in hand, cash at banks and short-term highly 
liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to 
insignificant risk ot changes in value. For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash 
equivalents comprise bank balances including short-term deposits net of bank overdraft, if any. 

3.9 Contract asset 

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to 
the customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before 
the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized 
for the earned consideration that is conditional. 

3.10 Contract liabilities 

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the 
Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If 
a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, 
a contract liability is recognized when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is 
earlier). Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs under the 
contract. 
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3.11 Borrowings 
Borrowings are recorded at the proceeds received. Financial charges are accounted for on 
accrual basis and are included in mark up accrued on loans to the extent of amount remaining 
unpaid, if any. 
Borrowing costs directly attributabie to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying 
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their 
intended use, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially 
ready for their intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to the income statement in 
the period in which these are incurred. 

3.12 Trade and other payables 
Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at their amortised cost, which approximates 
fair value of the consideration to be paid in future for goods and services received, whether or not 
billed to the Company. 

3.13 Provisions 
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present (legal or constructive) obligation as 
a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligations can be 
made. Provisions are reviewed at each statement of financial position date and accordingly 
adjusted to reflect current best estimates. 

3.14 Taxation 
Income tax on profit and loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. 

Current 

Profit and gains derived by the Company from the power generation project are exempt from the 
tax under Clause (132) of Part I of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. 
The Company is also exempt from the minimum tax on the turnover under Clause 1 1A (v) of the 
Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. 
However, provision for current taxation on profits and gains other than from power generation 
project is based on taxable income at current rates of taxation after taking into account tax 
credits and rebates available, if any, in accordance with the provision of the Income Tax 
Ordinance, 2001. It also includes any adjustment to tax payable in respect of prior years. 
Deferred 

As the Company's revenue is exempt from tax, therefore no deferred tax has been recognized in 
these financial statements. 

3.15 Revenue Recognition 

Revenue recognition policy 
The Company is in the business of power generation and sale of energy. Revenue from contract 
with customer is recognized when control of the goods are transferred to the customer at an 
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange 
for those goods or services. Specific revenue recognition details are as follows: 
Sale of energy 

Revenue from the sale of energy is recognized upon the transfer of control of the goods to the 
buyer when performance obligation is satisfied, which refers to the transmission of Net Electrical 
Output (NEO) to customer through solar solution installed at premises of customer, as agreed in 
the Agreements for sale and purchase of electricity. 
Determining the timing of satisfaction of performance obligations 
The Company concluded that revenue from electricity is to be recognized at over time because 
the electricity element represents a promise to transfer a series of distinct goods that are 
substantially the same and that have the same pattern of transfer to the customer; therefore the 
electricity represents one performance obligation that is satisfied over time. Further, electricity is 
distinct and the buyer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefit provided by the 
Company. 
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Sale of equipment 

Revenue from the sale of equipment is recognized upon the transfer of control of the goods to 
the buyer when performance obligation is satisfied, which refers to the transfer of equipment to 
the customer. 

Determining the timing of satisfaction of performance obligations 

The Company concluded that revenue from sale of equipment is to be recognized at a point in 
time when the asset is actually transferred to the customer. The transfer of equipment to the 
customer represents a single performance obligation. Therefore, revenue is recognized when the 
control of the asset is transferred to the customer. 

Provision of engineering and installation services 

Revenue from the provision of engineering and installation services is recognized when the 
equipment is installed at the customer premises and performance obligation is satisfied, which 
refers to the provision of installation services related to equipment sold by the Company. 

Determining the timing of satisfaction of performance obligations 

The Company concluded that revenue from provision of engineering and installation services is 
to be recognized at a point in time when the asset is actually installed at the customer premises 
by the company. The provision of engineering and installation services to the customer 
represents a single performance obligation. Therefore, revenue is recognized when the services 
are performed. 

3.16 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities 

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amount is reported in the statement 
of financial position if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized 
amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously. 

4. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Note 
2023 2022 

- --Rupees --- 

Operating fixed assets 4.1 455,762,888 729049333 

Capital work in progress 4.4 18,754,137 

474,517,025 729049,333 
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4.1 Operating fixed assets 

Cost 

Plant and 
equipment 

Corn puters Vehicles Total 

Rupees  

Balance as at July01, 2021 259,438,289 119,500 259,557,789 

Additions during the year 494,363,415 176,666 494,540,081 

Balance as at June 30, 2022 753,801,704 296,166 754,097,870 

Balance as at July 01, 2022 753,801,704 296,166 754,097,870 

Additions during the year 240,000 12,021,097 12,261,097 

Disposals during the year (263,917,526) (587,200) (264,504,726) 

Balance as at June 30, 2023 489,884,178 536,166 11,433,897 501,854,241 

Depreciation 

Balance as at July 01, 2021 12,871,008 73,027 - 12,944,035 

Charge for the year 12,025,410 79,092 - 12,104,502 

Balance as at June 30, 2022 24,896,418 152,119 - 25,048,537 

Balance as at July01, 2022 24,896,418 152,119 25,048,537 

Charge for the year 26,633,168 132,194 2,214,553 28,979,915 

On disposals during the year (7,917,526) (19,573) (7,937,099) 

Balance as at June 30, 2023 43,612,060 284,313 2,194,980 46,091,353 

Book value as at 
June 30, 2022 728,905,286 144,047 729,049,333 

Book value as at 
June 30, 2023 446,272,118 251,853 9,238,917 455,762,888 
Depreciation rate (%) 4 33 20 



Gain Sold to: 
Mode of 
disposal 

Sale 
proceeds 

Accumu- Net 
Particulars of assets Cost lated book 

depreciation value 
Rupees 
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4.1.1 The Company has purchased vehicles from Atlas Honda Limited (a related party) of Rs.5.34 
million and Atlas Power Limited (a related party) of Rs. 3.92 million ( 2022: Rs. Nil). 

4.1.2 This represents assets installed at Atlas Honda Limited (AHL), a related party, for the purpose of 
generation of solar based energy for the duration of solar energy agreement. 

4.1.3 The cost of plant and equipment includes provision for equipment restoration amounting to Rs. 
5.588 million (2022: Rs. 5.588 million). 

4.1.4 There are fully depreciated assets having cost of Rs.119,500 that are still in use as at year end. 
4.2 Depreciation for the year has been 2023 2022 

apportioned as under: - - - Rupees - - - 

Costof sales 28,847,721 12,025,410 

Administrative expenses 132,194 79,092 

28,979,915 12,104,502 

4.3 Disposal of Operating Fixed Assets 

Assets having net book value 
exceeding Rs.500,000 each 
Vehicles 

Suzuki CoItus 587,200 19,573 567,627 567.627 Company policy Mr. Tanzil Ur Rahman 
(Employee) 

Plant and equipment 
Solar Modules 263,917,526 7,917526 256,000,000 256,000,000 Negotiation Alias Honda Limited (a 

related party) 

2023 264,504,726 7,937,099 255,567,627 256,5e7,627 

2022 

4.4 Capital work-in-progress 

Opening balance as at 1 July 

Addition during the year 

Transfer to operating fixed assets 

Closing balance as at 30 June 

2023 2022 
Note - - - Rupees - - - 

4.4.1 18,754,137 494,363,415 

(494,363,415) 

18,754,137 

4.4.1 Preceding years additions to capital work-in-progress includes borrowing costs for phase 03 
project determined using an average capitalization rate of 14.08% amounting to Rs. 4.873 
million. 

5. TRADE DEBTS — unsecured 
5.1 This relates to an amount receivable from Atlas Honda Limited (a related party). The maximum 

aggregate amount outstanding at any time during the year was Rs.17.664 million(2022: Rs.6.709 
millioh). 

5.2 Aging of balance due but not impaired: 
2023 2022 

- - - Rupees - - - 
o-a months 17,664,483 6,708,522 



A TLAS ENERGY LIMITED (11) NO TES To THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

6. INVENTORY 2023 2022 
Note - - - Rupees - - - 

Equipment inventory 9,268,098 9413455 
Work in progress 6.1 512,118 15,770,149 

9,780,216 25183,604 

  

6.1 This includes stock held by related parties amounting to Rs. 9.268 million (2022: 17.800 million). 

LOANS AND ADVANCES - unsecured 
considered good Note 

2023 
- - - Rupees - 

2022 
- - 

Advance tax 17,488,018 2,065,106 
Loans and advances to employees 1,072,456 389,454 

18,560,474 2454,560 

OTHER RECEIVABLES - considered good 
Sales tax receivable 46,513,764 63,656645 

Profit receivable 85,887 

Security deposits 1,725,300 

48,324,951 63,658,645 

SHORT TERM INVESTMENT 

Investment in mutual lunds 9.1 45,076,729 3,844,867 
Investment in term deposit receipts 9.2 25,000,000 1,000,000 

70,076,729 4,844,867 

9.1 This represents investment in mutual funds managed by Atlas Asset Management Limited (a 
related Party), the breakup of the investment is as follows: 
Related parties: 

2023 2022 2023 2022 
- - - - Units  - - - Rupees - - - 

Atlas income funds 9.336 6.809 4,896 3,564 
Atlas Money Market Funds 86,635.656 7,568.966 45,071,833 3,841,303 

45,076,729 3844,867 

9.1.1 The fair value of these investments has been determined using their respective net assets value, 
published by Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) on its website at the reporting date. 

9.2 This represents an investment in term deposits with Habib Bank Limited (a commercial bank) 
having maturity of 1 year and carrying markup at 18.66% (2021: 6%) per annum. 

3.  

7.  

8.  

9.  

LONG TERM FINANCING - Secured 

Habib Bank Limited 

Note 
2023 

- - - Rupees 
2022 

- - - 

- Long term finance facility - phase 1 10.1 52,144,000 59,596,000 

- Long term finance facility - phase 2 10.1 93,157,000 102,796,000 

- Long term finance facility - phase 3 10.2 135,000,000 272,500,000 

280,301,000 434,892,000 

Less: current portion grouped under 
current liabilities 38,517,000 20,304,000 

241,784,000 414,588,000 
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10.1 The Company has arranged long term finance facility amounting Rs.270 million from Habib Bank 
Limited under SBP Financing Scheme for Renewable Energy. The bank against the said facility 
disbursed Rs.203 million in three tranches of different amounts. The loan is repayable in 40 equal 
quarterly installments. These finances carry mark-up at the SBP rate plus 1% and are secured 
against first charge over all present and future current and non-current assets of the Company 
with the margin of 10% and 20% respectively. 

10.2 The Company, during the preceding year, has arranged long term finance facility amounting 
Rs.272.5 million having a total limit of PKR 400 million including loan from SBP under Green 
Financing Facility of Rs.150 million repayable in 40 equal quarterly instalments. This facility has 
obtained by the Company for the purpose of financing the capital expenditure. This facility is 
secured by current and non-current assets of the Company with the margin of 20%. The rate of 
mark-up is 4% for the loan facility of Rs.150 million and KIBOR plus 1% for the loan facility of 
Rs.122.5 million. The mark-up will be payable on each quarter along with the payment of 
principal. This facility also includes certain financial covenants, breaches in meeting the financial 
covenants would permit the bank to immediately call these bank facilities. 

11. SECURITY DEPOSIT 

This represent amount received from Atlas Honda Limited (a related party) equivalent to three 
months energy invoices. 

12. CONTRACT LIABILITY 

This represent advance consideration received from customer in ordinary course of business. 
The breakup of the same is as follows: 

2023 2022 
- - - Rupees - - - 

Honda Atlas Cars Pakistan Limited 69,414.802 

TRADE AND OTHER PAVABLES 2023 2022 
---Rupees--- 

Trade creditors 19,425,665 

Provision for equipment restoration 5,588,904 5,588,904 

Income tax deducted at source 43,047 3,598,924 

Accrued liabilities 6,623,313 425,760 

Provision for workers profit participation fund 12,194,211 

Provision for workers welfare fund 1,971,617 

Retention money payable 458,458 458,458 

Others 1,824,950 1,655,704 

48,130,165 11,930,750 

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 

14.1 Contingencies 
There are no contingencies to be reported as at June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2022. 
Commitments 

14.2 Guarantees aggregating Rs.500,000 (2022:Rs.1,000,000) have been issued to Alternative 
Energy Development Board (AEDB) for upgradation of vendor category of the Company through 
a bank. 

12.1 The contract liabilities outstanding as at June 30, 2022 have been recognized as revenue during 
the year. 

13.  

14.  
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15. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMER - net 

Note 

TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

2023 2022 
- - - Rupees - - - 

Energy Revenue 178,320,838 70,485,641 

Less: Sale tax 26,575,527 10,241,503 

151,745,311 60,244,138 

Revenue from sale of solar related equipment 209,772,705 130,619,806 

Less: Sale tax 21,825,354 635,871 

187,947,351 130,183,935 

Revenue from engineering and consultancy services 17,370,506 12,001,979 

Less: Sale tax 2,222,667 1,390,304 

15,147,839 10,611,675 

354,840,501 201,039,746 

15.1 Timing of revenue recognition 

Good transferred to customer over time 151,745,311 60,244,138 

Good transferred to customer at a point in time 203,095,190 140,795,610 

354,840,501 201,039,748 

16.  COST OF SALES 

Cost of solar related equipment 156,206,687 100,230,878 

Depreciation 4.2 28,847,721 12,025,410 

NEPRA generation license fees 226,704 88,516 

Operation and maintenance cost 2,493,125 1,432,466 

Insurance of plant and equipment 4,617,721 1,584,095 

192,391,958 115,361,366 

17.  ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 

Legal and professional charges 829,056 410750 

Auditor's remuneration 17.1 361,504 330050 

Depreciation 4.2 132,194 79,092 

Donations 17.2 2,307,741 1,120,041 

Membership and annual subscription fee 1,065,882 256,409 

Others 1,068,285 92,688 

5,764,662 2,291,030 

17.1 Auditors' remuneration 

Annual audit fee - current year 330,050 330,050 

- prior year 31,454 

361,504 330,050 

17.2 This includes an amount of Rs.1,000,000 (2022: Rs.993,196) paid to Atlas Foundation (a related 
party). Mr. Saqib Shirazi (Director) is a trustee of Atlas Foundation. 

18.  FINANCE COST 2023 2022 
- - - Rupees - - - 

Markup on long term finance 41,832,634 7,407,766 

Bank charges 35,542 29,409 

41,868,176 7,437,175 
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OTHER INCOME 2023 2022 
---Rupees--- 

Profit on term deposit receipts 7,646,899 3353169 

Unrealized gain on mutual funds 1,138,347 770908 

8,785,246 4124077 

OTHER EXPENSES 

Workers profit participation fund 12,194,211 

Workers welfare fund 1,971,617 

14,165,828 

TAXATION 

Current tax on profit for the year 15,815,586 12684,438 

Adjustment in respect of prior year 451,047 

16,266,633 12,684438 

CASH GENERATED FROM 
OPERATIONS Note 

2023 2022 
- - - Rupees - - - 

Profit before taxation 109,435,123 80,074,255 

Adjustments for non-cash and other items: 

Depreciation 28,979,915 12,104502 

Finance cost 41,832,634 7,407,766 

Provision for workers profit participation fund 12,194,211 

Provision for workers welfare fund 1,971,617 

Working capital changes 22.1 (218,944,519) 130,258,638 

(24,531,019) 229,845,161 

Working capital changes 

(Increase) I decrease in current assets: 

- inventory 15,403,388 70,079556 

- trade debts (10,955,961) (460.797) 

- advances (16,105,914) (2,290,796) 

- short term investment (65,231,862) 9,883,753 

- other receivables 15,333,694 (61,562,029) 

(61,556,655) 15,649,687 

Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities: 

- trade and other payables 22,033,587 (14,812,500) 

- project payable (110,006,649) 110,006,649 

- contract liability (69,414,802) 19,414,802 

(157,387,864) 114,605,951 

(218,944,519) 130,258,638 

19.  

20.  

21.  

21.1 No deferred tax assets or liability has been recognised as the revenue generated by Company is 
exempt from tax as explained in note 3.14. The above tax amount includes provision for taxation 
of Rs.14,049,032 (2022: Rs.11,958,921) on revenue from sale of solar relate equipment and 
from engineering and consulting services. The other amount included in the above tax relate to 
minimum tax (2022: minimum tax ) paid over income earned from mutual funds and term deposit 
receipts. 

22.  

22.1 
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23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: 

- market risk 

- credit risk; and 

- liquidity risk. 

The Company's Board of Directors (the Board) has overall responsibility for the establishment 
and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. The Board is also responsible for 
developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies. 

The Company's overall risk management programmed focuses on the unpredictability of financial 
markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company's financial 
performance. Risk management is carried out by a treasury department under policies approved 
by the Board. The treasury department identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks. The 
Board provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering 
specific areas, such as currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative and non-
derivative financial instruments and investment of excess liquidity. 

23.1 Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of three types of risks: currency risk, 
interest rate risk and price risk. 

(a) Currency risk 

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign currency risk arises mainly 
where receivables and payables exist due to transactions entered into foreign currencies. The 
Company is not exposed to currency risk as all financial instruments are in local currency. 

(b) Price risk 

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
as a result of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or 
currency risk) whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial 
instruments or its issuer or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. 
The Company is not exposed to price risk with respect to its investments in mutual funds as at 
June 30, 2023. 

(c) Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the financial instruments will 
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company manages these 
mismatches through risk management strategies where significant changes in gap position can 
be adjusted. The Company is exposed to interest rate risk on long term finances and its 
investment in term deposit receipts. 

23.2 Credit risk exposure and concentration of credit risk 

Credit risk represents the risk of a loss if the counter party fails to discharge its obligation and 
cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company attempts to control credit risk by 
monitoring credit exposures, limiting transactions with specific counterparties and continually 
assessing the credit worthiness of counterparties. 

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar 
business activities or have similar economic features that would cause their abilities to meet 
contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other 
conditions. Concentration of credit risk indicates the relative sensitivity of the Company's 
performance to developments affecting a particular industry. 
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Credit risk primarily arises from trade debts, advances, other receivables1  short term investments 
and balances with banks. To manage exposure to credit risk in respect of trade debts, 
management performs credit reviews taking into account the customer's financial position, past 
experience and other relevant factors. Where considered necessary, advance payments are 
obtained from certain parties. The management has set a maximum credit period of 15 days to 
reduce the credit risk. Credit risk on bank balances is limited as the counter parties are banks 
with reasonably high credit ratings. 

Exposure to credit risk 

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at June 30, 2023 along with comparative is tabulated 
below: 

2023 
- - - Rupees - 

2022 

Trade debts 17,664,483 6,708,522 
Other receivables 48,324,951 63,658,645 
Short term investments 70,076,729 4,844,867 

Cash and bank balances 2,782,986 15,266,680 

138,849,149 90,478,714 

The credit quality of loans and other receivables can be assessed with reference to their 
historical performance with no or negligible defaults in recent history and no losses incurred. 
Accordingly, management does not expect any counter party to fail in meeting their obligations. 
The credit quality of the Company's bank balances can be assessed with reference to the 
external credit ratings as follows: 

Rating 
Name of Bank short term long term agency 
National Bank of Pakistan A1+ MA VIS 
Habib Bank Limited A1+ VIS 

23.3 Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they 
fall due, The Company's approach is to ensure, as far as possible, to always have sufficient 
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining 
sufficient cash and marketable securities and ensuring the availability of adequate credit 
facilities. The Company's treasury department aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by keeping 
committed credit lines available. 
Financial liabilities in accordance with their contractual maturities are presented below: 

2023 
Contractual cash flows 

Particulars Carrying 

amount Total 
Less than I 

year 

Between Ito More than 5 

5 years years 

 Rupees  

Long term financing 280,301,000 322,311,159 46,038,121 208,048,884 68,224,754 

Trade and other payables 48,130,165 48,130,165 48,130,165 - 

Accrued mark-up 2,895,391 2,895,391 2,895,391 

Security deposit 28,000,000 28,000,000 - 28,000,000 

359,326,556 401,331,315 97,063,671 208,048,884 96,224,154 
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2022 

Contractual cash flows 

Particulars Carrying 

amount Total 
Less than 1 

year 

Between ito 5 

years 
More than 5 

years 

 Rupees  

Long term financing 414,588,000 434,892,000 62,554,000 312,770,000 59,568,ODO 

Trade and other payables 11,930,750 11,930,750 11,930,750 

Accrued mark-up 6,638,700 6638,700 6,638,700 

Contract liability 69,414,802 69414,802 69,414,802 

Security deposit 28,000,000 28000,000 - 28,000,000 

Project payable 110006649 110,006,649 110,006,649 

640,578,901 660,882,901 260,544,901 312,770,000 87,568,000 

The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the 
basis of mark-up I interest rates effective at the respective year-ends. The rates of mark-up / 
interest have been disclosed in the respective notes to these financial statements. 

23.4 Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date 
under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly 
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. 

The Company classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the 
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the 
following levels: 

Valuation techniques used to determine fair values 

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2: 

Level 3: 

Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the 
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived 
from prices). 

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that 
is, unobservable inputs). 

As at June 30, 2023, all financial assets and financial liabilities reflected in the financial 
statements approximate to their fair values. 

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the 
reporting period during which the transfer has occurred. 

The Company's policy for determining when transfers between levels in the hierarchy have 
occurred includes monitoring of the following factors: 

- changes in market and trading activity (e.g. significant increases I decreases in activity) 

- changes in inputs used in valuation techniques (e.g. inputs becoming I ceasing to be 
observable in the market) 

There were no transfers between level 1, 2 or 3 of the fair value hierarchy during the year. 
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23.5 Financial instruments by category 

Amortised cost 

Financial assets 2023 2022 
as per statement of 

financial position 
- - - Rupees - - - 

Trade debts 17,664,483 6,708,522 

Other receivables 48,324,951 63,655,645 

Short term investments 70,076,729 4844,807 

Cash and bank balances 2,782,986 15,266,680 

138,849,149 90,478,714 

Amortised cost 

Financial liabilities 2023 2022 
as per statement of 

fInancial position 
- - - Rupees - - - 

Long term financing 241,784,000 414,588,000 

Security deposit 28,000,000 28,000,000 

Accrued mark-up 2,895,391 6,638,700 

Trade and other payables 48,130,165 11,930,750 

Project payable - 110,006,649 

320,809,556 571.164,099 

23.6 Capital risk management 

The Company's prime objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a 
going concern so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders, benefits for other 
stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital base to support the sustained development of its 
business. 

The Company manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes 
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the 
capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders and / or 
issuer new shares. 

Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. 
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net  debt is calculated as total 
borrowings less cash and bank balances. Total capital is calculated as equity as shown in the 
statement of financial position plus net debt. 

2023 
- - - Rupees 

2022 
- - - 

Total borrowings 280,301,000 434,692,000 

Less: cash and bank balances 2,782,986 15,266,680 

Net debt 277,518,014 419,625,320 

Total equity 267,631,959 174,483,469 

Total capital 545,149,973 594,088,789 

Gearing ratio 51% 71% 

For the purpose of calculating the gearing ratio, the amount of total borrowings has been 
determined by including the effect of short term borrowings under mark-up arrangements (if any). 
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23.7 RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT OF LIABILITES TO CASH FLOWS ARISING 
FROM FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES 

Liabilities 

Long term 
finances 

Accrued 
interest! 
mark-tn, 

Total 

 Rupees  

Balance as at July01, 2022 434,892,000 6,638,700 441,530,700 

Finances obtained 119,500,000 119,500,000 

Finances repaid (274,091,000) - (274,091,000) 

Finance cost paid - (46,575,943) (45,575,943) 

Total changes from financing cash flows 280,301,000 (38,937,243) 241,363,757 

Mark-up! interest expense 41,832,634 41,632,634 

Balance as at June 30, 2023 280,301,000 2,895,391 283,196,391 

Liabilities 

Long term 
finances 

Accrued 
Interest! 
mark-un 

Total 

 Rupees  

Balance as at July 01, 2021 162,696,000 1,961,924 184,677,924 

Finances obtained 272,500,000 272,500,000 

Finances repaid (20,304,000) (20,304,000) 

Finance cost paid (2,750,990) (2,750,990) 

Total changes from financing cash flows 434,892,000 (769,066) 434,122,934 

Mark-up / interest expense 7,407,766 7,407766 

Balance as at June 30, 2022 434,892,000 6,638,700 441,530,700 

24. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES 

Related parties comprise of the Parent company, Associated companies, directors and key 
management personnel. The Company in the normal course of business carries out transactions 
with various related parties. Detail of related parties (with whom the Company has transacted) 
along with relationship and transactions with related parties, other than those which have been 
disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, are as follows: 

24.1 Name of the related party 

Holding Company 

Shirazi Investments (Private) Limited (100% shareholding) 

Associated Companies (due to common directorship) 

Atlas Power Limited 

Honda Atlas Cars Pakistan Limited 

Atlas Solar Limited (formerly Zhenfa Pakistan New Energy Limited) 

Atlas Honda Limited 

Atlas Engineering (Private) Limited 

Atlas Autos (Private) Limited 

Atlas Insurance Limited 

Atlas Battery Limited 

Atlas Hitec (Private) Limited 

Atlas Foundation 
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24.2 Significant transactions with related parties are as follows: 

Names of Company 
Nature and Description of 
Related Party Transaction 

2023 

- - - Rupees 

2022 

-. - 

Atlas Power Limited 

Shirazi Investments (Private) Limited 

Purchase of assets 

Services received 

3,922,536 

426,528 

Atlas Honda Limited Revenue earned 151,745,322 71244,138 
Security deposit received - 28,000,000 
Sates of assets 256,000,000 - 
Purchase of assets 5,344,561 

Atlas Battery Limited Revenue earned 37,750,000 

Atlas Autos (Private) Limited Revenue earned 89,327,694 85,145,695 

Atlas Foundation Revenue earned 214,803 4,099,915 
Donation paid 1,800,743 - 

Atlas Hitec (Private) Limited Revenue earned 2,600,000 

Honda Atlas Cars Pakistan Limited Advance received 69,414,802 
Revenue earned 105.907,090 - 

Atlas Insurance Limited Insurance premium paid 4,617,721 3,244,902 

Key management perosnal Salary & benefits 20,506,726 - 

25.  PLANT CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION 2023 2022 
KWH KWH 

Installed capacity-per hour (MW) 8,123 6,123 

Installed capacity 58,975,873 28,087,832 

Standard generation from installed capacity 8,757,176 4,349,885 

Actual net electricity billed 8,779,818 4,386,466 

26. RENUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVE 

No remuneration has been paid to chief executive or to any of the director of the Company. 
2023 2022 

Remuneration paid to executives of the Company 
is as follows: 

- - - Rupees - - - 

Managerial remuneration 15,196,356 

Performance bonus 6,500,924 

Reimbursements 1,871,924 

Retirement benefits 909,744 

24,478,948 

Number of person 2 

27.  NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 

Total number of employees obtaining remuneration as at June 30, 2023 is 6 (2022: 2) and 
average number of employees for the year ended June 30, 2023 is 6 (2022: 2). 



ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED (21) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

28. CORRESPONDING FIGURES 

Corresponding figures have been reclassified wherever necessary to reflect more appropriate 
presentation of events and transactions for the purpose of comparison in accordance with the 
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. However, no significant 
reclassification has been made in these financial statements. 

29. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE 

These condensed interim financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and 
authorized for issue on 15 AUG 2023 
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Li Atlas Energy Application for Generation License 

3(4)(d)(iv) expressions of interest to provide credit or financing 
along with sources and details thereof; 

Not Applicable 



U9Atlas Energy Application for Generation License 

3(4)(d)(v) documents describing the net worth and the equity and 
debt ratios of the applicant, as on the date of the audited balance 

sheet accompanying the application; 



(At1asEnergy 

Net Worth Rs. 

Total Assets 641,706,864 

Total Liabilities 374,074,905 

Net worth 267,631,959  

Ratios 

Debt to Asset Ratio = Total Debt = 0.44 

Total Assets 

Debt to Equity Ratio Total Debt = 1.05 

Total Assets 

Interest Coverage 
Ratio = Profit before Interest & Tax = 3.61 

Interest Expense 

Atlas Energy Limited 
Registered Office: 641XX, Khayaban-e-lqbal, DMA Phase 3, Lahore. 

Tel: +92-42-37132637-38-39, Fax: +92-42-37132634 



3) 
UtAt1as Energy Application for Generation License 

3(4)(d)(vi) * a reasonably detailed profile of the applicant and 
the applicant's senior management, technical and professional 

staff; 

S 
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ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED 
Company Profile 
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Atlas Group: 

Mr. Yusuf H. Shirazi, laid the foundation of Atlas in 1962 with the establishment of Shirazi Investments 
(Psi) Limited. Atlas is a diversified group dealing in engineering, power generation, financial services and 
trading, embodying the spirit of development as it endeavors to fuel the growth of Pakistans economy. It 
comprises of 16 companies, four of which are quoted on the Stock Exchanges of Pakistan (Atlas Honda 
Limited, Atlas Battery Limited, Atlas Insurance Limited & Honda Atlas Cars (Pakistan) Limited Atlas 
shareholders' equity now stands at 200 billion rupees; assets have increased to 250 billion rupees; personnel 
strength to 10,000 and annual sales have crossed 160 billion rupees. 

Atlas Energy Limited 

Atlas Energy Limited was incorporated as an unquoted - public limited company on 18 May 2016, under 
the Companies Ordinance, 1984. The registered office of the Company is situated at Building No. 64/XX, 
Khayaban-e-lqbal, Phase III, D.E1.A, Lahore. We are providing cost effective Solar solutions for industrial 
and commercial consumer through sale of electricity. 

Atlas Energy has successfully installed Projects of 11 MW on energy sale and EPC model while 
approximately 7.0 MW projects are in pipeline. 

Currently Atlas Energy have Assets of PKR 335.45 Million and being a part of Atlas Group the company 
has strong relationship with Financial Institutions, as well as ability to execute bigger Projects. 

Vision: 

A leading Company in Solar industry in all respects — providing cost effective 
tailored solutions for industrial and commercial consumer through sale of power, 
Engineering, Procurement and construction (EPC), operation and Maintenance and 
giving attractive return to investors being responsible corporate citizen and employer 
of choice. 

Mission: 

Being Competitive to provide unique, advance and effective solar solutions to 

industrial and commercial customers in safe, reliable and environment friendly 
manner acting with integrity following sound practices with a sense of service in a 
culture that respects and values the satisfaction of our customers. 



c irAt las Enenzv 

Atlas Energy Limited 

1.1. Introduction 

1.1.1. Atlas Energy Limited was incorporated as an unquoted - public limited company in 
Pakistan on 18 May 2016, under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. 

1.1.2. The registered office of the Company is situated at 64/XX, Khayaban-e-Iqbal, Phase-Ill, 
DHA, Lahore. 

1.1.3. The Company was incorporated to provide cost effective tailored solar solutions for 
industrial and commercial consumer through sale of power, Engineering, Procurement and 
construction (EPC), operation and Maintenance and giving attractive return to investors. 

1.1.4. The Applicant Company has the financial strength to meet with the requirements of the 
Projects through its parent Company Shirazi Investments Private Limited - parent company 
held 100% ordinary shares of the Company. 

1.1.5. The Applicant Company has three Directors, besides the Auditor and Legal Advisor named 
below: 

• Directors: 
Mr. Frahim Au Khan 
Mr. Saquib H. Shirazi 
Mr. Maqsood Ahniad 

1.1.6. Membership of Industry & Associations: 

• Lahore Chamber of Commerce & Industry (LCCI) 

• Pakistan China Joint Chamber of Commerce & Industry (PCJCCI) 

• Pakistan Engineering Council (PEC) 

• Alternative Energy Development Board (AEDB) 



S 
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List of Projects: 

Some of our successful completed projects are as follows: 

Nature of 
Work 

Size of 
Installation 

(kWp) 
Sr. No. Category Project Name! Location 

1.  Industrial 
Honda Atlas Cars Pak Ltd. 
(43 1cm Multan Rd, Manga, Lahore) EPC 497.70 

2.  Domestic DHA Phase-V, Karachi EPC 6.00 

3.  Domestic DHA Phase-V, Karachi EPC 6.00 

4.  Industrial 
Engine Plant 

EPA 589.05 
(Atlas Honda Ltd. 26/27 Km Lahore-Skp. Road, Skp) 

5.  Industrial Pakistan Cables (Nooriabad, Sindh) EPA 7.20 

6.  Industrial 
Parking Sheds 

EPA 405.79 (Atlas Honda Ltd. 26/27 Km Lahore-Skp Road, Skp) 

7.  Domestic Zaman Park Lahore EPA 12.00 

8.  Industrial Subassembly! Frame Line 
(Atlas Honda Ltd. 26/27 Km Lahore-Skp Road, Skp) 

EPA 769.08 

9.  Industrial 
Component Parts 

EPA 663.25 
(Atlas Honda Ltd. 26/27 Km Lahore-Skp Road, Skp) 

10.  Industrial 
DCC-2 
(Atlas Honda Ltd. 26/27 Km Lahore-Skp Road, Skp) EPA 752.40 

Atlas Industrial Park Karachi 
11.  Industrial Plot No. 347A, Shed No 2, 15th Miles, National Highway, 

Landhi, Karachi. 
EPC 864.56 

12.  Industrial 
Atlas Honda Limited Karachi 
F-36 Estate Avenue, S.I.T.E. Area Karachi. EPC 96.3 



.. 
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13.  Industrial 
Atlas Battery Limited Karachi 
D-181 Central Avenue, S.I.T.E Area Karachi. 

EPC 301.74 

14.  Commercial 
Atlas Vocational Training Institute 
Sheikhupura 

EPC 72.76 

15.  Industrial 
Stamping Building 

EPA 215.82 
(Atlas Honda Ltd. 26/27 Km Lahore-Skp Road, Skp) 

16.  Industrial 
Honda Atlas Cars Pak Ltd. 
(43 km Multan Rd, Manga, Lahore) 

EPC 970.1 

17.  Industrial 
CBU/SPL Building 

EPA 2250.85 
(Atlas Honda Ltd. 26/27 Kin Lahore-Skp Road, Skp) 

18.  Industrial 
Test Track 

EPA 2621.45 
(Atlas Honda Ltd. 26/27 Km Lahore-Skp Road, Skp) 

Total Projects Installed: 11,102.05 kWp 



¼ tAtlasEnergv 



r a,rtaa—s. 
74 --_- 73 55--- -- — 
- - uaa a a • a a a a s 

r" . tju — au a -a -• a a a-a-' 
- aaaa au 

aaw a 
- aa a:a.Ufla 5 

saa__ a I 
- as — — u - a as a au 
--a- 

5 a a a mm a - a a as 

—a 
S a a a — a Sn a1a i 

II a a as a mm i a - a 
as mu --

a. a a a a am mu a us 
.5 assu u gum a in us 

a amamuuu.= 

—a a 
a 
a a a 

.n a 
H — a 

'a a 
— unma — -a an a. a 
a a a 

a 
- a 
- a 

a 
a 
a 

- a 
a 

- u 
an 

aaa - 
a.a a 

a a ' 
a 

- 
- -I 

I 
a 

C&tias Eneitv 

2. Profile of Management 

2.1. Mr. Frahim All Khan 

Director 
Mr. Frahim All Khan has over 50 years of experience in General Management, Finance, 
Investment and Taxation. I-Ic graduated in Commerce from the Karachi University in 1965 
and also obtained a degree in law from the same University. He has also attended the Senior 
Managers' Program from Harvard University, USA, Financial Management from Stanford 
University, USA, and General Management Program from Insead University, France. He 
joined the Atlas Group in 1967 and has served in different senior positions. 

= -.---- z--- 
- -- - 



Mahmood Abmed 
SOLAR PV DESIGN & SIMULATION I PROJECT MANAGEMENTI 
TEAM LEAD 

Thj.LYFH 

Summary 

Having 12 years of experience in Solar PV System Design, 

Supervision, Esitimation, and Execuations including O&M in 

different organizations. 

Having strong Grip of System Design using *PVSYST* PVSOL*, 

SketchUp, Microsoft Office, Autocad 

Team Leads for Execution of Projects, Best Technical expertise on 

PV Grid-tied)  Hybrid, BESS, Hybrid and OFF Grid Systems. 

Experience 

Atlas Energy Limited (Atlas Group) 

Manager Projects Design & Executions 
January 2018- Present (5 years 2 months) 

Project Role As Manager Tecinal Operations Design and Executions. Worked 

on 

PP 100MWp solar grid-tied system 

PPA-based 10MWp systems. 

EPC-Based 10MWp Solar Grid Tied System 

Having work experience of BESS system on 1.2MWP Grid Tied system 

Atlas Power Limited 

Technical Project Manager 
January 2018- Present (5 years 2 months) 

Greenewable solar (pvt) Ltd. 

Manager Tchnical 
February 2016- Present (7 years 1 month) 

EWORKZ POWER PVT LTD 

Manager Technical 

Page 1 of 3 

Contact 

Wapda Town Lahore, Pakistan 
+92 3004929474 Mob!e 

mahm00d6789©yahoo.com  

w.Iinkedin.com/in/mahmood-
ahmed-0311b948  LL!nkeclln 

Top Skills 

construction Management 

Troubleshooting 

Business Development 

Languages 

Urdu 

English 



September 2015- January 2016(5 months) 

Manage and lead all Technical staff 

# Manage after sale services and new installation accordingly. 

# Design and Estimation of Solar PV ON Grid, OFF Grid and Hybrid Systems. 

# Domestic, Commercial and Industrial Energy Audits for Solar PV System. 

# Supervision of Installation, Commissioning and Manage after sale services. 

# Design and Consultancy for Mega Projects. 

# Designing and Installation Supervision of Solar Tubewell. 

Solar PV Softwares: 

# PVSyst 

# PV Size 

# Helioscope 

# Skelien 

# Compass (Lorentz) 

# Smart Draw 

# Google SketchUp 

Premier Energy Company PVT LTd 

Assistant Manager Technical 
February 2014- September 2015(1 year 8 months) 

Position Descriptions 

Design and Estimation of Solar PV ON Grid, OFF Grid and Hybrid Systems. 

# Domestic, Commercial and Industrial Energy Audits for Solar PV System. 

# Installation, Commissioning and providing after sale services. 

# Design and Consultancy for Mega Projects. 

# Supervision of Solar PV Installation 

Brand development, advertising revenue. 

Developed brand strategy and statistics systems. 

Strategic Consulting, including business plan & sales strategy development. 

Advising new businesses on formation of corporations and business 

structures, drafting privacy policies and structuring commercial transactions. 

Solar PV Softwares: 

# PVSyst 
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# PV Size 

# Skelien 

# Compass (Lorentz) 

# Smart Draw 

# Google SketchUp 

Efficient Energy Company (EEC) 

Assistant Technical Manager 
June 2011 - February 2014(2 years 9 months) 

# Design and Estimation of Solar Systems for domestic and commercial 

Projects. 

# Solar Project Execution Plan Installation of Solar System, after completion of 

Project 

give Technical Support to the Customer 

# Research and Development (R&D) of Solar Products and Systems. 

# Establish and Develop Company's Profile. 

# Project Management and Handling Projects. 

# Manage and Control all Technical Problems. 

# PLC Control and Automation, Vfds and Inverters. 

# Sales, Maintenance and Repairing of Solar lights. 

# Sales of Domestic, Commercial and Industrial Lights Products. 

# Design of Solar System Dc cards, Calibration, troubleshoot and Repair Dc 

Cards. 

Education 

University of South Asia Lahore 

BSc Electrical Engineer, Electrical Engineering (POWER) (2007-2011) 
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TANZIL UR REHMAN  
Mailing Address: House No: 170-A, All Town, Raiwind Road Lahore. 
Phone: +92-3136134088 Email: tnzelurrehman4)gmail.com   

Career Objective: 

I am looking forward to work for an organization which offers Competitive and Congenial working Environment 
with immense growth opportunities, so that I may effectively utilize my technical and managerial skills to 
achieve personal and professional goals. 
Career Summary: 

As a professional Mechanical Engineer I have more than 9 years of diversified experience of working with 
Independent Power Producers. During my career, I have worked in Power Plant operations and maintenance, 
Planning of Power Plant Operations, project management and managing contractual obligations with 
relevant government agencies. Currently, I have been involved in planning and development of new 
opportunities in renewable energy sector from the platform of Atlas Energy limited. 

Qualification: 

, MBA Finance (2018-2020) IBA, University of Punjab, Lahore 

,- BSc Mechanical Engineering (2009-2013) UE'l' Lahore 

- Intermediate (2007-2009) BISE Multan 

- Matriculation (2005-2007) BISE Multan 

Work Experience: 

Atlas Energy Limited (April 2019-Present) 
Currently working as Manager Solar Projects at Atlas Energy Ltd to provide complete solar off 
grid and on grid solutions for commercial, industrial & domestic purpose. 

My responsibilities are 
- Understand scope of the project, site assessment & system sizing. 
1 Generate details of annual energy yield through PV syst simulation 
- Leading technical team for innovative PV technology solutions and assisting other team members 

with preliminary project design and implementation, modeling and commissioning. 
- Site inspections during project installation, commissioning and operation. 
,- Developing internal process and associated operating platforms in such a manner that strengthens 

long-term standardization of an effective EPC delivery approach. 
fr Meeting with client and suggest best possible solar solutions. 

Submitted proposal with competitive pricing and with advance technologies. 

- Detailed timelines for each activity to be submitted and make sure each item to be delivered in 
time 

- Responsible to make sure all the safety measures during the project implementation. 
- Operations and maintenance of solar PV power plants installed by Atlas Energy. 

Maior Projects completed  
- 504.8 KWp On grid solar project at Honda Atlas Cars Pakistan Limited. 

3.2 MW On grid solar project at Atlas Honda Limited. 
r 5 MWp On-grid solar project at Atlas Honda Limited SKI'. 



Atlas Power Limited (225 MW) (April 2017-April 2019) 

Worked as Assistant Manager Technical at 225 MW Combined Cycle IPP Power Plant. 
My Responsibilities were:  

Performance monitoring and analyzing the plant operating parameters to predict the potential faults 
and taking the appropriate steps. 
Prepare and execute mitigation plan to fix performance and efficiency issues related the plant 
equipment/systems. 

t To calculate performance of critical plant equipment like Diesel Engines, 'l'urbochargers, l-lRSG, 
Steam Turbine, Cooling Tower and Fuel purifiers against designed performance bench marks and 
identify negative drivers in case of declined performance. 
To plan daily Diesel Engines running hours in coherence with maintenance schedules to reduce 
unnecessary downtime and ensure maximum dispatch. 
I have complete understanding of Power purchase agreement (PPA) for IPP's and Fuel Supply 
Agreement with the power purchaser and responsible for preparing energy invoices (EPP) and 
capacity invoices (CPP) as per PPA. 

r EHS Evaluation of the Plant. 

Previous Experience 

Nishat Chunian Power Limited (200MW): (January 2014-March 2017) 

Worked as Operations Planning Engineer and Shift Operations Engineer at 200MW Combined Cycle 
Power Plant. 
My responsibilities include:  

- Supervise safe, efficient and smooth operation of plant during shift hours taking care of load 
demand, according to OEM recommendations. 

- Communication with the NPCC regarding the increase and decrease in dispatch levels due to 
scheduled outages, washing outages, forced outages and partial loading of the plant. 

- Hot & cold startup of Engines & turbine according to NPCC&RCC demands in accordance with 
PPA. 

- Responsible to prepare Daily Demand Dispatch report, Daily Operations Report (DOR) 
comprising Daily Fuel Consumption, Plant Generation, House Load, Plant Heat Rate, and Plant 
Efficiency and to prepare weekly and monthly reports of plant and forward it to operations 
Manager and plant Manager. 

- Performing the functions of troubleshooting and propose remedial measures in case of emergency 
situation such as sudden breakdown, abnormal tripping or Blackout and coordinate with 
maintenance staff for preventive or corrective maintenance for reducing downtime minimum. 

r To continuously monitor the fuel oil and lube oil parameters and water chemistry for smooth 
operation of the system. 

Professional skills: 

Computer Skills:  

C++ programming, Auto CAD, Solid Edge, MATLAB, Primavera P6 basic. 

Expertise in MS Office (MS Word, MS Excel, MS Power point, MS Project). 

Management Skills:  
r An effective communicator with strong analytical, problem solving & organizational abilities. 
r Skilful Presenter (Experience of delivering Technical and Non-Technical Presentations in Front of 

50-100 people). 
i Sound knowledge of Technical Reports Writing and Evaluation. 

Committed team player with flexible approach to maintain better working relationships within 
and outside organization. 



Engr.Rizwan Ullah 
Postal Address: H #4090, St. It 09, H-Area, New Muzaffarabad Landhi Karachi, District Karachi Malir. 
Mobile: +92334-3114582 
Email: rizwanullah765@yahoo.com  

OBJECTIVE 

Seeking a challenging opportunity in an organization with highly competitive and demanding environment where 
1 can exploit my knowledge and skill with full spirit. 

EDUCATIONAL QUALIFICATION 

Degree Institute! Board Division/Grade Year 

M.Engg. 
(Electrical Power) 

NED University of Engineering and 
Technology Karachi 

First Division 2018 

PGC 
(Electrical Power) 

CCEE NED University of Engineering 
and Technology Karachi 

First Division 2016 

B.Sc. (PEC Regr.) 
(Electrical Engineering) 

University of Engineering and 
Technology Peshawar 

First Division 2014 

HSC 
(Pre Engineering) 

Board of Intermediate Education 
Karachi 

First Division 2009 

Matric 
(Science) 

Board of Secondary Education 
Karachi 

First Division 2007 

FINAL YEAR PROJECT 

e Water flow control through IR radiations using at89s52 Microcontroller based on Tx-Rx and 
temperature sensors. 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 

C Atlas Energy Limited (Atlas Group) Karachi From: 01-07-2019 to Present 
Designation: Manager Projects 

Job Description: 
. Monitor, Identifies and Analysis all projects costs with a view of facilitating the completion of the Project at 

minimum cost and within budget limits. 
- Prepared the Bill of Quantities, Capability Criteria and Special Terms and Conditions for contacts of 

Installation and Commissioning of Civil, Structure and Electrical work. 
- Installation and Commissioning of 1.2MWp RCC Roof Mounted Solar Power Project Atlas Industrial Park, 

Atlas Battery and Atlas Honda Karachi Plant. 
Installation and Commissioning of 2MWp PEB Roof Mounted Solar Power Project Atlas Honda and Atlas 
Autos, Sheikhupura. 
installation, Commissioning, Operations and Maintenance of 2.O4KWp PEB roof Mounted Solar Power Project 
Pakistan Cables Site, Nooriabad. 
Installation, Commissioning, Operations and Maintenance of 405KWp Car Porch Solar Power Project Atlas 
Honda, Shiekhupura. 

#- Installation, Commissioning, Operations and Maintenance of 589KWp Double Tee Roof Mounted Solar Power 
Project Atlas Honda, Shiekhupura. 

- Installation, Commissioning, Operations and Maintenance of I 2KWp Roof Mounted Solar Power Project DFIA, 
Karachi. 
Design of LV Panel, SLD, AC/DC Cables as per load calculation and strings as per Invertors and Modules 
specifications. 

r Interfacing of Data Logger with Invertors and Weather Station in order to receive remote information and 
monitoring. 

- Installation, Commissioning, Operations and Maintenance of ABB, Fronius and lluawei Invertors and Jinko 
Solar Modules. 
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+ Atlas Metals Pvt. Limited (Atlas Group) Karachi From: 01-01-2018 to 30-06-2019 
Designation: Assistant Manager Maintenance 

Job Description: 
- Maintenance of DO Set on daily/monthly and running hour basis that is used in case of unavailability of power 

supply from K Electric. 
- Maintenance of power factor capacitor bank panel in order to ensure proper power factor during peak as well as 

off peak load time. 
- Implementation of P1W (Permit to Work) System in all the three Lead, Aluminum and Polymer Plants 

according to USE Standards to ensure human safety. 
- Ensure normal operation of the complete Automation Control System that is S7-I200 PLC System and VED's 

in all the three Plants. 
- Implementation of proper preventive, predictive maintenance by generating proper work order system in 

Maintenance Department. 
Implementation of Energy Conservation Plan by introducing Energy Audit Schemes in order to minimize per 
unit cost. 

- Ensure availability of all the utilities that is electrical power, natural gas, oxygen gas, SNG gas, LPG gas, water 
and DO set for smooth operation of all the three Plants. 
Regular inspection of all types of machines/motors installed in all the three plants to ensure smooth running of 
the plant. 

,. Ensure availability of all the spare parts in the store to meet the emergency condition in order niinimize 
production loss. 

- Monthly/Yearly PPM, Protection and Testing of Distribution and Power Transformers. 

•• Pakistan Steel Bin Qasim Karachi From: 21-08-2015 to 20-08-2017 
Designation: Trainee Engineer 

Job Description: 
.- Cable Selection according to the load requirement, Russian, PVC and XLPE cables joint and end termination. 

Daily Load Calculation, analysis and trend of Oulshan-e-Hadeed Phase-I, Steel Town and entire Plant zone 
wise. 

- Record, analyze and report energy consumption and cost on a regular basis in order to identify Energy Saving 
Opportunities. 

- Repair/Maintenance and daily patrolling of 04 Nos. of 132KV Transmission Lines consisting Single Line and 
Double Line lattice type towers configuration. 

- Monthly reading and hence energy bill calculation for at least 8000 Domestic and Commercial Consumers of 
Gulshan-e-Hadeed and Steel Town. 

- Plan and execution of PPM and H.V Testing of BOCH's, MUCH's and VCB's ranging from OOOA to 2500A 
more than 1000 units. 

e Schedule and its daily execution regarding the PPM, inspection and capital repair of all equipment installed in 
50 Nos. of Distribution Stations located all over the Plant. 
Monthly/Yearly PPM, Protection and Testing of Distribution and Power Transformers ranging from 75OKVA 
to 63MVA. 

TECI-ThHCAL SKILLS AND TOOLS 

- Extensive experience of Microsoft Office, and Electronics Software's like Pspice and ETAP. 
- AutoCAD 2D, C++ Programing Language, Matlab and Assembly Programming Language. 

KEY SKILLS 

e Excellent communication and interpersonal skills 
Organized and methodical with good time management and planning. 
Ability to remain calm and focused under pressure and work within strict deadlines. 

> A committed team player, able to motivate and inspire others and work in a cohesive team. 
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ACHIEVMENTS 

Received Prime Minister Youth Award Program in 2017. 
- Selected for Prime Minister Youth Program Scheme in 2016. 

Received Youth Talent Award from Chief Minister KPK in 2013. 
Top 10 Position in Board of Secondary Education Karachi in 2007. 

EXTRA-CURRICULAR ACTIVITIES 

Cricketer: Perfonned as Opener at School, College and University level. 
Social worker: Blood Secretary and food monitor at university level. 

SEMINARS AND WORKSHOPS 

"SMART GRID, Operations Control & Implementation" by Dr. Tariq Masood, Organized by CCEE in 
NEDUET. 

'r Two days "Industrial Safety and Accident Prevention Seminar" on 04 & 05 January. 2016 Organized by 
Safety Department Pakistan Steel Mills. 

PERSONAL INFORMATION 

Father's Name: Muhammad Akram 
Date of Birth: 26-Feb-1991 

- Nationality: Pakistani 
CNlC: 42501-6543984-1 

- PEC: ELECT/44899 
, Marital Status: Single 

Languages: English, Urdu 

REFRENCE 

- Will be provided on request. 
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ATIF SHABBIR 
MECHANICAL ENGINEER 
Current Location: 6-1/16 A Gulfishan Society, Malir Halt, Karachi Pakistan 

Mobile No: +923452409929 

Passport No: DL5138602 

Email: atifminhasrajputgmail.com   

CAREER SUMMARY 

Experienced and results-driven Solar Manager with a proven track record of success in overseeing solar energy projects 

from inception to completion. Possesses deep knowledge of renewable energy systems, with a focus on maximizing 

energy efficiency and sustainability. Skilled in project management, team leadership, and regulatory compliance within 

the solar industry. Adept at fostering collaborative relationships with stakeholders to achieve project goals on time and 

within budget. Strong analytical skills combined with a passion for environmental conservation and renewable energy 

solutions. 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE - OBJECTIVE 

Atlas Energy Limited, Pakistan (July 2019 — Present) 

(Manager Solar Project & Operation) LLAtIas Energy 

• Experience in installing solar systems for residential, commercial & industrial applications. 

• Expertise in assessing site suitability for solar installations and optimizing system performance. 

• Ability to read and interpret technical drawings and schematics. 

• Demonstrated knowledge of solar panel mounting, wiring, and connection procedures. 

• Familiarity with inverters, charge controllers, batteries, and other solar system components. 

• Competence in using tools and equipment specific to solar installation. 

• Lead or participated in solar system installation projects from start to finish, 

• Coordinated with clients, engineers, and other stakeholders to ensure successful implementation. 

• Managed project timelines, budgets, and resources effectively. 

• Conducted inspections and quality control checks to ensure compliance with standards. 

• Performed system testing, including voltage measurements and performance evaluations. 

• Implemented corrective actions to address any issues or deficiencies. 

• Educated customers about the benefits of solar energy and system maintenance. 

• Demonstrated a strong commitment to safety protocols and adherence to regulations. 

• Implemented safety measures to protect personnel and ensure a safe work environment. 

• Coordinates materials and assists in the logistics, its shipment and receipt at construction site. 

• Monitors work in progress and prepares weekly report of the status of each assignment. 

Atlas Metals (PVT) Limited, Pakistan (January 2018— June 2019) 

(Assistant Manager Technical Division) rAt1 Metals 

• Routine maintenance and troubleshooting of machines situated at Polymer, Lead and Aluminum recycle 
plants and their utilities. 

• Assist HOD in preparation of annual preventive maintenance schedule. 
• Ensure all maintenance records (SOPs, ISO Docs & PM Cards) are maintained. 

• Responsible for technical coordination with procurement department, before and after receiving the spare of 
inventory. 

• Providing assistance in ISO Certification (14001 & 45001) and implementation. 

• Assist the HOD in preparation of contracts and agreements and verification of invoices for project & 
maintenance works. 

• Coordination with vendors, suppliers and OEM for purchase and installation of equipment. 
• Contributes to team effort by accomplishing related results as needed. 



Tapal Energy Limited, Pakistan (January 2017 —January 2018) 
(Trainee Engineer- Power Generation) 

• 12x11.34 MW Wartsila Diesel Engines (Running on HFO) with MAN turbochargers. ENERGY 

• Understanding the P&lDs of plant including fuel system, lube oil system, cooling water system, air system, 
steam system and fire-fighting system. 

• Understanding of plant operations including startup, shutdown, plant island mode, equipment 
changeover and condition monitoring. 

• Understanding of Fuel and Lube Oil Purification units, RO unit, Auxiliary and Waste Heat Recovery Boilers. 

• Understanding of Reciprocating compressors and pumps, screw pumps, centrifugal pumps and 
pneumatic pumps. 

• Hands-on participation in scheduled and breakdown maintenance activities of engines and their 
auxiliaries and managing inventory, CMMS, daily and monthly reports. 

INTERNSHIPS 

Karachi Shipyard & Engineering Works (January 2015) 

(Engineering Intern) 

• Observe different activities, i.e. welding inspection and Nondestructive Testing. 

• Radiography of Steel Sheet to identify defects. 

• Manufacturing of Oil Tanker Ship, collaboration with China & Turkey. 

Pakistan International Airline (June 2015) 
(Engineering Intern) 

• Machining operations 

• NOT Testing Methods 

• Composite Material Maintenance Department 

• Engine overhauling 

'A K ISIAN 

EDUCATIONAL CREDENTIALS 

• B.E (Mechanical) from NUST-PNEC Karachi, in 2016 

• F Sc (Pre-Engineering) A+ from Bohria College Karsaz Karachi, in 2012 

• SSC (Science) A+ from Minhaj Model School Korach in 2010 

TRAINING & CERTIFICATIONS 

• Certificate in Information Technology (CIT) from Pakistan Advance Software Service (PASS) 

• Initiating and Planning Projects (online course authorized by University of California, Irvine and offered through 
Coursera) 

• Solar PV Design, Integration & Performance (PV1O1) from ETRC. 

• Technical Training on Solar Energy from Jinko Solar. 

• Introduction to Renewable (RE100) from Solar Energy International. 

• AUTOCAD from Ministry of Information Technology (Govt of Pakistan). 

• HSE Management System and Internal Auditors Training for ISO-14001 & ISO-45001 

• Permit to Work (PTW) & Lock Out/Tag Out (LOTO) Training from HSE department 
• Solar Energy System design by The State University of New York. 
• Project Management Tracker from Coursera 

ADDITIONAL SKILLS 

• Efficient Team player & Team building skills 
• Time Management 
• Highly energetic and self-motivated resource. 
• Excellent communication & leadership skills. 

• Apt command on MS office applications. 
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3(4)(d)(vii) profile of sub-contractors, if any, along with 
expressions of interest of such sub-contractors; 
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3(4)(d)(ix) verifiable references in respect of the experience of the 
applicant and its proposed sub-contractors; 



(!!&t!asEnergy Application for Generation License 

3(e) * technical and financial proposals in reasonable detail for 
the operation, maintenance, planning and development of the 

facility or system in respect of which the license is being sought; 



7) 
U!At1as Energy Application for Generation License 

3(4)(d)(vii) employment records of engineering and technical staff 
of the applicant proposed to be employed; 

Atlas Energy already have experienced team having hand on 
experience of EPC and O&M of Solar Plants 
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I. Executive Summary 

'I'his feasibility study evaluates the costs, practicality, and expected outcomes ol'a rooftop solar 
photovoltaic (PV) installation at two locations: 

Location: Atlas Engineering Limited, Atlas Industrial Park, 15th Miles, National l-lighway, 
Landhi, Karachi. 

2. Project Brief 

Atlas Energy plans to install a 950.625kWp Solar Power Plant under PEIA mode. The proposed 
capacity is based on current and projected future loads. Key outcomes include: 

• Technical Site Analysis 

• Financial Analysis 

2.1. Technical Site Analysis 

The sites are suitable for a solar PV system, with "good" solar insolation assumed. The 
system design factors include a panel azimuth of 100  SE & NW, a panel tilt of 8°, and 
satisfactory roof conditions. 

• System Capacity: 950.625kWp 

• Annual Production: 1,332,396 kWh 

• PY Module: JKM545M-72HL4-TV (545 Wp) 

• Inverters: Sizes ranging from 20 KW to 1 25 KW 

2.1.1. Site Coordinates & Location 

I ocatioii Coordiiiate 

Location: 

Location: Atlas Engineering 
Atlas Industrial Park, 15th Miles, National 

Highway, Landhi, Karachi. 

24°5 I '28.8"N 
Latitude: 

Longitude: 67° I 3'53.4"E 
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Location: Atlas Engineering Limited 
Atlas Industrial Park, 

15111 Miles, National Highway, Landhi, Karachi. 



2.1.2. Site Conditions 

A comprehensive analysis was conducted, including: 

• Global Horizontal Irradiation 

• Shading Analysis 

• Area Calculation for Modules 

2.1.3. Technology Review & Selection 

• PV Modules: JKM54SM-72HL4-TV 

• Annual Generation: 1,332,396 kWh 

• Inverters: High efficiency (98.5%-98.6%) inverters with a variety of sizes. 

2.1.4. Solar LV Yield Estimation and Simulation 

Energy yield predictions using PVSyst software provide the basis for calculating 
project revenues. The simulation considered factors like solar resource, temperature 
conditions, and plant layout. 

2.1.5. Working Conditions 

The system ensures zero grid export, with the solar production dynamically adjusted 
to match site consumption. 

2.1.6. Plant Characteristics 

The plant features a 230/400 V. 50 Hz, three-phase system with built-in inverter 
features for voltage regulation and frequency response. 

2.1.7. Design Parameters 

Key design considerations include: 

• Shading assessment 

• Optimized LV layout 

• Module cleaning strategy 



2.1.8. Concept Design 

A detailed concept design and layout are provided. 
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2.1.9. Single Line Diagram 

The single line diagram includes PV arrays, DC/AC cabling, protection devices, and 
energy metering. 

2.1.10. Operation and Maintenance Strategy 

Operation: 

o Continuous Monitoring: Online Monitoring will be opt to check 
real-time perfomiance and detect anomalies. 

o Performance Analysis: Regular analysis of perfonnance data to 
optimize energy yield and identify potential issues. 

o Energy Management: Implement energy management practices to 
maximize energy production and reduce losses. 



. Maintenance: 

o Routine Inspections: Conduct monthly and biannual inspections as 
detailed in the O&M plan. 

o Preventive Maintenance: Scheduled maintenance activities to 
prevent equipment failures. 

o Corrective Maintenance: Address any issues identified during 
inspections or reported by the monitoring system. 

2.1.11. Planning and Development 

Initial Setup: 

o Site Preparation: Ensure site readiness, including structural 
integrity of mounting systems and electrical infrastructure. 

o Installation: Oversee the installation of PV modules, inverters, and 
other components according to manufacturer specifications and 
industry standards. 

Long-term Development: 

o Expansion Plans: Develop plans for future expansions or upgrades 
to increase capacity or incorporate new technologies. 

o Technology Upgrades: Stay updated with advancements in solar 
technology and integrate them as appropriate. 

2.1.12. Technical Challenges and Mitigation 

• Dust and Debris: Implement regular cleaning schedules and consider anti 
soiling coatings. 

• Weather Conditions: Design systems to withstand local weather conditions, 
including high temperatures and humidity. 

• Technical Issues: Maintain a technical support team for rapid resolution of 
issues related to inverters, monitoring systems, and other critical 
components. 

2.2. Financial Analysis 
Project Financing Model 
The solar PV project will be financed through 100% Equity. The total capital expenditure 
(CapEx) is estimated at PKR. 152,571,285. This amount includes the expenses associated 
with the planning, design, material procurement, construction, and installation of the solar 
generation facilities. 

Capital Cost Breakdown: 
The total capital cost includes: 

1. Feasibility Studies: Costs related to site assessments, technical and environmental 
evaluations. 

2. Planning and Design: Costs for designing the solar PV system, electrical layouts, 
and structural requirements. 

3. Material Procurement: Costs of solar panels, mounting structures, inverters, 
cabling, and other electrical components. 



I 

4. Construction and Installation: Labor, logistics, and installation costs of the roofiop 
solar system across the various sites. 

Financial Summary: 
• 'l'otal Project Cost: PKR. 152,571,285 
• Financing Structure: 100% Equity (Applicant's own Funds) 

Total
TPC/Wp Equity Sr. 

Location 
System Size

Project Cost
(PKR) 100% (kWp)

(PKR) 

I 
Atlas Engineering Limited, 

Atlas Industrial Park, 15th Miles, National 950.625 152,571,285 160.495 152,571,285 
Highway, Landhi, Karachi. 



(2fAtlasEnergy  Application for Generation License 

3(1) *Feasibmty  Study 



t2tias Energy 

Feasibility Report 

for 

the Development of a 950.625 kWp 

Solar Power Plant 

Locations: 

Atlas Engineering Limited, 
Alias Industrial Park, 15th Miles, National Highway, Landhi, Karachi. 

Prepared by: 

Atlas Energy Limited 



1. Executive Summary 
1'he feasibility study examines the costs, practicality, and likely outcome of a solar photovoltaic 
(PV) installation on the rooftop of below site: 

Locations 

Atlas Engineering Limited, 
Atlas Industrial Park, 15111  Miles, National Highway, Landhi, Karachi. 

2. Project Brief 
Atlas Energy intends to install 950.625Solar Power Plants in owner premises to provide electricity 
under PEIA mode. The installed capacity of plants is proposed by critically analyzing the current 
load and future load projections of site. 

The main outcomes of the feasibility report are given below: 

• Technical Site Analysis 
• Financial Analysis 

2.1.Technical Site Analysis: The project site is suitable for a solar PV energy system. For the 
purpose of estimation of power generation potential, solar insolation is assumed to be 'good". 
Panel azimuth (10° South East & 100 North West), panel tilt (8°) and satisfhctory roof condition 
and structure are also assumed. Anticipated System Information: The projects in will 
accommodate 950.625so1ar PV system with a projected annual production of 1,332,396 kWh! 
year with use of a JKMS8SM-72HL4-TVPV panel. 

2.1.1. Site Coordinates & Location: 
The project site is the rooftop and exact coordinates of the project site are as below: 

location Coonlivate 

Location: Latitude: 24°5 I '28.8N 

Location: Atlas Engineering 
Atlas Industrial Park, 15th Miles, National 

Highway, Landhi, Karachi. Longitude: 67°1353.4'E 
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2.1.2. Location Map: 
A birdts eye view of the project site is given in the figure below: 

Location: Atlas Engineering Limited 
Atlas Industrial Park, 

151h Miles, National Highway, Landhi, Karachi. 



2.1.3. Site Conditions: 
'l'he following tasks were carried out: 

• Global Horizontal Irradiation, annual and inter-annual variation was assessed. 

• Near shading objects were taken into account for placement of PV modules. 

• Area required for selected module technology was calculated. Keeping in view 
available area and minimum inter row shading, tilt angle and appropriate spacing 
was calculated from near shading objects. 

Technology Review & Selection: 

fl Modules 

Type of Module JKM585M-72HL4-TV 

No. Of Modules 1,625 (1,625 * 585) = 950.625 kWp 

Type of Cell Mono PERC Half-Cell 

Dimension of each Module 2278x 1134x35mm (89.53x44.65x 1.38 inch) 

Total Module Area 2.583,252 m2 

Frame of Panel Anodized aluminium alloy 

Weight of one Module 27.0 kg 

No of Solar Cells in each module 144 (6x24) 

Efficiency of module 22.65 % 

Maximum Power (Pma) 585 Wi 

Voltage @ P 43.53 V 

Current üj) PuIa 13.44 A 

Open circuit voltage (V0 ) 52.47V 

Short circuit current (14 14.07 A 

Maximum system open Circuit 
1SOOVDC (IEC) 

Voltage 



lnvcrters 

Technical Specification 

115KW 50KW 

SUN2000-IISKTL-M2 SUN2000.50K'I'L-M3 

5 4 

Input Operating Voltage Range 200 V to 1000 V 200 V to 1000 V 

Efficiency of inverter 98.5% 98.5% 

Max. Allowable Input voltage IIOOV I IOOV 

Max. Current per MPPT 30 A 30 A 

Max. Power Point Tracking Range 200 V to 1000 V 200 V to 1000 V 

Output electrical system 3 Phase AC 3 Phase AC 

Rated Output Voltage 3 / N / PE, 230/400 V
230 V / 400V, 3W + N + 

Power Factor (adjustable) 0.8 LG...0.8 LD 0.8 LG...0.8 LD 

Power control MPP Tracker MPP Tracker 

Rated Frequency 50 Hz 50 l-Iz 

lou riti Jig Stru et tire 

Structure Aluminum Rail Type! MS painted Parking shed 

Tilt Angle 50 

Degradation Factor First Year 2.5% & remaining 24 Years 0.6% 

I)al a ( 'ollecting S\stem 

System Data Continuous online logging with data togging software to portal. 

Description 

Size & Mode 

No. of Inverters 



2.1.4. Solar PV Yield Estimation and Simulation of Site: 
The energy yield prediction provides the basis for calculating project revenues. The 
aim is to predict the average annual energy output for the lifetime of the proposed 
power plant. To estimate accurately the energy produced from a PV power plant, 
information is needed on the solar resource and temperature conditions of the site. Also 
required are the layout and technical specifications of the plant components. A number 
of solar energy yield prediction sofiware packages are available in the market. These 
packages use time step simulation to model the performance of a project over the course 
of a year. PVSyst software has been used for energy yield prediction for this site and 
its results are given below. Details of the simulation steps are presented in the following 
sections: 

2.1.5. Working Conditions: Zero Grid Export 
The solar system will have automatic mechanism to ensure that PV power currently 
generated by the inverters always matches the current power consumption of the site 
load. A closed loop control system of inverter AC output is implemented in reference 
to energy flow at grid connection point which will reduce inverter AC output of the 
inverter if site load will be less than the solar production. 

2.1.6. Plant Characteristics 
Generation Voltage: 230/400 V three phase four wire system Power Factor at rated 
power: I Frequency: 50 Hz Generation characteristic: Inverter has built-in features of 
controllable active power ramp following grid disturbance or normal connection, 
voltage regulation and frequency response. There are no additional control metering 
and instrumentations. 

2.1.7. Design Parameters: 

The following tasks were carried out for PV layout and shading. 

a) Assessment of shading (horizon and nearby building). 
b) Outline layout of area suitable for PV development. 
c) Designing row spacing to reduce inter-row shading and associated shading losses. 
d) Designing the layout to minimize cable runs and associated electrical losses. 
e) Creating access routes and sufficient space to allow movement for maintenance 

purposes. 

U Choosing a tilt angle that optimizes the annual energy yield according to the 
latitude of the site and the annual distribution of solar resource. 

g) Module cleaning strategy. 
h) Simulating the annual energy losses associated with various configurations of tilt 

angle, orientation and row spacing. The optimized configuration and simulation 
results are given in section "Energy Yield Prediction 

1) PV layouts of the site are given in view in the following section. 
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2.1.8. Concept Design: 
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2.1.9. Single Line Diagram: 

The electrical system comprises the following components: 
• Array(s) of PV modules 
• DC/AC cabling (module, string and main cable) 
• DC connectors (plugs and sockets) 
• Junction boxes and combiners 
• Disconnects/switches 
• Protection devices e.g. fuses, surge protective devices, beakers 
• Energy Metering 
• Earthing 

The single line diagrams of DC and AC sides are given below. The single line diagram 
includes the protection devices that wilt be used for safe and smooth operation of the 
system. 

Protections DC Side: 'String Fuses, Surge Protective Device and DC Disconnect 
Switches 

Protections AC Side: MCBs, Main Breaker 

• t, 



2.2. Financial Analysis 
Project Financing Model 
The solar PV project will be financed through 100% Equity. The total capital expenditure 
(CapEx) is estimated at PKR 152,571,285. This amount includes the expenses associated with 
the planning, design, material procurement, construction, and installation of the soLar 
generation facilities. 

Capital Cost Breakdown: 
The total capital cost includes: 

I. Feasibility Studies: Costs related to site assessments, technical and environmental 
evaluations. 

2. Planning and Design: Costs for designing the solar PV system, electrical layouts, 
and structural requirements. 

3. Material Procurement: Costs of solar panels, mounting structures, inverters, 
cabling, and other electrical components. 

4. Construction and Installation: Labor, logistics, and installation costs of the rooftop 
solar system across the various sites. 

Financial Summary: 
• Total Project Cost: PKR 152,571,285 
• Financing Structure: 100% Equity (Applicant's own funds) 

Total 
Sr. System Size TPC/Wp Equity 

Location Project Cost 
(kWp) (P1(R) l00% 

(P1(R) 

I 
Atlas Engineering Limited, 

Atlas Industrial Park, 15th Miles, National 950.625 152,571,285 160.495 152,571,285 
Highway, Landhi, Karachi. 

3. Project Rationale 

It is a commonly knowledge that availability of electricity in any country that has direct elTect on its 
economy and social factors and therefore, in order to measure the affluence of a society, the per capita 
energy consumption is used as index, An economy's production and consumption of electricity are basic 
indicators of its size and level of development. Although a few countries export electric power, most 
production is for domestic consumption. Expanding the supply of electricity to meet the growing 
demand of increasingly urbanized and industrialized economies without incurring unacceptable social, 
economic, and environmental costs is one of the great challenges facing developing countries. 

Modem societies are becoming increasing dependent on reliable and secure electricity supplies to 
underpin economic growth and community prosperity. This reliance is set to grow as more efficient and 
less carbon intensive forms of power are developed and deployed to help decarbonize economies. 
Maintaining reliable and secure electricity services while seeking to rapidly decarbonize power systems 
is a key challenge for countries throughout the world. In developing economies growth in energy use is 
closely related to growth in the modem sectors - industry, motorized transport, and urban areas - but 
energy use also reflects climatic, geographic, and economic factors (such as the relative price of energy). 
Energy use has been growing rapidly in low- and middle-income economies, but high-income 
economies still use almost five times as much energy on a per capita basis. Governments in many 
countries are increasingly aware of the urgent need to make better use of the world's energy resources. 
Improved energy efficiency is often the most economic and readily available means of improving 



energy security and reducing greenhouse gas emissions. Pakistan's per capita energy consumption of 
Pakistan Generation of electricity in Pakistan is largely on furnace oil whose substantial quantity is 
imported, prices whereof adversely affect the generation in the country. Although natural gas is a 
cheaper fuel however its reserves are depleting rapidly. In these circumstances, the use of solar power 
in Pakistan appears to be quite an attractive mode of generation of electric power. Further, its use does 
not require refining, transporting and conveying fuels and power over long distances. Moreover, solar 
power does not create pollution. Naturally, Pakistan is located in the Sunny Belt and can take advantage 
of its ideal situation for A utilization of solar energy. The country potential for solar generation is 
beyond doubt as it has high solar irradiation and enough space for installation of generation system 
those are ideal for PV and other solar energy applications. Villages and other areas which are away 
from grid or distribution system of utilities can also benefit from solar power generation which will also 
save the extra cost of laying the system and the losses. Solar energy, on the other hand, has excellent 
potential in areas of Pakistan that receive high levels of solar radiation throughout the year. Every day, 
for example, the country receives an average of about 19 Mega Joules per square meter of solar energy 
Pakistan being in the Sun Belt is ideally located to take advantage of solar energy technologies. 'l'his 
energy source is widely distributed and abundantly available in the country. The mean global inadiation 
hilling on horizontal surface is about 200-250 watt per sq.m in a day. This amounts to about 2500- 3000 
sun shine hours and 1.9-2.3 MWh per sq. meter in a year. It has an average daily global isolation of 
19 to 20 MJ/sq. meter per day with annual mean sunshine duration of 8 to 8.5 hours (6-7hrs in cold and 
10-12 hrs. in hot season) and these values are among the highest in the world. For daily global radiation 
up to 23MJ/m2, 24 (80%) consecutive days are available in this area for solar energy. Such conditions 
are ideal for solar thermal applications. 

Pakistan receives about 15.5x1014 kWh of solar irradiance each year with most regions receiving 
approximately 8 to 10 sunlight hours per day. The installed capacity of solar photovoltaic power is 
estimated to be 1600 GW per year, providing approximately 3.5 PWh of electricity (a figure 
approximately 41 times that of current power generation in the country). To summarize, the sun shines 
for 250-300 days per years in Pakistan with average sun shine hours of 8- 10 per day. This gives huge 
amount of energy to be used for electricity generation by solar photovoltaic and solar thernml power 
plants. A quick idea for the potential of solar energy in Pakistan can be obtained from the satellite map 
of solar radiation released by National Renewable Energy Lab (NREL) of USA. 

4. Environment Assessment Report: 

a. Study Area: 

Pakistan is geographically situated approximately between 24-37 IV latitudes and 62-75 longitudes in 
the western zone of south Asia. The distribution of rainfall in Pakistan varies on wide ranges, mostly 
associated with the monsoon winds and the western disturbances, but the rainfall does not occur 
throughout the year. Like, Khyber Pukhtonkhuwa (northern mountains) and Balochistan provinces 
receive maximum rainfall in the months of December to March while in Punjab and Sindh receive 50-
75% of rainfall during monsoon season (Kaziet al, 1951; FAQ, 1987; IChan, 1993 & 2002; Kureshy, 
1998; Luo and Lin, 1999). The precipitation received in the country can be divided into two main 
seasons, summer or monsoon and winter precipitation. The monsoon rainfall enters Pakistan from east 
and north east during the month of July to September. During this duration a good amount of rainfall is 
received in the north and northeastern areas of the country. Winter precipitation (December to March) 
are mainly received from western disturbances entering from Iran and Afghanistan. The weather 
systems entering from Afghanistan are called the primary western disturbances and cover only the north 
and north western parts of the country, whereas those approaching from the Iran are secondary and 
cover a large area of theCountry including Balochistan, Punjab, Khyber Pukhtonkhuwa, Kashmir and 
northern areas and sometimes Sindh province. A large amount of snowfall is received in the northern 



areas, upper Khyber Pukhtonkhuwa, Kashmir and northern Balochistan and is the main source of water 
supply for water reservoirs of the country in dry season. This water received from the snow melt and 
from the seasonal rains plays an important role in the agricultural and socioeconomic activities of the 
country. Agriculture of Pakistan is mainly climate dependent, and every area has its own crops and 
fruits according to its climate. The country's most important crops and fruits are grown in winter season 
in different areas according to its climate conditions. If there is any abnormality in the usual climate 
condition the nation suffers for the whole year and there is also a huge loss to the economy. 

b. Zone Classification: 

Detection of rainfall trend is subject to limitations: there is no clear altitudinal trend of rainfall. 
Therefore, for analysis, a dataset spreads over a period of 30 years (1976-2005) covering the whole 
country i.e. 30 stations from extreme north to south and east to west have been selected. The stations 
included in this study were selected on the basis of their latitudinal position, elevation from sea level, 
length of record, completeness and reliability of data so that a synoptic view of the entire country could 
be obtained. Further the selected stations have been divided into five different microclimatic zones. 
These zones were named A, B, C, D and E as shown in Figure 1, along with their latitudinal extent. 
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Zone A 

Zone A comprises those stations having cold climate and high mountains, situated in the north of 

Pakistan. These stations are Chitral, Gilgit, Muzaffarabad, Said-u- 5harif Skardu, Astor, Dir, 

Chilas Parachinar and Kakul. These are mostly hill stations located between 34 N to 38 N in the 

Himalaya, Hindukash and Koh-e- Sufaid mountain ranges. 

Zone B 

This zone has mild cold climate and Sub Mountains, located between 31 N to 34 N. The stations 

are Sialkot, D.I.Khan, Islamabad, Peshawar, Cherat and Lahore. 



Zone C  

Climate is cold in winters and hot in summers. Most of them are mountainous stations with high 

elevations from mean sea level and cover an area between 27 N to 32N and 64 F to 70 F. Stations 

included in this zone are Quetta, Zhob, Kalat and Khuzdar. 

Zone D 

This is the hottest and dry zone of the country where highest maximum temperatures are recorded 

in stations of Sibbi and Jacobabad. The area is almost plain with some area included in Thar Desert. 

Stations included are Sibbi, Jacobabad, Bahawalpure, Khanpur, Multan and Rohri. 

Zone E  

Zone E is a big zone having many stations and coastal cities, near to Arabian Sea. The coastal Part 

comprises only a small part of this region and climate above coastal parts in Balochistan as well as 

in Sindh province is mostly arid to hyper arid. The selected stations from this zone are Hyderabad, 

Karachi, Nawabshah and Jewani. 

c. Existing Environmental Conditions: 

a) Physical Environment 
• Climate: Karachi experiences a hot desert climate with high temperatures and low rainfall, 

making it suitable for solar energy generation. 
• Topography: The project site is relatively flat, with no significant natural features that would 

impact the installation. 
• Soil: The soil composition is mostly sandy, with moderate load-bearing capacity, suitable for 

installing mounting structures. 

b) Biological Environment 
• Flora and Fauna: The project site is within an industrial area with minimal vegetation and 

wildlife. There are no protected species or significant habitats within the vicinity. 
• Air Quality: The air quality in the area is typical for an industrial zone, with occasional dust 

and emissions from nearby factories. 
• Noise Levels: The noise levels are consistent with industrial activities, with no significant noise 

pollution expected from the solar plant. 

c) Socio-Economic Environment 
• Local Community: The surrounding area is primarily industrial, with no residential 

conrnunities in close proximity to the project site. 
• Economic Activity: The installation of the solar plant is expected to create temporary 

employment opportunities during the construction phase. 

The sites are allocated in private land (Roof Top) within the premises of Customer, and the 
applicant has carried out a detailed environment assessment of the sites in preparation of the Solar 
PV Plant. 

The assessment of the Project has been considered for both positive and negative eflècts. The 
proposed photovoltaic Power Project has been located as per international guidelines. Adoption of 
green power generation with no emission and effluent discharge with have least impact on the 



ambient environment and on the host community. However, fl the long term the project and related 
activities in areas may bring about slight change in ambient air quality of area. 

'File importance of the sustainable development concept has increased in the whole world. As a 
result, some new regulations enforce that all development projects should be compatible with the 
environmental criterions. An environmental impact assessment should be carried out to make sure 
that projects are compatible with the environmental criterions. Environmental Impact Assessment 
(EIA) can be defined as a process of environmental management, planning, and decision-making 
with a purpose of keeping and improving the quality of the environment. 

Tile main goal is to develop environmentally friendly industrialization. With this kind of 
environmentally friendly industrialization, "sustainable development" can be a possibility in the 
future by keeping the usage/protection balance between economic development and the 
environmental protection. 

Every energy generation and transmission method affects the environment. Conventional 
generating options can damage air, climate, water, land & wildlife, landscape as well as raise the 
levels of harmful radiation. PV technology is substantially safer offering a solution to many 
environmental and social problems associated with fossil and nuclear fuels. Solar PV energy 
technology provides obvious environmental advantages in comparison to the conventional energy 
sources thus contributing to the sustainable development of human activities. Not counting the 
depletion of the exhausted natural resources, their main advantage is related to the reduced CO2 
emissions and normally absence of any air emissions or waste products during their operations. 

The use of solar power has additional positive implications such as: 

• Reduction of the emissions of the greenhouse gases (mainly CO2, NOx) and prevention of 

toxic gas emissions (S02, particulates) 

• Reduction of the required transmission lines of the electricity grids. 

5. Project Environmental Impacts & Mitigation Measures: 

This Section discusses the potential environmental impacts, assesses the significance, recommends 
mitigation measure to minimize the adverse effect and identifies the residual impacts associated with 
the proposed activities of the project during the construction and operation phase of the proposed project 
at the proposed site and of secondary actions like potable, raw water and wastewater lines. Solar energy 
is a lot cleaner when compared with conventional energy sources. Solar energy systems have many 
signiticant advantages, like being cheaper and not producing any pollutants during operation and being 
almost an infinite energy source when com-pared with fossil fuels. Nevertheless, solar energy systems 
have some certain negative impacts on the environment just like any other energy system. Some of 
these impacts will be summarized in this section. 

Identification of Potential Impacts:  

a) Discharge of Pollutants 

b) Visual Impacts 

c) Impact on Natural Resources 

d) Air Pollution 

e) Noise Intrusion 



Impact on Air 

Impact on Ground Water! Surface Water 

Impact on Solid Waste 

Impact on Soil 

Impact on Natural Resources 

Discharge of Pollutants: Solar cells do not emit any pollutants during their operations. But solar cell 

modules contain some toxic substances, and there is a potential risk of releasing these chemicals to the 

enviroment during a fire. Necessary precautions should be taken for emergency situations like fire. 

The possibility of an accidental release of the chemicals of the solar cell modules to soil and 

groundwater poses a great threat for the environment. 

Visual Impacts: There will be some visual impacts depending on the type of scheme and the 

surroundings of the solar cells. Especially for applications on buildings, solar cells can be used as a 

cladding material that could be integrated into the building during the construction phase. Solar cell 

applications after the construction phase of the buildings might cause negative visual impacts. Solar 

cell utilization should be planned at the architectural phase and fitted to the building to minimize visual 

pollution. For the other application areas, proper sitting and design are important factors, especially for 

large solar cell applications. Another important factor about the control of the visual impacts is the use 

of color. Enough care should be taken for the usage of proper colors while assembling the solar cell 

modules. 

Impacts on Natural Resources: Despite being a benign energy system during operation, solar cells 

have some negative impacts on the environment during their production phase like many other systems. 

The energy needed for the production of solar energy systems is still produced in conventional methods 

today. Some toxic chemical substances used during the production phase are produced as a by-product. 

Especially, the solar cell batteries pose a threat on natural resources by having a short lifespan and 

containing heavy metals such as cadmium. 

Air Pollution: Solar cells do not emit any substances to the air during operation. But there could be 

some emissions during manufacturing and transport. The emissions associated with the transport of the 

modules are insignificant when compared with the emissions associated with the manufacture. 

Transport emissions are 0.1-1% of the manufacturing emissions. 

Noise: Intrusion Solar cells do not make a noise during operation. But during the construction phase, 

there will be a little noise as usual in other construction activities. 

Impact on Air: There would be no hazardous emissions at site as well as during construction phase 

except Motor Vehicle and Crane. Moreover, there are no objectionable odors as well as alternation of 

air temperature. 

Impact on Ground Water/ Surface Water: 'l'here would be no use of water during design phase 

except curing of civil pads during construction, which have no negative impact on environment. 



E nviro a nient 
Paranicters 

Level of 
I flpact 

Reasons 

Impact on Solid Waste: It may only Create litter and trash waste which is recyclable and may be 

cleared from site after construction. 

Impact on Soil: No impacts as all installed systems are rooftop. 

Impact on Natural Resources: There won't be any increase in the rate of usage of any natural resource 

like any minerals, additional fuel other than vehicles. But there would be increase in the amount of 

usage of Paper for mapping, enlisting items etc. However, paper may be recycling by throwing it in 

ordinary dustbin, further ensure the maximum usage of electronic system e.g. emails. 

6. Environment Assessment! Conclusion: 

The site allocated is private land within the premises of Atlas Engineering Limited (Plant) and the 

applicant has carried out a detailed environment assessment of the site for installation of solar PV 

Plant. Overall findings: 

Mitigation Measures 

Air Impact Low Solar Energy is Carbon Free (No Emissions) 

Plant will require a very low 
Water Low quantity of water for cleaning of 

PV Modules 

Land Low No impact on Land  

RO Plant is already installed at site and 
water from said source may be used for 
cleaning of PV Modules 

As said project is purely roof based 
which have no impact on Land 

Ecosystem Low  
No ecologically sensitive area 
lies with in premises 

There is no significant vegetation 
cover within the selected area 

Not Applicable 
Total area identified for said 

Socio Eco System Low project is in plant premises and 
no acquisition is needed 

7. Safety plans, emergency plans 

• Only qualified and authorized electricians will be allowed to undertake servicing or maintenance 

tasks. 

• The authorized personnel will wear appropriate equipment, including a safety harness to restrain 

from falling off the roof, sturdy shoes that will have thick rubber soles to provide electrical 

insulation and good grip and appropriate clothing for personal protection, including a hat, 

sunglasses, gloves and long pants and sleeves. 

• Lock out and tag out procedures will be used before commencement of maintenance tasks. 



• On-going operation and maintenance concerns for solar power systems will be addressed properly. 

These systems are exposed to outdoor weather conditions that enhance the aging process, and the 

infrastructure needs to be in place for the on-going maintenance of these systems to assure their 

safe operation. 

• Properly grounded or double insulated power tools will be used for maintenance tasks. 

• Tools will be maintained in good condition. 

• Working on electrical equipment and circuits will be carried out in de-energized state. 

• Proper pathways will be available for operation, maintenance and firefighting. 

• Fire protection and suppression will be placed at site. 

0 



ENVIROMENT IMPACT ASSEMENT STUDY 



1. Introduction: 

Extensive fbssil fuel consumption in almost all human activities has led to some undesirable 
phenomena such as atmospheric and environmental pollution, which have not been experienced 
before in known human history. Consequently, global warming, green house affect, climate 
change, ozone layer depletion, and acid rain terminologies started to appear in the literature 
frequently. Since 1970, it has been understood scientifically by experiments and research that these 
phenomena are closely related to fossil fuel uses because they emit greenhouse gases such as 
carbon dioxide (CO2) and methane (CI-I4), which hinder the long-wave terrestrial radiation escape 
into space, and, consequently, the earth troposphere becomes warmer. In order to avoid further 
impacts of these phenomena, the two concentrative alternatives are either to improve the fossil fuel 
quality with reductions in their harmful emissions into the atmosphere or, more significantly, to 
replace fossil fuel usage as much as possible with environmentally friendly, clean, and renewable 
energy sources. Among these sources, solar energy comes at the top of the list due to its abundance 
and more even distribution in nature than any other renewable energy type, such as wind, 
geothermal, hydro, wave, and tidal energies. Solar energy technologies are essential components 
of a sustainable energy future. Energy from fossil fuels may be inexpensive and assurances may 
have been given of the plentiful supplies of petroleum and other fossil fuels, but these fuels are 
finite in nature and a major source of greenhouse gas emissions. 

1.1. Project Overview 
Atlas Energy Limited proposes the installation of a solar power plant at the Atlas Engineering 
Limited site in Karachi. The project aims to reduce carbon footprint and energy costs by 
transitioning to renewable energy sources, aligning with the company's sustainability goals. 

1.2. Purpose of the EtA 
The Environmental Impact Assessment (NA) report is prepared to assess the potential 
environmental impacts associated with the solar plant installation. This report will identify, 
evaluate, and propose mitigation measures to address the environmental effects of the project, 
ensuring compliance with local regulations and sustainable development principles. 

1.3. Project Location 
The proposed site for the solar plant is within the premises of Atlas Engineering Limited, located 
at Atlas Industrial Park, 15th Miles, National highway, Landhi, Karachi.. The site is situated 
in an industrial area with existing infrastructure suitable for the installation, including rooftops and 
open spaces that can accommodate solar panels. 

1.4. Objectives 

• Energy Efficiency: Reduce reliance on grid electricity and diesel generators, lowering 
operational costs. 

• Environmental impact: Decrease greenhouse gas emissions and minimize the carbon 
footprint of Atlas Engineering Limited. 

• Sustainability: Promote the use of renewable energy and contribute to the company's 
sustainability targets. 

2. Rationale: 

It is a commonly knowledge that availability of electricity in any country that has direct effect on its 
economy and social factors and therefore, in order to measure the affluence of a society, the per capita 
energy consumption is used as index. An economy's production and consumption of electricity are basic 



indicators of its size and level of development. Although a few countries export electric power, most 
production is for domestic consumption. Expanding the supply of electricity to meet the growing 
demand of increasingly urbanized and industrialized economies without incurring unacceptable social, 
economic, and environmental costs is one of the great challenges facing developing countries. 

Modem societies are becoming increasing dependent on reliable and secure electricity supplies to 
underpin economic growth and community prosperity. This reliance is set to grow as more efficient and 
less carbon intensive forms of power are developed and deployed to help decarbonize economies. 
Maintaining reliable and secure electricity services while seeking to rapidly decarbonize power systems 
is a key challenge for countries throughout the world. In developing economies growth in energy use is 
closely related to growth in the modern sectors - industry, motorized transport, and urban areas - but 
energy use also reflects climatic, geographic, and economic factors (such as the relative price of energy). 
Energy use has been growing rapidly in low- and middle-income economies, but high-income 
economies still use almost five times as much energy on a per capita basis. Governments in many 
countries are increasingly aware of the urgent need to make better use of the world's energy resources. 
Improved energy efficiency is often the most economic and readily available means of improving 
energy security and reducing greenhouse gas emissions. Pakistan's per capita energy consumption of 
Pakistan Generation of electricity in Pakistan is largely on furnace oil whose substantial quantity is 
imported, prices whereof adversely affect the generation in the country. Although natural gas is a 
cheaper fuel however its reserves are depleting rapidly. In these circumstances, the use of solar power 
in Pakistan appears to be quite an attractive mode of generation of electric power. Further, its use does 
not require refining, transporting and conveying fuels and power over long distances. Moreover, solar 
power does not create pollution. Naturally, Pakistan is located in the Sunny Belt and can take advantage 
of its ideal situation for A utilization of solar energy. The country potential for solar generation is 
beyond doubt as it has high solar irradiation and enough space for installation of generation system 
those are ideal for PV and other solar energy applications. Villages and other areas which are away 
from grid or distribution system of utilities can also benefit from solar power generation which will also 
save the extra cost of laying the system and the losses. Solar energy, on the other hand, has excellent 
potential in areas of Pakistan that receive high levels of solar radiation throughout the year. Every day, 
for example, the country receives an average of about 19 Mega Joules per square nieter of solar energy 
Pakistan being in the Sun Belt is ideally located to take advantage of solar energy technologies. This 
energy source is widely distributed and abundantly available in the country. The mean global irradiation 
falling on horizontal surface is about 200-250 watt per sq.m in a day. This amounts to about 2500- 3000 
sun shine hours and 1.9 - 2.3 MWh per sq. meter in a year. It has an average daily global isolation of 
19 to 20 MJ/sq. meter per day with annual mean sunshine duration of 8 to 8.5 hours (6-7hrs in cold and 
10-12 hi-s. in hot season) and these values are among the highest in the world. For daily global radiation 
up to 23MJ/m2, 24 (80%) consecutive days are available in this area for solar energy. Such conditions 
are ideal fbr solar thernml applications. 

Pakistan receives about 15.5x1014 kWh of solar irradiance each year with most regions receiving 
approximately 8 to 10 sunlight hours per day. The installed capacity of solar photovoltaic power is 
estimated to be 1600 GW per year, providing approximately 3.5 PWh of electricity (a figure 
approximately 41 times that of current power generation in the country). To summarize, the sun shines 
for 250-300 days per years in Pakistan with average sun shine hours of 8- 10 per day. This gives huge 
amount of energy to be used for electricity generation by solar photovoltaic and solar thermal power 
plants. A quick idea for the potential of solar energy in Pakistan can be obtained from the satellite map 
of solar radiation released by National Renewable Energy Lab (NREL) of USA. 
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3. Environment Assessment Report: 

3.1.Study Area: 

Pakistan is geographically situated approximately between 24-37 IV latitudes and 62-75 longitudes in 
the western zone of south Asia. The distribution of rainfall in Pakistan varies on wide ranges, mostly 
associated with the monsoon winds and the western disturbances, but the rainfall does not occur 
throughout the year. Like, Khyber Pukhtonkhuwa (northern mountains) and Balochistan provinces 
receive maximum rainfall in the months of December to March while in Punjab and Sindh receive 50-
75% of rainfall during monsoon season (Kaziet al, 1951; FAO, 1987; Khan, 1993 & 2002; Kureshy, 
1998; Luo and Lin, 1999). The precipitation received in the country can be divided into two main 
seasons, summer or monsoon and winter precipitation. The monsoon rainfall enters Pakistan from east 
and northeast during the month of July to September. During this duration a good amount of rainfall is 
received in the north and northeastern areas of the country. Winter precipitation (December to March) 
is mainly received from western disturbances entering from Iran and Afghanistan. The weather systems 
entering from Afghanistan are called the primary western disturbances and cover only the north and 
northwestern parts of the country, whereas those approaching from the Iran are secondary and cover a 
large area of theCountry including Balochistan, Punjab, Khyber Pukhtonkhuwa, Kashmir and northern 
areas and sometimes Sindh province. A large amount of snowfall is received in the northern areas, upper 
Khyber Puklitonithuwa, Kashmir and northern Balochistan and is the main source of water supply for 
water reservoirs of the country in dry season. This water received from the snow melt and from the 
seasonal rains plays an important role in the agricultural and socioeconomic activities of the country. 
Agriculture of Pakistan is mainly climate dependent and every area has its own crops and fruits 
according to its climate. The country's most important crops and fruits are grown in winter season in 
different areas according to its climate conditions. If there is any abnormality in the usual climate 
condition the nation suffers for the whole year and there is also a huge loss to the economy. 

3.2. Zone Classification: 

Detection of rainfall trend is subject to limitations: there is no clear altitudinal trend of rainfall. 
Therefore, for analysis, a dataset spreads over a period of 30 years (1976-2005) covering the whole 
country i.e. 30 stations from extreme north to south and east to west have been selected. The stations 
included in this study were selected on the basis of their latitudinal position, elevation from sea level, 
length of record, completeness and reliability of data so that a synoptic view of the entire country could 
be obtained. Further the selected stations have been divided into five different microclimatic zones. 
These zones were named A, B, C, D and F as shown in Figure 1, along with their latitudinal extent. 
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Zone A 
Zone A comprises those stations having cold climate and high mountains, situated in the north of 
Pakistan. These stations are Chitral, Gilgit, Muzaffarabad, Said-u- Shai-if', Skardu, Astor, Dir, 
Chilas Parachinar and Kakul. These are mostly hill stations located between 34 N to 38 N in the 
1-limalaya, Hindukash and Koh-e- Sufaid mountain ranges. 

Zone B 
This zone has mild cold climate and Sub Mountains, located between 31 N to 34 N. The stations 
are Sialkot, D.I.Khan, Islamabad, Peshawar, Cherat and Lahore. 
Zone C  
Climate is cold in winters and hot in summers. Most of them are mountainous stations with high 
elevations from mean sea level and cover an area between 27 N to 32N and 64 E to 70 E. Stations 
included in this zone are Quetta, Zhob, Kalat and Khuzdar. 

Zone 0 
This is the hottest and dry zone of the country where highest maximum temperatures are recorded 
in stations of Sibbi and Jacobabad. The area is almost plain with some area included in Thar Desert. 
Stations included are Sibbi, Jacobabad, Bahawalpure, Khanpur, Multan and Rohri. 

Zone E 
Zone H is a big zone having many stations and coastal cities, near to Arabian Sea. The coastal Part 
comprises only a small part of this region and climate above coastal parts in Balochistan as well as 
in Sindh province is mostly arid to hyper arid. The selected stations from this zone are 1-lyderabad, 
Karachi, Nawabshah and Jewani. 

3.3. Existing Environmental Conditions: 

d) Physical Environment 
• Climate: Karachi experiences a hot desert climate with high temperatures and low rainfall, 

making it suitable for solar energy generation. 
• Topography: The project site is relatively flat, with no significant natural features that would 

impact the installation. 
• Soil: The soil composition is mostly sandy, with moderate load-bearing capacity, suitable for 

installing mounting structures. 

e) Biological Environment 
• Flora and Fauna: The project site is within an industrial area with minimal vegetation and 

wildlife. There are no protected species or significant habitats within the vicinity. 
• Air Quality: The air quality in the area is typical for an industrial zone, with occasional dust 

and emissions from nearby factories. 
• Noise Levels: The noise levels are consistent with industrial activities, with no significant noise 

pollution expected from the solar plant. 

0 Socio-Economic Environment 
• Local Community: The surrounding area is primarily industrial, with no residential 

communities in close proximity to the project site. 
• Economic Activity: The installation of the solar plant is expected to create temporary 

employment opportunities during the construction phase. 

The sites are allocated in private land (Roof Top) within the premises of Customer, and the 
applicant has carried out a detailed environment assessment of the sites in preparation of the Solar 
PV Plant. 



The assessment of the Project has been considered for both positive and negative effects. The 
proposed photovoltaic Power Project has been located as per international guidelines. Adoption of 
green power generation with no emission and effluent discharge with have least impact on the 
ambient environment and on the host community. However, in the long term the project and related 
activities in areas may bring about slight change in ambient air quality of area. 

The importance of the sustainable development concept has increased in the whole world. As a 
result, some new regulations enforce that all development projects should be compatible with the 
environmental criterions. An environmental impact assessment should be carried out to make sure 
that projects are compatible with the environmental criterions. Environmental Impact Assessment 
(HA) can be defined as a process of environmental management, planning, and decision-making 
with a purpose of keeping and improving the quality of the environment. 

The main goal is to develop environmentally friendly industrialization. With this kind of 
environmentally friendly industrialization, "sustainable development" can be a possibility in the 
future by keeping the usage/protection balance between economic development and environmental 
protection. 

Every energy generation and transmission method affects the environment. Conventional 
generating options can damage air, climate, water, land & wildlife, landscape as well as raise the 
levels of harmful radiation. PV technology is substantially safer offering a solution to many 
environmental and social problems associated with fossil and nuclear fuels. Solar PV energy 
technology provides obvious environmental advantages in comparison to the conventional energy 
sources thus contributing to the sustainable development of human activities. Not counting the 
depletion of the exhausted natural resources, their main advantage is related to the reduced CO2 
emissions and normal absence of any air emissions or waste products during their operations. 

The use of solar power has additional positive implications such as: 

• Reduction of the emissions of the greenhouse gases (mainly CO2, NOx) and prevention of 

toxic gas emissions (S02, particulates) 

• Reduction of the required transmission lines of the electricity grids. 

4. Project Environmental Impacts & Mitigation Measures: 

This Section discusses the potential environmental impacts, assesses the significance, recommends 
mitigation measure to minimize the adverse effect and identifies the residual impacts associated with 
the proposed activities of the project during the construction and operation phase of the proposed project 
at the proposed site and of secondary actions like potable, raw water and wastewater lines. Solar energy 
is a lot cleaner when compared with conventional energy sources. Solar energy systems have many 
significant advantages, like being cheaper and not producing any pollutants during operation and being 
alniost an infinite energy source when compared with fossil fuels. Nevertheless, solar energy systems 
have some certain negative impacts on the environment just like any other energy system. Some of 
these impacts will be summarized in this section. 

Identification of Potential Impacts: 

a) Discharge of Pollutants 

b) Visual Impacts 



c) Impact on Natural Resources 

d) Air Pollution 

e) Noise Intrusion 

Impact on Air 

Impact on Ground Water/ Surface Water 

Impact on Solid Waste 

Impact on Soil 

Impact on Natural Resources 

Discharge of Pollutants: Solar cells do not emit any pollutants during their operations. But solar cell 
modules contain some toxic substances, and there is a potential risk of releasing these chemicals to the 
environment during a fire. Necessary precautions should be taken for emergency situations like fire. 
'l'he possibility of an accidental release of the chemicals of the solar cell modules to soil and 
groundwater poses a great threat for the environment. 
Visual Impacts: There will be some visual impacts depending on the type of scheme and the 
surroundings of the solar cells. Especially for applications on buildings, solar cells can be used as a 
cladding material that could be integrated into the building during the construction phase. Solar cell 
applications after the construction phase of the buildings might cause negative visual impacts. Solar 
cell utilization should be planned at the architectural phase and fitted to the building to minimize visual 
pollution. For the other application areas, proper sitting and design are important factors, especially for 
large solar cell applications. Another important factor about the control of the visual impacts is the use 
of color. Enough care should be taken for the usage of proper colors while assembling the solar cell 
modules. 
Impacts on Natural Resources: Despite being a benign energy system during operation, solar cells 
have some negative impacts on the environment during their production phase like many other systems. 
The energy needed for the production of solar energy systems is still produced in conventional methods 
today. Some toxic chemical substances used during the production phase are produced as a by-product. 
Especially, the solar cell batteries pose a threat on natural resources by having a short lifespan and 
containing heavy metals such as cadmium. 
Air Pollution: Solar cells do not emit any substances to the air during operation. But there could be 
some emissions during manufacturing and transport. The emissions associated with the transport of the 
modules are insignificant when compared with the emissions associated with the manufacture. 
'Iransport emissions are 0.1-1% of the manufacturing emissions. 
Noise: Intrusion Solar cells do not make a noise during operation. But during the construction phase, 
there will be a little noise as usual in other construction activities. 
Impact on Air: There would be no hazardous emissions at site as well as during construction phase 
except Motor Vehicle and Crane. Moreover, there are no objectionable odors as well as alternation of 
air temperature. 
impact on Ground Water! Surface Water: There would be no use of water during design phase 
except curing of civil pads during construction, which have no negative impact on environment. 
Impact on Solid Waste: It may only Create litter and trash waste which is recyclable and may be 
cleared from site after construction. 
Impact on Soil: No impacts as all installed systems are rooftop. 
impact on Natural Resources: There won't be any increase in the rate of usage of any natural resource 
like any minerals, additional fuel other than vehicles. But there would be increase in the amount of 
usage of Paper for mapping, enlisting items etc. However, paper may be recycling by throwing it in 
ordinary dustbin, further ensure the maximum usage of electronic system e.g. emails. 



5. Environment Assessment! Conclusion: 

The site allocated is private land within the premises of Atlas Engineering Limited (Plant) and the 
applicant has carried out a detailed environment assessment of the site for installation of solar PV 
Plant. Overall findings: 

E nvi ron iueiit 
Paranieters 

Level of 
I IiIflICt 

Reasons Mitigation Measures 

  

Low Solar Energy is Carbon Free (No Emissions) Air Impact 

Water 

Land 

Ecosystem 

Socio Eco System 

Plant will require a very low 
quantity of water for cleaning of 
PV Modules 

No impact on Land 

No ecologically sensitive area 
lies with in premises 

Total area identified for said 
Low project is in plant premises and 

no acquisition is needed  

RO Plant is already installed at site and 
water from said source may be used for 
cleaning of PV Modules 

As said project is purely roof based 
which have no impact on Land 

There is no significant vegetation 
cover within the selected area 

Not Applicable 

Low 

Low 

Low 

6. Safety plans, emergency plans 

• Only qualified and authorized electricians will be allowed to undertake servicing or niaintenance 
tasks. 

• The authorized persoimel will wear appropriate equipment, including a safety harness to restrain 
from falling off the roof, sturdy shoes that will have thick rubber soles to provide electrical 
insulation and good grip and appropriate clothing for personal protection, including a hat, 
sunglasses, gloves and long pants and sleeves. 

• Lock out and tag out procedures will be used before commencement of maintenance tasks. 
• On-going operation and maintenance concerns for solar power systems will be addressed properly. 

These systems are exposed to outdoor weather conditions that enhance the aging process, and the 
infrastructure needs to be in place for the on-going maintenance of these systems to assure their 
safe operation. 

• Properly grounded or double insulated power tools will be used for maintenance tasks. 
• Tools will be maintained in good condition. 
• Working on electrical equipment and circuits will be carried out in dc-energized state. 
• Proper pathways will be available for operation, maintenance and firefighting. 
• Fire protection and suppression will be placed at site. 



(flAtlasEnergy Application for Generation License 

3(g) * an affidavit stating whether the applicant has been granted 
any other license under the Act; 



@rAtIas  Energy Application for Generation License 

3(h) * a duly authorised statement stating whether the applicant 
has been refused grant of license under the Act and, if so, the 

particulars of the refused application, including date of making 
the application and decision on the application; 



(kt1as Energy 
September 13, 2024 

Registrar 
NEPRA Tower Attaturk Avenue (East), 
Sector G-5I1, 
Islamabad. 

Confirmation Statement 

1, Maqsood Ahmad Chief Executive Officer  and the duly authorized representative of Atlas Energy 
Limited, hereby confirm that Atlas Energy Limited has never been refused or denied a license by the 
National Electric Power Regulatory Authority (NEPRA) under the Regulation of Generation, 
Transmission, and Distribution of Electric PowerAct, 1997 (NEPRAAct, 1997). 

MaqsoodAhmad 
Chief Executive Officer 
Atlas Energy Limited 

Alias Energy Limited 
Registered Office: 64-XX, Khayaban-e-Iqbat, Phase-rn, DHA, Lahore. 

Ph: (92-42) 37132636-39, (92-42) 37132644 Fax: (92-42) 37132641 



(J!!IAt1asEnergy Application for Generation License 

3(6) * Authorization from Board Resolution / Power of Attorney 



flhrrAtIas  Energy 

Certified True Cony of resolutions passed by the Board of Directors tbrouuh 
circulation on 4 February 2019 

Resolved: 

"That Mr Maqsood Ahmed, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, be and is hereby authorised to file; 
(i) an application for grant of Generation License; (ii) any other clarification, submission, application, 

petition or document in support thereof, (iii) to make any oral or written representations on behalf of the 
Company before the National Electric Power Regulatory Authority and any other body, organization, 

department judicial and quasi-judicial body in relation to the aforesaid filings and to do all other acts 

deeds, things and matters as may be deemed expedient in giving effect to the aforesaid resolution." 

Further Resolved: 

that Mr. Moqsood Ahmed, Chief Executive Officer of the Company may further delegate the aforesaid 

powers, in writing, to one or more persons, as deemed expedient from time to time." 

Further Resolved: 

"that these resolutions duly certified by one of the Directors of the Company or the Company Secretary 

be communicated to the concerned parties which shall constitute the Company's mandate to the 

concerned parties and shall remain in force until revoked/changed by notice in writing to the concerned 
parties." 

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY 

Khalid Mahmood 
Company Secretary 

Atlas Energy Limited 
Registered Office: Building No. 64/XX, Khayabun-e-lqbal, DNA Phase Ill, l.ahorc, 

Ph.: (92-42) 37132637-38, Fax: (92-42) 37332812 



(J!tAtlas Energy Application for Generation License 

3(7) * An affidavit as to the correctness, authenticity and 
accuracy of the application, 



E-STAM P 
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E-Stamp ID PB-LHR B879532CFDA13E22 Stamp Type: Low Denomination 
Payment Reference No.: 0676-27754212 Amount: Rs 300/- 

Description 
Applicant 
Representative From 
Agent 
Address 
Issue Date 
Delisted OnfValidity 
Paid Through Challan 
Amount in Words 
Reason 

AFFIDAVIT - 4 
Maqsood Ahmad [35202-2632390-1] 
Atlas Energy Limited 
Maqsood Ahmad [35202-2632390-1] 
64 Block XX Khayaban e Iqbal DHA Phase HI Lahore 
12-Sep-2024, 12:35:44 PM 
19-Sep-2024 
20247 1AOSECF1DE3 

Three Hundred Rupees Only 
Affidavit to NEPRA for Generation License Application of 950.625 kWp for Conformance 

AVFIDAVIT  

Type "eStanip <16 digit eStamp Number> send to 8100 

I Mausood Ahmad  S/o Ch. Muhammad Sadiq,  holding CNIC No. 35202-2632390-1, Chief Executive 

Officer Atlas Energy Limited, being the duly authorized representative of Atlas Energy Limited, hereby 

confirm that the Applicant has been earlier granted undermentioned licenses by the authority. 

Sr. No. Generation License No. Issued To Gross Capacity Plant Type 

1.  SGC116512022 

Atlas Energy Ltd. 

4.928 MW 

Solar Power Plant 

2.  5GC114512020 858.80kW 

3.  SGC114612020 608.00 kW 

4.  S0C114712020 501.60kW 

5.  5GC114812020 638.40kW 

6.  5GC114912020 995.60 kW 

Maqsood A. Basraa 

Chief Executive Officer 

Dated:  
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Three Hundred Rupees Only 
Affidavit to NEPRA for Generation Ucense Application of 950.625 kWp for Correctness 
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Type "eStamp <16 digit eStamp Number> send to 8100 

Affidavit 

I Maqsood Ahmad  Sb Ch. Muhammad Sadiq  holding CNIC No. 35202-2632390-1  Chief 
Executive Officer of Atlas Energy Limited, the duly authorized representative of the Applicant 
Company Solemnly Affirms and declare that the content of the accompanying application for grant 
of generation license is true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief and no material 
has been, concealed there form. 

DEPONENT 

Verification:  

This Affidavit is verified on this September 13. 2024  at Lahore that the Contents of the affidavit 
are and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief and that nothing, material and relevant, has 
been kept concealed therein. 

202k 
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3(4)(a) applicable documents-in-support and information 
set out in Schedule III of these regulations 
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1. Interconnection study 

Not Applicable: 
It is a distributed solar system and Power Generated through this system will be 
consumed in-house by the relevant Office/ Plant wherein the system would be 

installed. 
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2. Environment Impact Assessment Study 

S 
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ENVIROMENT IMPACT ASSEMENT STUDY 
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Extensive fossil fuel consumption iii almost all human activities has led to sonic undesirable 
phenomena such as atmospheric and environmental pollution, which have not been experienced 
before in known human history. Consequently, global warming, green house affect, climate 
change, ozone layer depletion, and acid rain tenninologies started to appear in the literature 
frequently. Since 1970, ii has been understood scientilically by experiments and research that these 
phenomena are closely related to fossil fuel uses because they emit greenhouse gases such as 
carbon dioxide (CO2) and methane (CH4), which hinder the long-wave terrestrial radiation escape 
into space, and, consequently, the earth troposphere becomes wanner. In order to avoid further 
impacts of these phenomena, the two concentrative alternatives are either to improve the fossil fuel 
quality with reductions in their harmful emissions into the atmosphere or, more significantly, to 
replace fossil fuel usage as much as possible with environmentally friendly, clean, and renewable 
energy sources. Among these sources, solar energy comes at the top of the list due to its abundance 
and more even distribution in nature than any other renewable energy type, such as wind, 
geothermal, hydro, wave, and tidal energies. Solar energy technologies are essential components 
of a sustainable energy future. Energy from fossil fuels may be inexpensive and assurances may 
have been given of the plentiful supplies of petroleum and other fossil fuels, but these fuels are 
finite in nature and a major source of greenhouse gas emissions. 

1.1. Project Overview 
Atlas Energy Limited proposes the installation of a solar power plant at the Atlas Honda Limited 
site in Karachi. The project aims to reduce carbon footprint and energy costs by transitioning to 
renewable energy sources, aligning with the companys sustainability goals. 

1.2. Purpose of the EIA 
The Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) report is prepared to assess the potential 
environmental impacts associated with the solar plant installation. This report will identilS', 
evaluate, and propose mitigation measures to address the environmental effects of the project, 
ensuring compliance with local regulations and sustainable development principles. 

1.3. Project Location 
The proposed site for the solar plant is within the premises of Atlas Honda Limited, located at F-
36, Estate Avenue, S.1.T.E., Karachi. The site is situated in an industrial area with existing 
infrastructure suitable for the installation, including rooftops and open spaces that can 
accommodate solar panels. 

1.4. Objectives 

• Energy Efficiency: Reduce reliance on grid electricity and diesel generators, lowering 
operational costs. 

• Environmental Impact: Decrease greenhouse gas emissions and minimize the carbon 
footprint of Atlas Honda Limited. 

• Sustainability: Promote the use of renewable energy and contribute to the company's 
sustainability targets. 

2. Rationale: 

It is a commonly knowledge that availability of electricity in any country that has direct effect on its 
economy and social factors and therefore, in order to measure the affluence of a society, the per capita 
energy consumption is used as index. An economy's production and consumption of electricity are basic 
indicators of its size and level of development. Although a few countries export electric p0we1, most 
production is for domestic consumption. Expanding the supply of electricity to meet the growing 
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demand of increasingly urbanized and industrialized economies without incurring unacceptable social, 
economic, and environmental costs is one of the great challenges facing developing countries. 

Modem societies are becoming increasing dependent on reliable and secure electricity supplies to 
underpin economic growth and community prosperity. This reliance is set to grow as more efficient and 
less carbon intensive forms of power are developed and deployed to help decarbonize economies. 
Maintaining reliable and secure electricity services while seeking to rapidly decarbonize power systems 
is a key challenge for countries throughout the world. In developing economies growth in energy use is 
closely related to growth in the modern sectors - industry, motorized transport, and urban areas - but 
energy use also reflects climatic, geographic, and economic factors (such as the relative price of energy). 
Energy use has been growing rapidly in low- and middle-income economies, but high-income 
economies still use almost five times as much energy on a per capita basis. Governments in many 
countries are increasingly aware of the urgent need to make better use of the world's energy resources. 
Improved energy efficiency is often the most economic and readily available means of improving 
energy security and reducing greenhouse gas emissions. Pakistan's per capita energy consumption of 
Pakistan Generation of electricity in Pakistan is largely on furnace oil whose substantial quantity is 
imported, prices whereof adversely affect the generation in the country. Although natural gas is a 
cheaper fuel however its reserves are depleting rapidly. In these circumstances, the use of solar power 
in Pakistan appears to be quite an attractive mode of generation of electric power. Further, its use does 
not require refining, transporting and conveying fuels and power over long distances. Moreover, solar 
power does not create pollution. Naturally, Pakistan is located in the Sunny Belt and can take advantage 
of its ideal situation for A utilization of solar energy. The country potential for solar generation is 
beyond doubt as it has high solar irradiation and enough space for installation of generation system 
those are ideal for PV and other solar energy applications. Villages and other areas which are away 
from grid or distribution system of utilities can also benefit from solar power generation which will also 
save the extra cost of laying the system and the losses. Solar energy, on the other hand, has excellent 
potential in areas of Pakistan that receive high levels of solar radiation throughout the year. Every day, 
for example, the country receives an average of about 19 Mega Joules per square meter of solar energy 
Pakistan being in the Sun Belt is ideally located to take advantage of solar energy technologies. This 
energy source is widely distributed and abundantly available in the country. The niean global irradiation 
falling on horizontal surface is about 200-250 watt per sq.m in a day. This amounts to about 2500- 3000 
sun shine hours and 1.9 - 2.3 MWh per sq. meter in a year. It has an average daily global isolation of 
19 to 20 Mi/sq. meter per day with annual mean sunshine duration of 8 to 8.5 hours (6-7hrs in cold and 
10-12 hrs. in hot season) and these values are among the highest in the world. For daily global radiation 
up to 23Mi/m2, 24 (80%) consecutive days are available in this area for solar energy. Such conditions 
are ideal for solar thermal applications. 

Pakistan receives about 15.5x1014 kWh of solar irradiance each year with most regions receiving 
approximately 8 to 10 sunlight hours per day. The installed capacity of solar photovoltaic power is 
estimated to be 1600 GW per year, providing approximately 3.5 PWh of electricity (a figure 
approximately 41 times that of current power generation in the country). To summarize, the sun shines 
for 250-300 days per years in Pakistan with average sun shine hours of 8- 10 per day. This gives huge 
amount of energy to be used for electricity generation by solar photovoltaic and solar thermal power 
plants. A quick idea for the potential of solar energy in Pakistan can be obtained from the satellite map 
of solar radiation released by National Renewable Energy Lab (NREL) of USA. 

3. Environment Assessment Report: 
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3.1.Study Area: 

Pakistan is geographically situated approximately between 24-37 IV latitudes and 62-75 longitudes in 
the western zone of south Asia. The distribution of rainfall in Pakistan varies on wide ranges, mostly 
associated with the monsoon winds and the western disturbances, but the rainfall does not occur 
throughout the year. Like, IChyber Pukhtonkhuwa (northern mountains) and Balochistan provinces 
receive maximum rainfall in the months of December to March while in Punjab and Sindh receive 50-
75% of rainfall during monsoon season (Kaziet al, 1951; FAQ, 1987; Khan, 1993 & 2002; Kureshy, 
1998; Luo and Lin, 1999). The precipitation received in the country can be divided into two main 
seasons, summer or monsoon and winter precipitation. The monsoon rainfall enters Pakistan from east 
and north east during the month of July to September. During this duration a good amount of rainfall is 
received in the north and northeastern areas of the country. Winter precipitation (December to March) 
are mainly received from western disturbances entering from Iran and Afghanistan. 'l'he weather 
systems entering from Afghanistan are called the primary western disturbances and cover only the north 
and north western parts of the country, whereas those approaching from the Iran are secondary and 
cover a large area of theCountry including Balochistan, Punjab, Khyber Pukhtonkhuwa, Kashmir and 
northern areas and sometimes Sindh province. A large amount of snowfall is received in the northern 
areas, upper Khyber Pukhtonkhuwa, Kashmir and northern Balochistan and is the main source of water 
supply for water reservoirs of the country in dry season. This water received from the snow melt and 
from the seasonal rains plays an important role in the agricultural and socioeconomic activities of the 
country. Agriculture of Pakistan is mainly climate dependent and every area has its own crops and fruits 
according to its climate. The country's most important crops and fruits are grown in winter season in 
different areas according to its climate conditions. If there is any abnormality in the usual climate 
condition the nation suffers for the whole year and there is also a huge loss to the economy. 

3.2. Zone Classification: 

Detection of rainfall trend is subject to limitations: there is no clear altitudinal trend of rainfall. 
Therefore, for analysis, a dataset spreads over a period of 30 years (1976-2005) covering the whole 
country i.e. 30 stations from extreme north to south and east to west have been selected. 1he stations 
included in this study were selected on the basis of their latitudinal position, elevation from sea level, 
length of record, completeness and reliability of data so that a synoptic view of the entire country could 
be obtained. Further the selected stations have been divided into five different microclimatic zones. 
These zones were named A, B, C, D and F as shown in Figure 1, along with their latitudinal extent. 
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Zone A comprises those stations having cold climate and high mountains, situated in the north of 

Pakistan. These stations are Chitral, Gilgit, Muzaffarabad, Said-u- Sharif, Skardu, Astor, Dir, 

Chilas Parachinar and Kakul. These are mostly hill stations located between 34 N to 38 N in the 

Flimalaya, Hindukash and Koh-e- Sufaid mountain ranges. 

Zone B 

This zone has mild cold climate and Sub Mountains, located between 31N to 34 N. The stations 

are Sialkot, D.I.Khan, Islamabad, Peshawar, Cherat and Lahore. 

Zone C  

Climate is cold in winters and hot in summers. Most of them are mountainous stations with high 

elevations from mean sea level and cover an area between 27 N to 32N and 64 E to 70 F. Stations 

included in this zone are Quetta, Zhob, Kalat and Khuzdar. 

Zone D 

This is the hottest and dry zone of the country where highest maximum temperatures are recorded 

in stations of Sibbi and Jacobabad. The area is almost plain with some area included in Thar Desert, 

Stations included are Sibbi, Jacobabad, Bahawalpure, Khanpur, Multan and Rohri. 

Zone E  

Zone E is a big zone having many stations and coastal cities, near to Arabian Sea. The coastal Part 

comprises only a small part of this region and climate above coastal parts in Balochistan as well as 

in Sindh province is mostly arid to hyper arid. The selected stations from this zone are Hyderabad, 

Karachi, Nawabshah and Jewani. 

3.3. Existing Environmental Conditions: 

a) Physical Environment 
• Climate: Karachi experiences a hot desert climate with high temperatures and low rainfall, 

niaking it suitable for solar energy generation. 
• Topography: The project site is relatively flat, with no significant natural features that would 

impact the installation. 
• Soil: The soil composition is mostly sandy, with moderate load-bearing capacity, suitable for 

installing mounting structures. 

b) Biological Environment 
• Flora and Fauna: The project site is within an industrial area with minimal vegetation and 

wildlife. There are no protected species or significant habitats within the vicinity. 
• Air Quality: The air quality in the area is typical for an industrial zone, with occasional dust 

and emissions froni nearby factories. 
• Noise Levels: The noise levels are consistent with industrial activities, with no significant noise 

pollution expected from the solar plant. 

c) Socio-Eeonomic Environment 



6.tIasEnergy App/ku/ion tar Genera tioj License 

• Local Community: The surrounding area is primarily industrial, with no residential 
communities in close proximity to the project site. 

• Economic Activity: The installation of the solar plant is expectcd to create temporary 
employment opportunities during the construction phase. 

The sites are allocated in private land (Roof Top) within the premises of Customer, and the 
applicant has carried out a detailed environment assessment of the sites in preparation of the Solar 
PV Plant. 

'l'he assessment of the Project has been considered for both positive and negative effects. 'l'he 
proposed photovoltaic Power Project has been located as per international guidelines. Adoption of 
green power generation with no emission and eftluent discharge with have least impact on the 
ambient environment and on the host community. However, in the long term the project and rclated 
activities in areas may bring about slight change in ambient air quality of area. 

The importance of the sustainable development concept has increased in the whole world. As a 
result, some new regulations enforce that all development projects should be compatible with the 
environmental criterions. An environmental impact assessment should be carried out to make sure 
that projects are compatible with the environmental criterions. Environmental Impact Assessment 
(lilA) can be defined as a process of environmental management, planning, and decision-making 
with a purpose of keeping and improving the quality of the environment. 

'l'he main goal is to develop environmentally friendly industrialization. With this kind of' 
environmentally friendly industrialization, "sustainable development" can be a possibility in the 
future by keeping the usage/protection balance between economic development and the 
environmental protection. 

Every energy generation and transmission method affects the environment. Conventional 
generating options can damage air, climate, water, land & wildlife, landscape as well as raise the 
levels of harmful radiation. PV technology is substantially safer offering a solution to many 
environmental and social problems associated with fossil and nuclear fuels. Solar 1W energy 
technology provides obvious environmental advantages in comparison to the conventional energy 
sources thus contributing to the sustainable development of human activities. Not counting the 
depletion of the exhausted natural resources, their main advantage is related to the reduced CO2 
emissions and normally absence of any air emissions or waste products during their operations. 

'Ihe use of solar power has additional positive implications such as: 

• Reduction of the emissions of the greenhouse gases (mainly CO2, NOx) and prevention of 

toxic gas emissions (S02, particulates) 

• Reduction of the required transmission lines of the electricity grids. 

4. Project Environmental Impacts & Mitigation Measures: 

1'his Section discusses the potential environmental impacts, assesses the significance, recommends 
mitigation measure to minimize the adverse effect and identifies the residual impacts associated with 
the proposed activities of the project during the construction and operation phase of the proposed project 
at the proposed site and of secondary actions like potable, raw water and wastewater lines. Solar energy 
is a lot cleaner when compared with conventional energy sources. Solar energy systems have many 
significant advantages, like being cheaper and not producing any pollutants during operation and being 
almost an infinite energy source when com-pared with fossil fuels. Nevertheless, solar energy systems 
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have some certain negative impacts on the environment just like any other energy system. Sonic of 
these impacts will be summarized in this section. 

Identification of Potential Impacts: 

a) Discharge of Pollutants 

b) Visual Impacts 

c) Impact on Natural Resources 

d) Air Pollution 

e) Noise Intrusion 

0 Impact on Air 

g) Impact on Ground Water/ Surface Water 

h) Impact on Solid Waste 

i) Impact on Soil 

j) Impact on Natural Resources 

Discharge of Pollutants: Solar cells do not emit any pollutants during their operations. But solar cell 

modules contain some toxic substances, and there is a potential risk of releasing these chemicals to [lie 

environment during a fire. Necessary precautions should be taken for emergency situations like tire. 

The possibility of an accidental release of the chemicals of the solar cell modules to soil and 

groundwater poses a great threat for the environment. 

Visual Impacts: There will be some visual impacts depending on the type of scheme and the 

surroundings of the solar cells. Especially for applications on buildings, solar cells can be used as a 

cladding material that could be integrated into the building during the construction phase. Solar cell 

applications after the construction phase of the buildings might cause negative visual impacts. Solar 

cell utilization should be planned at the architectural phase and fitted to the building to minimize visual 

pollution. For the other application areas, proper sitting and design are important factors, especially for 

large solar cell applications. Another important factor about the control of the visual impacts is the use 

of color. Enough care should be taken for the usage of proper colors while assembling the solar cell 

modules. 

Impacts on Natural Resources: Despite being a benign energy system during operation, solar cells 

have some negative impacts on the environment during their production phase like many other systems. 

l'he energy needed for the production of solar energy systems is still produced in conventional methods 

today. Sonic toxic chemical substances used during the production phase are produced as a by-product. 

Especially, the solar cell batteries pose a threat on natural resources by having a short lifespan and 

containing heavy metals such as cadmium. 

Air Pollution: Solar cells do not emit any substances to the air during operation. But there could be 

some emissions during manufacturing and transport. The emissions associated with the transport ol'the 
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modules are insignificant when compared with the emissions associated with the manufhcture. 

Transport emissions are 0.1-1% of the manufacturing emissions. 

Noise: Intrusion Solar cells do not make a noise during operation. But during the construction phase, 

there will be a little noise as usual in other construction activities. 

Impact on Air: There would be no hazardous emissions at site as well as during construction phase 

except Motor Vehicle and Crane. Moreover, there are no objectionable odors as well as alternation of 

air temperature. 

Impact on Ground Water/ Surface Water: There would be no use of water during design phase 

except curing of civil pads during construction, which have no negative impact on environment. 

Impact on Solid Waste: It may only Create litter and trash waste which is recyclable and may be 

cleared from site after construction. 

Impact on Soil: No impacts as all installed systems are rooftop. 

Impact on Natural Resources: There won't be any increase in the rate of usage of any natural resource 

like any minerals, additional fuel other than vehicles. But there would be increase in the amount of 

usage of Paper for mapping, enlisting items etc. However, paper may be recycling by throwing it in 

ordinary dustbin, further ensure the maximum usage of electronic system e.g. emails. 

5. Environment Assessment! Conclusion: 
Ihe she allocated is private land within the premises of Atlas 1-loncla Limited (Plant) and the 

applicant has carried out a detailed environment assessment of the site for installation of solar PV 

Plant. Overall findings: 

Iteasous Mitigation Measures 
F rivi ro umeut 
Parameters 

Level of 

 

lnhiie( 

Low Solar Energy is Carbon Free (No Emissions) Air Impact 

Water 

Land 

Ecosystem 

Socio Eco System  

Plant will require a very low 
quantity of water for cleaning of 
1W Modules 

No impact on Land 

No ecologically sensitive area 
lies with in premises 

Total area identified for said 
Low project is in plant premises and 

no acquisition is needed  

1W Plant is already installed at site and 
water from said source may be used (br 
cleaning of PV Modules 

As said project is purely roof based 
which have no impact on Land 

There is no significant vegetation 
cover within the selected area 

Not Applicable 

Low 

Low 

Low 
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6. Safety plans, emergency plans 

• Only qualified and authorized electricians will be allowed to undertake servicing or maintenance 

tasks. 

• The authorized personnel will wear appropriate equipment, including a safety harness to restrain 

from falling off the roof, sturdy shoes that will have thick rubber soles to provide electiical 

insulation and good grip and appropriate clothing for personal protection, including a hat, 

sunglasses, gloves and long pants and sleeves. 

• Lock out and tag out procedures will be used before commencement of maintenance tasks. 

• On-going operation and maintenance concerns for solar power systems will be addressed properly. 

These systems are exposed to outdoor weather conditions that enhance the aging process, and the 

infrastructure needs to be in place for the on-going maintenance of these systems to assure their 

safe operation. 

• Properly grounded or double insulated power tools will be used for maintenance tasks. 

• 'Fools will be maintained in good condition. 

• Working on electrical equipment and circuits will be carried out in dc-energized state. 

• Proper pathways will be available for operation, maintenance and firefighting. 

• Fire protection and suppression will be placed at site. 
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3(i) Location (Location Map, Site Map, Land) 
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1. Location maps, site maps, land 
A birds eye view of the project site is given in the figure below 

Location: Atlas Engineering Limited 
Atlas Industrial Park, 

I5 Miles, National Highway, Landhi, Karachi. 



S 
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2. Site Coordinates & Location: 
The project site is the rooftop and exact coordinates of the project site are as below: 

I ocalion Coordinate 

 

Location: Latitude:
24°5 128.8 N 

Location: Atlas Engineering 
Atlas Industrial Park, 15th Miles, National 

Highway, Landhi, Karachi. Longitude: 67°13'53.4E 

I 
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3(u) Technology, size of plant, number of units 
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Details of Generation Facility: 

Project Profile 

Project Size 

Location (s) 

Type of Project Roof Mounted 

Construction Period 7 — 8 Months 

950.625 kWp 

Atlas Engineering Limited, 
Atlas Industrial Park, 15th  Miles, National Highway, Landhi, Karachi. 

Energy Generation: 

Project Prolile 

Capacity Factor 16.0% 

Annual Energy Generation Units 1,332,396 kWh 

Degradation Factor First Year 2.5% & remaining 24 Years 0.6% 

Model & Technical Details of Equipment: 

P\' \lodii les 

Type of Module J1CM585M-72HL4-TV 

No. Of Modules 1,625 (1,625 * 585) = 950.625 kWp 

Type of Cell Mono PERC Half-Cell 

Dimension of each Module 2278x1134x35rnrn (89.53x44.65x 1.38 inch) 

Total Module Area 2.583,252 rn2 

Frame of Panel Anodized aluminium alloy 

Weight of one Module 27.0 kg 

No of Solar Cells in each module 144 (6x24) 
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Efficiency of module 22.65 % 

Maximum Power (Pm4 585 Wi 

Voltage @ Pmax 43.53 V 

Current @ P, 13.44 A 

Open circuit voltage (V00) 52.47V 

Short circuit current (I) 14.07 A 

Maximum system open Circuit
ISOOVDC (IEC) 

Voltage 

I nvcrtcrs 

Description 

Size & Mode 

Technical Specification 

115KW 50KW 
SUN2000-1 1SKTL-M2 SUN2000-5OKTL-M3 

No. of Inverters 5 4 

Input Operating Voltage Range 200 V to 1000 V 200 V to 1000 V 

Efficiency of inverter 98.5% 98.5 % 

Max. Allowable Input voltage IIOOV 1l00V 

Max. Current per MPPT 30 A 30 A 

Max. Power Point Tracking Range 200 V to 1000 V 200 V to 1000 V 

Output electrical system 3 Phase AC 3 Phase AC 

Rated Output Voltage 3 / N / PE, 230 / 400 V
230 V / 400V, 3W + N + 

Power Factor (adjustable) 0.8 LG...0.8 LD 0.8 LG...0.8 LD 

Power control MPP Tracker MPP Tracker 

Rated Frequency 50Hz 50 Hz 
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\lounling Structure 

Structure Aluminum Rail Type/ MS painted Parking shed 

Tilt Angle 50 

Degradation Factor First Year 2.5% & remaining 24 Years 0.6% 

l)ata Collecting System 

System Data Continuous online logging with data logging software to portal. 

Single Line Diagram: 

The electrical system comprises the following components: 
• Array(s) of PV modules 

• DC/AC cabling (module, string and main cable) 

• DC connectors (plugs and sockets) 
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• Junction boxes and combiners 
• Disconnects/switches 
• Protection devices e.g. fuses, surge protective devices, beakers 
• Energy Metering 
• Earthing 

The single line diagrams of DC and AC sides are given below. The single line diagram 
includes the protection devices that will be used for safe and smooth operation of the 
system. 
Protections DC Side: 'String Fuses, Surge Protective Device and DC Disconnect Switches 
Protections AC Side: MCBs, Main Breaker 

Concept Design: 
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3(iii) Water Source at site for maintenance 

The Applicant Company shall use a limited quantity of the tap 
water available at the generation site for the purposes of washing 

the PV modules and shall use the available sewerage for disposal to 
avoid any negative impact on the environment. 

I 
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3(iv) Infrastructure: road, rail, staff colony, amenities 

The site is well-served by existing road and rail infrastructure, with 
the nearest railway station approximately 4 kilometers away, and 

offers essential amenities to support the solar facility, with no need 
for a staff colony as the site is located within the main city. 
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3(v) Project Commencement and completion schedule with 

milestones 



Qir 2, 2024 
_aF - I - Apr I May - I Jun -- L Feb 

t-1-m-t. 

U Tas 
Mo' t1tr 1,2024 

-- Jan 

task Nanny Duration Start Finish Predetesso 

1 AHL Karachi 140 KWp Solar Project Timelines 129 days Mon 1/1/24 Thu 6/27/24 

2 Approval of Design 30 days Mon 1/1/24 FrI 2/9/24 

3 Submission of Design fur Approval of AHL 15 days Mon 1/1/24 Fri 1/19/24 

4 Approval of design 15 days Mon 1/22/24 Fri 2/9/24 3 

5 . Procurement 53 days Wed 2/21/24 Fri 5/ 3/24 

Mounting Structure 23 days Wed 2/21/24 FrI 3/22/24 

7 . Mounting Structure rabricaton 20 days Wed 2/21/24 Tue 3/19/24 4FSi7 days 

8 Delivery of Mounting structure at site 3 days Wed 3/20/24 Fr 3/22/24 

9 cable Trays and LV Panel 32 days •Mon 2/26/24 •Tue 4/9/24 

10 Cable Trays and LV Panels Ordering 30 days Mon 2/26/ 24 Fri 4/5/24 afselO days 

11 Delivery of Cable Trays and LV Panels 2days Mon4/8/24 Toe4/9/24 ID 

12 Cables 27 days Mon 2/26/24 Tue 4/2/24 

13 Ordering of Cables 25 days Mon 2/26/24 Fri 3/29/24 4F5-'lO days 

14 Delivery of Cable at Site 2 days Mon 4/1/24 Tue 4/2/24 13 

15 .1. Delivery of Consumable Items at site 30 days Mon 3/25/24 Fri 5/3/24 8 

16 r Project Execution 6sdays Mon3/25/24 Wed6/26/24 

17 Civil and Mechanical Works 65days Mon3/25/24 Fnl6/21/24 

18 Site Layout and Dumping of civil material S days Mon 3/25/24 Fri 3/29/24 

19 r. Civil Pads Construction arid Curing 15 days Mon 4/1/24 Fri 4/19/24 18 

20 . Mounting Structure Installation 15 days Mon 4/22/24 Fri 5/10/24 19 

21 Solar Panels Mounting ISdays Mon4/22/24 rn 5/10/24 2OSS 

22 Laying of Water Distribution Lines for tleanirsg 30days Mon5/13/24 Frib/21/24 21 

23 Electrical Works 43 days Mon 4/22/24 Wed 6/19/24 

24 DC Cable Tray Laying 15 days Mon 4/22/24 Fri 5/10/24 2U5S 

25 lniverter Mounting 2days Mon5/13/24 Toes/14/24 24 

26 LV Panels Mounting 2 days Mon 5/13/24 Tue S/14/24 24 

27 AC Cable Tray Laying sdays Weds/15/24 Tues/21/24 26 

28 - DC Cables Laying 10 days Mon 5/13/ 24 rn 5/24/24 24 

29 DC Cables Stningiiig arid lnterlooping 10 days Thu 5/16/24 Wed S/29/24 24r5t3 days 

30 DC Cables Termination to Inverter 5days ThuS/30/24 Wedfi/5/24 29 

31 AC Cables Laying & Termination (Inverters to LV Panels) 5 days Thu 6/6/24 Wed 6/12/24 3 

32 AC Cables Termination to Main LV Sdays Tliu6/13/24 Wed 6/19/24 31 

33 Earthing Works 25 days Mon 5/13/24 FrI 6/14/24 

34 Solar Panels/lnverters/LV Panel Earthing 15 days Mon 5/13/24 Fri 5/31/24 21 

35 Earth Boring arid Dghtntng Arrestors Installation 20 days Mon 5/20/24 Fri 6/14/24 2 iF55 days 

36 Testing and commissioning 23 days •Mon 5/27/24 Wed 6/26/24 

37 Pre-Commissioning Testing of AC/DC Cables 10 days Mon 5/27/24 Fri 6/7/ 24 28 

38 Pre-Comniissioning Testing of Inverters days Thu 6/20/24 Wed 6/26/24 32 

39-3, Project Commissioning 1 day Thu 6/27/24 Thu 6/27/24 38 

Task I I I I M t Manual Summary Rollup Deadline Project Summary 

Project: Pakistan Cable 2 MWp So Split External lasts I Inattive Summary I I Manual Summary i Progress 

Date: Wed 5/8/24 Milestone External Milestone C- Manual Task I ------I Stan-only C Manual Progress 

Duration-only - Finish-only Summary Inactive Task 
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U!LAtlas Energy Application for Generation License 

S 3(vi) Safety plans, emergency plans 

I 



ullirAtlasEnergy Application for Generation License 

Safety plans, emergency plans 

• Only qualified and authorized electricians will be allowed to undertake servicing or maintenance 

tasks. 

• The authorized personnel will wear appropriate equipment, including a safety harness to restrain 

from falling off the roo1 sturdy shoes that will have thick rnbber soles to provide electrical 

insulation and good grip and appropriate clothing for personal protection, including a hat, 

sunglasses, gloves and long pants and sleeves. 

• Lock out and tag out procedures will be used before commencement of maintenance tasks. 

• On-going operation and maintenance concerns for solar power systems will be addressed properly. 

These systems are exposed to outdoor weather conditions that enhance the aging process, and the 

infrastructure needs to be in place for the on-going maintenance of these systems to assure their 

safe operation. 

• Properly grounded or double insulated power tools will be used for maintenance tasks. 

• Tools will be maintained in good condition. 

• Working on electrical equipment and circuits will be carried out in de-energized state. 

• Proper pathways will be available for operation, maintenance and firefighting. 

• Fire protection and suppression will be placed at site. 



U!1At1asEnergy Application for Generation License 

3(vii) Plant characteristics (generation voltage, power factor etc.) 



C"AtlasEnergy Application for Generation License 

Plant characteristics (generation voltage, power factor etc.) 

Generation Voltage 380 to 480 

Power Factor 0.8 LG...0.8 LD 

Frequency 50 Hz 

Automatic Generation Control Included 

Ramping Rate N/A 

S 



U!'tAtlasEnergy Application for Generation License 

3(vii) Control Metering and Instrumentation 



(J'LAtlas Energy Application for Generation License 

Control Metering and Instrumentation 

Control Metering and Instrumentation 

DC circuit breaker 

AC circuit breaker 

DC overload protection (Type 2) 

Overheat protection 

Grid monitoring 

Insulation monitoring 

Ground fault monitoring 



(J!FAtlas Energy Application for Generation License 

3(h) Estimated Capacity Factor at Site 



CYtAt1as Energy Application for Generation License 

3(x) Degradation Factor 

Degradation Factor First Year 2.5% & remaining 24 Years 0.6% 
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